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Corporate Profile

NREEHR

REGISTERED NAME OF THE COMPANY

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

District A, 20/F, 1 North Street of Chaoyangmen, Dongcheng District,
Beijing, 100010, PRC

HEAD OFFICE IN THE PRC

District A, 25/F, 1 North Street of Chaoyangmen, Dongcheng District,
Beijing, 100010, PRC
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HONG KONG

8th Floor, Gloucester Tower, The Landmark, 15 Queen’s Road Central,
Hong Kong

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Mr. Jiang Yingchun

District A, 25/F, 1 North Street of Chaoyangmen, Dongcheng District,
Beijing, PRC

Ms. Yung Mei Yee

8th Floor, Gloucester Tower, The Landmark, 15 Queen’s Road Central,
Hong Kong

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Chen Peng
Ms. Yung Mei Yee

AUDITORS

International Auditor

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building, 10 Chater Road, Central, Hong Kong

PRC Auditor
PKF DAXIN Certified Public Accountants LLP

15/F, College of Beijing Nation Mansion, No.1 Zhichun Road
Haidian District, Beijing, PRC
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LEGAL ADVISORS

as to Hong Kong law

Clifford Chance
28th Floor, Jardine House, One Connaught Place, Central, Hong Kong

as to PRC law

Beijing Junzhi Law Firm
9/F, Timeson Tower, No. B12, North Street of Chaoyangmen,
Chaoyang District, Beijing, PRC

COMPLIANCE ADVISOR

Shenyin Wanguo Capital (H.K.) Limited
Level 19, 28 Hennessy Road, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited (Fuhua Plaza Branch)
No.8, North Street of Chaoyangmen, Dongcheng District, Beijing, PRC

Agricultural Bank of China Limited
4/F, A District, Xinyang Building, No.1 Zhushikoudong Avenue,
Dongcheng District, Beijing, PRC

H SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Service Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
03636
INVESTOR ENQUIRIES

Investors’ Service Line: +86 10 6408 2702
Fax: +86 10 6408 2662

Website: www.polyculture.com.cn

E-mail: IR@polyculture.com.cn
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Financial Highlights
MERE

2013 2012 2011 2010
20134 20124 20114 20104
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000

ARWTT ARBTIT ARETT ARBTT

Revenue WA

Profit from operations 4% % %A
Profit before taxation BR%: A F|H
Income tax FT{E8:

2,002,984 1,649,915 1,758,246 1,216,086
584,755 517,063 781,168 480,865
592,143 515,077 781,690 493,199
(142,572) (128,741) (198,604) (121,551)

Profit for the year A #IH

449,571 386,336 583,086 371,648

Profit attributable to: LA T A T FE/ERIE :
Equity shareholders of the Company 7N &4 25 18 5=
Non-controlling interests JF#2 B %5

Earnings per share &% 2 F
Basic and diluted earnings per share (RMB)

SRERARESREN (ARE)

Total comprehensive income for the year FR&GE S NS H# 58

275,209 242,170 344,561 223,541
174,362 144,166 238,525 148,107

1.67 1.47 2.21 1.86

446,242 386,712 583,087 371,648

Total comprehensive income attributable to: LA~ A L fE(R4R A NS 4E%E -
Equity shareholders of the Company 72 &4 5 J& 5
Non-controlling interests FE#2 i #E 55

273,342 242,463 344,562 223,541
172,900 144,249 238,525 148,107

Total non-current assets JER B4 E 4258
Total current assets i Eh& & 4258

417,548 322,729 188,746 113,828
2,709,354 2,624,675 2,630,322 2,073,885

Total assets EEHALE

3,126,902 2,947,404 2,819,068 2,187,713

Total current liabilities JREI & (E42%58
Total non-current liabilities 3EREh & (E 4258

1,591,905 1,548,556 1,641,340 1,493,815
567 314 2,755 2,744

Total liabilities & &4 %

1,592,472 1,648,870 1,644,095 1,496,559

Net Assets EE F5

1,534,430 1,398,534 1,174,973 691,154

Total equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company
RN R IR G s AR R
Non-controlling interests 3F#Z A% 4 25

1,156,827 1,045,335 802,872 459,347
377,603 353,199 372,101 231,807

TOTAL EQUITY #4458

1,534,430 1,398,534 1,174,973 691,154

The financial information of the Group for the year ended December
31, 2010, 2011 and 2012 was extracted from Appendix | of the
Prospectus, which set forth details of the basis of presentation for the
audited consolidated financial statements. The financial information of
the Group for the year ended December 31, 2013 was set forth on
pages 70 to 180 to this report, which was presented on the basis set
forth in Note 2(b) to the audited consolidated financial statements.
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The following chart sets out our corporate structure up to the Latest

Practicable Date:

Poly Group
R

100%

Public Shareholders
RERBR

Poly Southern
i |

Company
ARa]

100%

80%

62.06%

100%

36.3%

51% | Guizhou Poly Culture Development Co., Lid. |

BIRFSCRRERRA

Poly Art Centre

(C Beijing Poly Contemporary Art Co. L d.
T 5

ERRFERBIERD

Poly Art Investment

RIVEUTIRE

Poly Auction G 100% [ G Co., Ltd.
ERRAAE l Pl e

Poly Auction Beijing
IERRAAE

30%
Poly Auction Hong Kong
YRR R

Poly Film

Kangoo Overseas Ltd. |
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Corporate Structure

NCIES

BERRAUTES  ARFAWNQFARBHOTE
PR

86.67% | Beijing Poly Wanyuan Cinema Co., Ltd
ERRFMERZRARAA
59.17% [Poly Photography Art (Bei _ng) Co.| Ltd
| &R

100% _[Guangzhou Poly Intemational Cinema Co, Lid
FEINRF WARAR

EaRFHARA

RIF %

Poly Theatre Management
RFSIFREE

Baijing Poly Performing Arts Co. Lid
SRRFRLARAR

100%

100% | Dongguan Poly Yulan Grand Theatre Management Co., Ltd.
%xm%‘ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂfﬁsﬂ BAA 40%

20%

40% [ Dongguan Poly Cultre Pemmmng Grou Co, L
FRRINCEEEERART

100% Shanghm Poly Cinema Co., Ltd |
100% Wuxi Poly Cinema Co., Ltd.

EHRNTRARDF

1 OO"/
Shenzhen Poly International Cinema Co., le

SRYIHERFIER AR AR

100% [ Shanghai Pudong Poly Cinema Co., Ltd
| LEHREFZRERAR

Rizhao Poly Cinema Co., Ltd |

T00% BEDRAYAER AR

100% [ Qingdao ol Grand hesre MnagementCo, L. |
100% Limmpolyg.andTh:aueManagmmCo,Lm. i
BARIABIREEARAT
100% Mamshanl’oéGrandﬂmlrcM::mgcmcmCo.,L\d |
T A
ST e — ERUTRAASEEEARAT
FRRHEEHBRERERAT
100%[ " Hobhot 1Py Thestre ManageentCo, |
Shangha Orental At Ceire Management Co, Lid| | PR IRAAGE E’WE

LERFERPOERERAA

Poly Advertisement Co., Ltd.
RAEEERAA

51% | Waban Qinta Grand Th G| |
EERAAERERARAT

51% [ Zhanglag)n%]’oly Grand Theatre Management Co, Lid.
R ASRERERAR

100% [ Heran Poly At
Tﬁﬁﬂ*m*rusﬁﬁﬁﬂ
1009% [ Yichun Poly Grand Theatre Mznagemenl(' Lid. |
1009% | Yarai Poly Grand Thate Mnagemet o, L. | | EETRNANRERARLA
RTRFIASREZARAR
60% | Wi Grand Theare Poly Management Co. Lid |
e
100% | hidhon oy Catae s A ERABIRRNEZARLA

Ld
DRI LEGROE EEEIEQ'I

100% [ Yingkou Bayuguan Poly Grand Theatre Management Co. L
EOmEAERRIANRERERAR

51% | Changzhou Poly Grand Thatre o, L
FHTRAASREERRAR
100% [ Jian Py széi%keaﬁmﬁ)dam%eﬂ%o" Ld. |
66.67%|  Chongaig Poly Thestre Vanagement Co, L r FRARE
BETRISREEARAR
51% [ Kunshan Poly Grand Theatre Mmgm.em Co, Lid. |
51% | Taizhou Poly rand Thate Management Co. L. | | BUTRAAHREEARA
FhHRHANRERERAA
100%| C}langshlﬂ’;}y Grand Thatre Management Co, Lid |
Bk e
100% [Wenzhou Pnﬂy Grand Theatre M; o.Ld RRETRHAGRERARAA
R RS ERARAR

51% [

Handan Poly Grand Theatre Managemenl Co.Lid
BETRHABRERERAT

100% | Hefe ol Grand Theae Managemen Co, Lid | |
ARRAASREEERAR

100%]

100% y(Bc)ng)ThcamConslrumnnEngmccnng 1

Dalian Poly Theatre Management Co, Lid
AERTBRERERAT

ssulting Co,
SHG R R R AT

49% Shenzhen Poly Theatre Performance a; L
ATRABRRLESERAR

51% Ningbo Culture Square Py Grand
ws PR e R

100% Weang ol %GmndThcmcMmgemmlCn Ld |

100% _ | Zhoushan Putuo Poly Theatre Management Co., L.
AUmERERNAESIERAT

100% | Shansi Poly Grand Co, Lid AIDRIANRERERAT
UAERNASRERERAR
100%| Weihai Poly Grand Theatre Managenen Co, Lt |
100% | Shangha ol Grand Thear Mamagement Co, L0 | | RATRHABREE2ARAR
HERAAEIRERERAR
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Major Events in 2013
2013F KE:L

During the period from April 3, 2013 till April 7, 2013, Poly Auction
Hong Kong held the 2013 Spring Auction, resulted in a turnover of
HKD646 million.

On May 17, 2013, Poly Culture was chosen among the “Top 30
National Culture Enterprises” jointly sponsored by Guangming Daily
and Economic Daily, for the fifth consecutive year following 2008,
2010, 2011 and 2012.

During the period from October 5, 2013 till October 7, 2013, upon
its first anniversary, Poly Auction Hong Kong held the 2013 Autumn
Auction in Grand Hyatt Hong Kong, which resulted in a turnover of
HKD989 million, increased by 90.6% from 2012, further building up
Poly Auction Hong Kong’s position in Hong Kong market.

On October 26, 2013, our subsidiary Poly Theatre Management’s
original musical “The Piano in a Factory” won five prizes including
“Excellent Repertory Award” at the 14th “Wenhua Award” Election
sponsored by the Ministry of Culture of the People’s Republic of China.

On December 6, 2013, the 2013 Autumn Auction held by Poly Auction
Beijing rounded off with a total turnover of RMB2,869 million, following
which the Company recorded a total turnover of RMB7.88 billion for
2013, securing it the fourth consecutive crown in terms of annual
turnover of global auction of Chinese arts.

On December 15, 2013, Ticket Sale and Opening Season Appearance
Show of the Grand Theatre of Weihai Conference Center, operated
by our subsidiary Poly Theatre Management, was staged, which
marked the official opening of the 32nd theatre under Poly Theatre
Management.

On December 28, 2013, Poly Changsha Xiyingmen International
Cinema, operated by our subsidiary Poly Film, started operation,
which marked the official opening of the 15th self-operated cinemas
under Poly Film.
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Chairman’s Statement

ESRYE

Dear Shareholders:

In 2013, China’s economic growth slowed down amid ongoing
economic restructuring. Under the impact of macroeconomic
performance, domestic artwork market stabilized on the whole
albeit a limited rise from 2012. Performance market and cinema
consumption market continued to maintain a rapid growth. Thanks to
the wise directions of the Board of Directors, the Group rose above
disadvantages, availed itself of favourable development opportunities,
actively adjusted business strategies and made satisfactory progresses
in all fields of endeavours.

During the reporting period, in order to better implement the national
plan on promoting the vigorous development and prosperity of the
culture industry, and to develop our Group into a comprehensive
culture group with international competitiveness, the Group officially
launched its H Share Listing in 2013 as approved by our general
meeting, and was successfully listed on the Stock Exchange on March
6, 2014, marking a milestone in our endeavour for internationalization.

EHHRER :

2013%F » PRI BEERNFBEAE - LEL

RBFTRE  REERBELETE  BRENR
MISHBR012FAMEE - BEHERR - ERZ2

Jﬂgﬁw BN HEEZHEMSEBERTR
RIBREE - AEZENRET  AEERRT
MARFE  MEAMNEREE  BRAZLE
REE - F 7 E LIEERIS BRI B AR

WERA - REAHEREEPRBTEANESD
AL RER - KREEOBEEEWS - BEREAEE
FEMABEERF NNGESE UL EEEL
BREE  SREASHE AEEFREAK
E)HAZ £ TE - Wit2014F3 A6 BRI EBE X
FrET - BETEBE(ENEE—F -
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Chairman’s Statement

ESRYE

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2013, the Group gave full play to the strength of the established
culture brand, vigorously developed three main businesses, namely
art business and auction, performance and theatre management,
and cinema investment and management, and achieved satisfactory
results. In the meantime, the Group also made positive attempt to
innovate business model by industrial integration and sought new
profit growth drivers.

During the period, the Group recorded consolidated revenue of
RMBZ2,003 million, profit before taxation of RMB592 million, and net
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of RMB275
million, with Return on Equity of 25%. By the end of 2013, the Group’s
consolidated total assets and total liabilities reached RMB3,127 million
and RMB1,592 million respectively, with an asset-liability ratio of
51%, indicative of a sound asset-liability structure; net assets came
to approximately RMB1,535 million, increased by 10% from 2012.

In the meantime, the Group is also committed to developing
international cultural market. The Group has established long-term
business relationship with many international famous institutions in
respect of performance and film making, and has initially built global
purchase and sale network of Chinese artwork with regard to art
business and auction. Poly Auction Hong Kong has successfully
secured its position in Hong Kong.

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

The culture industry rose to a new height in the national plan and
has become one of the core industries boosting national economic
transformation and upgrading as China’s cognition of strategic
position. All culture industry segments the Group engages in belong
to industries energetically backed by the state, and will enjoy policy
positives in the future, promising huge market growth.

As the first listed company in Hong Kong capital market engaged in
auction business and theatre management, as well as a state-owned
enterprise focusing on culture and art business, the Group is fully
confident of corporate development prospect.

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2013
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In 2014, in response to the complicated situation featuring challenges
and opportunities, the Group will pay close attention to national
industrial policies, leverage the development opportunities and intensify
internal management to improve profitability, risk control capability
and sustainable development capability. Riding on the opportunity
of Listing, we will redouble efforts unremittingly to consolidate our
foundation, make innovative development, and develop the Group into
a world class culture group, so as to repay investors and the society
with better results.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to extend sincere
gratitude to all our staff for their hard work and commitment over
the past year, which helped the Group maintain rapid development
rate and achieve stable growth in operating results despite various
difficulties.

We attribute the successful Listing of Poly Culture to the invaluable
trust and support of our investors, for which | would like to extent,
on behalf of the Board of Directors, my sincerest appreciation to all
the investors.

Chen Hongsheng
Chairman of the Board of Directors
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEWED

I. SEGMENT BUSINESS INFORMATION - ZEEZBFER

In early 2013, according to the Chinese government working 20135 1) PEBM TIERERFFERLH
report, China set its annual GDP growth target at 7.5%, which BEBIZHEE A7.5%  KR2012F E 1
was lower than the 7.8% of 2012. Affected by the downturn 7.8%° XEBKBBRBRLEZE
of the macro-economy, the domestic artwork market has only RIELT G T 5 B B 2012FF B FTEIBE + 1B )
bounced back slightly from that of 2012. In this environment, EER - FEHIFERT - 2013F REEE 5
the Company proactively adjusted its business strategies RIRAFEEZETE - BHRFHELERE - =
to overcome unfavorable factors and all of the three main HEXKERFBRTPEE -

businesses have achieved progress in 2013.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SRR e

Art business and auction business - by leveraging
advantages of the two local and foreign platforms,
we continue to maintain the leading position in
the market.

In 2013, the Company, by leveraging advantages of the two
platforms respectively in Beijing and Hong Kong, conducting
in-depth market analysis and actively responding to market
changes, managed to achieve an annual auction turnover of
RMB7.88 billion, marking the fourth consecutive year for the
company to top the global auction market of the Chinese
artworks.

By highlighting the brand advantage and setting up themes like
“A Return to Literati’s Feelings”, Poly Auction Beijing has been
actively seeking to attract new clients. Meanwhile, Poly Auction
Beijing expands the scope of sourcing for auction items and
enhances promotions to increase the probability of transactions.
In 2013, Poly Auction Beijing has achieved an annual auction
turnover of RMB6.54 billion.

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Poly Auction Hong Kong continued its innovations and achieved
good results from the successive launch of two new categories,
featuring Chinese ancient painting and calligraphy, and Chinese
contemporary ink painting, at its Spring Auction and Autumn
Auction. In 2013, the annual auction turnover amounted to
HK$1.70 billion.

By analyzing and judging the market trends, Poly Art Centre
managed to capture the opportunities that arose in the second
half of 2013 as the market rebounded to enhance its sales efforts
and achieved a new business record amid the continuous market
adjustments.

Poly Art Investment has developed new products and business
patterns by enhancing cooperation with institutions such as
securities companies. In 2013, four financing trust plans were
added into the portfolio. One of the highlights was “Poly 11th”,
the first asset management plan in China’s securities industry
that targets only artworks. As of December 31, 2013, Poly Art
Investment had seven ongoing projects amounting to RMB753
million.

BEEWED

FANBBHERE UMFBHEFLREL
REERESNHEERKEMEFRFIE -
BSRIFMR - 2013F 2 FERAEXR
FE17.01887T

EMEMPLODTHATIHES  ME
2013 NHFEMIHRHE @R 2 # K&
NE  EMSHEHERAEEETS -

RFBMZE - NREFHFABEEES
B FBFNERMEBER - 2013F 3
HAMBMERESIEE - EFR MRA115%]
BEABABSTEEYBEMRERNEE
Bt & - B E2013F128318 » RF&
MR EEBTHEETE  HEARKET53(E
7T e

R EBRDERAF
2013 FEHE



0|
Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEWED

Performance and theatre management business:
focusing on channel expansion and content
building, brand influence further enhanced.

As of December 31, 2013, Poly Theatre Management managed
32 high-end theatres each with over 1,000 seating capacity in 30
cities across China. We also had four theatres under construction
where we have already entered into theatre management
agreements with the relevant owners. In addition, we were
providing construction consultation services for 32 theatres as
of December 31, 2013. For original repertoires, as of December
31, 20183, our musical “The Piano in a Factory”( {3HHIZE) )
and “Long March” ( (£ Z=#)&1E) ), in addition to the musical
“Wanderings of San Mao” ( { ZFE#JR5) ) are all well received.
In 2013, Poly Theatre staged 4,015 performances.

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Cinema investment and management business:
a growth, faster than that of the overall market.

Poly Film has captured the market opportunities to open eight
new cinemas in 2013, bringing the total number of self-operated
cinemas to 15. Through regionalized management and control,
and enhanced standard management, the box office income
of self-operated cinemas increased to RMB179 million as of
December 31, 2013, increased by 32% as compared with the
year of 2012, which outpaced the growth of nationwide cinema
box office.

Facing the market competition, Poly Film has strengthened its
strategic research into the cinema investment and management
business, and further clarified its development strategies: with
economic benefits as the core, establishing regional advantages
as the principles, and focusing on both speed and benefits. As
of December 31, 2013, we had four cinemas under construction.
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II. RESULTS ANALYSIS AND
DISCUSSION

Overview of our operating results
Revenue

Total revenue increased by 21.4% from RMB1,649.9 million for
the year ended December 31, 2012 to RMB2,003.0 million for
the year ended December 31, 2013, primarily due to increase in
revenue from the art business and auction segment as a result
of increase in the total art auction turnover under our auction
operations. The increase was also attributed to increases in
revenue from the performance and theatre management segment
and the cinema investment and management segment, which
was primarily due to the expansion of our theatre and cinema
networks.

The respective segment revenue of the Group in 2013 and 2012
is as follows:

Years ended December 31,
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% of change

BZ12A31HLEE EHHI

2013 2012

20134 2012%F

RMB in millions RMB in millions

ARBBETR ARBBEET
Art business and auction Z: i 4 & EIH 972.8 792.7 22.7
Performance and theatre management & H 2 Bl fz & 12 740.5 607.6 21.9
Cinema investment and management $/fz & & 12 289.7 249.6 16.1
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Gross profit

Gross profit increased by 21.9% from RMB811.8 million for the
year ended December 31, 2012 to RMB989.7 million for the year
ended December 31, 2013 as a result of the business growth
of our art business and auction segment. Gross profit margin
remained relatively stable at 49.2% and 49.4%, respectively, for
the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2013.

Other revenue

Other revenue decreased from RMB43.2 million for the year
ended December 31, 2012 to RMB23.6 million for the year
ended December 31, 2013, primarily due to the RMB17.1 million
one-off government grants for the development of the culture
and art industries provided to us by the Ministry of Finance in
2012.

Other Gain
We recorded other gain of RMB4.2 million for the year ended

December 31, 2013 mainly as a result of our disposal of Poly
Wanhe Cinema Circuit in June 20183.
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Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses increased by 36.1% from
RMB156.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 to
RMB213.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2013,
primarily due to (i) an increase in staff costs as a result of an
increase in the headcount of selling and marketing employees,
which was attributable to our increased selling and marketing
activities as a result of our efforts to promote and expand our
business; (ii) an increase in rentals, property management and
utility costs as a result of our increased selling and marketing
efforts including arranging preview exhibition, to promote our art
business and auction segment; and (jii) an increase in the number
of cinemas we operated and theatres we managed.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased by 21.9% from RMB180.2
million for the year ended December 31, 2012 to RMB219.6
million for the year ended December 31, 2013, primarily due to an
increase in staff costs as a result of an increase in the headcount
of our administrative employees, which were attributable to our
increased administrative activities and business scale.

Reportable segment profit

As a result of the foregoing, reportable segment profit increased
by 19.4% from RMB539.2 million for the year ended December
31, 2012 to RMB643.8 million for the year ended December
31, 2013, reflecting the Group’s steady business growth during
the year.
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The respective reportable segment profit of the Group in 2013
and 2012 is as follows:

Years ended December 31,
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% of change
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2013 2012

2013%F 20124

RMB in millions RMB in millions

ARBEETR AREEHETT
Art business and auction Z i & & EIH=E 556.6 469.0 18.7
Performance and theatre management & i £2 B f & 32 38.3 35.3 8.5
Cinema investment and management §/f2 % & &8 48.9 34.9 40.1

Finance income BIEWRA

Finance income increased by 13.7% from RMB24.8 million for
the year ended December 31, 2012 to RMB28.2 million for the
year ended December 31, 2013 mainly as a result of an increase
in interest income from the consignor advances.

Finance costs

Finance costs decreased by 22.4% from RMB26.8 million for the
year ended December 31, 2012 to RMB20.8 million for the year
ended December 31, 2013, primarily due to a decrease in the
amount of outstanding bank loans.

Income tax

Income tax increased by 10.7% from RMB128.8 million in the
year ended December 31, 2012 to RMB142.6 million in the
year ended December 31, 2013, primarily due to an increase in
taxable income.

Profit for the year

As a result of the foregoing, profit for the year increased by
16.4% from RMB386.3 million for the year ended December
31, 2012 to RMB449.6 million for the year ended December
31, 2013, and net profit margin decreased from 23.4% in the
year ended December 31, 2012 to 22.4% for the year ended
December 31, 2013.
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Liquidity and capital resources

During the year 2013, the Group maintained a steady financial
position and adequate liquidity. As of December 31, 2013, the
Group’s cash and cash equivalent amounted to RMB1,004.7
million compared with RMB904.0 million as of December 31,
2012, up by 11.1%.

The net cash inflow from operating activities amounted to
RMB278.0 million (2012: RMB302.9 million). After adding
RMB81.2 million in net cash inflow from investment activities
mainly arising from repayment for consignor advances, and
deducting RMB249.8 million in net cash outflow from financing
activities arising mainly from the repayment of borrowings
and dividends paid by subsidiaries to non-controlling equity
owners, there was still an increase in cash and cash equivalent
of approximately RMB109.4 million as compared to the end of
last year.

Changes to key items in consolidated balance
sheet

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment mainly include but not limited to
cinema equipment and self-owned offices. Our property, plant
and equipment increased by 29.2% from RMB315.9 million as
of December 31, 2012 to RMB408.3 million as of December 31,
2013 due to the continued expansion of our cinema network.

Current Assets and Current Liability

Primarily due to the expansion of our business, the current
assets increased by 3.2% from RMBZ2,624.7 million as of
December 31, 2012 to RMB2,709.3 million as of December
31, 20183. Current liability increased by 2.8% from RMB1,548.6
million as of December 31, 2012 to RMB1,591.9 million as of
December 31, 2013.
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Inventory

Inventories increased by 24.5% from RMB647.0 million as of
December 31, 2012 to RMB805.3 million as of December 31,
2013, primarily due to increases in our artwork collections in
our art business, which is primarily because our management
decided to expand our artwork inventories considering the
development of art market in China and the optimistic estimate
towards the market prospect.

Consignor Advances

The consignor advances decreased by 39.6% from RMB398.8
million as of December 31, 2012 to RMB240.9 million as of
December 31, 2013, primarily due to our prudent approach in
granting consignor advances to the sellers.

Deposits, Prepayments and Other Receivables

The deposits, prepayments and other receivables decreased
by 8.9% from RMB542.3 million as of December 31, 2012 to
RMB493.9 million as of December 31, 2013, primarily due to the
decrease in prepayments of auctioned artwork.

Prepayments of auctioned artwork decreased from RMB407.7
million as of December 31, 2012 to RMB305.0 million as of
December 31, 2013, primarily due to the improvement of timely
settlement by the buyers.
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Indebtedness

As of December 31, 2013, we incurred bank borrowings of
RMB208.0 million, all of which were borrowed from reputable
Chinese financial institutions and were unsecured and repayable
within one year. Bank loans decreased from RMB298.0 million as
of December 31, 2012 to RMB208.0 million as of December 31,
2013 due to the repayment of outstanding bank loans. We mainly
used the proceeds from the bank borrowings to fund expansion
of our cinema network in line with our business expansion
strategy. The actual interest rate of our bank loans ranged from
5.40% to 6.00% for the year ended December 31, 2013.

Under artwork financing trust plans, we are obliged to fund the
difference between the total expected monetary trust property
and the aggregate amount of the principal of trust, expected
return as agreed in the trust plan, applicable taxes and other
incurred costs (exclusive of our expected incentive fees) if the
borrower and its guarantor fail to repay such amounts. As of
December 31, 2013, our maximum exposure amounted to
RMB253.0 million.

As of the date of this announcement, other than disclosed in this
announcement, our Group did not have any contingent liabilities
nor any other off-balance sheet commitments and arrangements.

Capital expenditure

Our capital expenditures during the financial statement period
primarily comprised of expenditures on property and equipment,
which amounted to RMB158.0 million and RMB144.9 million,
respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2013.
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lll. RISK FACTORS

The company’s exposure to risks in connection with its
operations mainly includes: market risk, risk of staff turnover,
competition risk and interest rate risk.

() Market Risk

1. Uncertainties in the global economy (in particular
China’s economy)

Unfavorable global economic conditions, particularly
volatility in China’s economy, may adversely affect
our business. Due to influences from the European
debt crisis and unfavorable financial or economic
conditions caused by global financial crisis, the
recent development of global economy and the
economic growth of main emerging economies, such
as China, have slowed down. Under our art business
and auction segment, the results of our operations
are particularly exposed to risks associated with
fluctuation of regional economic, political and financial
environment in China, the United States, Europe and
Asia Pacific countries. The company will integrate our
brand value and resources to actively develop a new
industrial pattern and mitigate the adverse impact
arising from economic fluctuations while handling well
the three main existing business segments.
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2. Unpredictability of the demand for artworks

The demand for artworks is influenced by various
factors, including the overall economic and political
environment, changes in the collecting categories
that are most sought after and preferences of
collectors. For example, under our auction operation,
a decrease in market demand may cause a decline in
auction turnover, which could in turn result in lower
commission income earned by us. On the other hand,
when market demand is high, it is fairly difficult to
purchase favorable artworks at reasonable prices,
or we may not be able to acquire favorable artwork
at all. We will keep an eye on the market changes,
understand rotation rules of hotspots in the artwork
sector and work out countermeasures appropriately.
In particular, we will focus on expanding the portfolio
of international clients and the variety of artworks, as
well as enhancing overseas sourcing so as to reduce
the risks arising from volatility in the market demand.

() Risk of staff turnover

Our success has been substantially attributable to excellent
management professionals. In the art business and auction
segment, we rely on a number of industry professionals
to conduct authentication and valuation of artworks,
who require long-term practices to accumulate sufficient
experience to provide professional and reliable advice.
In other business segments, we also rely on qualified
employees to ensure that we can manage our theatres
and cinemas with unified and high level standards to
improve the audience’s experience, and enhance our
brand recognition and profitability. We strive to attract
the best talent through excellent HR management and
provide them with good career development opportunities.
We will actively enhance internal talent cultivation, further
enlarge the pool of key management and professional
talent, enhance the loyalty of key talent, and attract more
experienced management and professional talents based
on innovations in the talent motivation mechanism.
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All our business segments face competition

For the art business and auction segment, we mainly
compete with key auction houses in the local and foreign
markets throughout the operation chain. The competition
may possibly reduce our commission income, and increase
our costs in sourcing, buying and selling artworks, as well
as expenses in talent recruitment. In the performance
and theatre management segment, we compete with
other theater management companies in China in terms
of program resources, network coverage and brand
recognition. In the cinema investment and management
segment, we mainly compete with other cinema operators
in regions where we operate cinemas. The Company will
seek to gain a more precise understanding of the market
trends and enhance core competitiveness so as to maintain
the leading market position.

Art business operations are subject to risks
relating to fluctuation of interest rates

Under our art business operations, we purchase artworks
which we believe are undervalued, or which we believe
have appreciation potentials, and resell them at an
appropriate time to make profit. We mainly rely on our
working capital and bank loans to fund our acquisitions
of artworks. Increase in interest rates may increase our
costs to purchase and hold the relevant artworks, which
could in turn adversely affect our results of performance
if we are unable to pass the costs to customers when
we resell the relevant artworks. We will keep an eye on
policies and changes relating to the domestic and foreign
financial markets, and adopt a specific financing pattern to
partially offset impact of changes in the interest rates on
the financial costs during the interest rate hike cycle and
interest rate reduction cycle.
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IV. OUTLOOK P RRRE
In 2014, the Company will continue to focus on rapid growth for 20145 - "R BEBMTRE =L
the existing three main businesses aiming to achieve fast growth, ¥ RERRERRE - BFHKEIFZE
and also put effort to innovations at the same time so as to lay B - AARRIR R IR EE A -

a sound foundation for the future development.

1. Continue to focus on the three main (-) BEBEBMF=-IEFE RELE

businesses and maintain stable growth in
the operating results.

For art business and auction business

Poly Auction Beijing will closely follow market changes,
consistently improve the professionalism and delicacy
level, enhance marketing and focus more on brand building
so as to be well prepared for internationalization related
challenges.

Poly Auction Hong Kong will continue to enhance its
operating ideas of “exquisiteness, scarcity and rareness”
to enhance quality of the auction items, take into greater
consideration the demand of collectors in Hong Kong,
Macau, Southeast Asia, Europe and the United States to
expand the portfolio of international clients, and enhance
overseas sourcing to further expand the variety of items.

Poly Art Centre will seek to capture hotspots in the market
and enhance its capabilities in responding to the market
changes, accelerate channel and team building, and further
expand its business.

Poly Art Investment will devote to management of the
existing projects, while making innovations in the business
pattern to meet the constantly changing market demand
and carefully managing risks.
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In managing our performance and theatre management
business, we will continue to steadily expand the
theatre chain. We intend to add three to five new
theatres to our theatre chain in 2014. Strategic
cooperation will be enhanced with excellent performing
troupe to ensure supply of excellent programs. We
seek to deliver good results from the tour of original
repertoires, such as “Long March’( { E=ZH&LE) ). We
plan to launch our fourth original musical “Assembly”
( {(E£45%) ). For the theatre construction consultation
services, we will deliver high-quality services for the existing
projects and actively seek new projects at the same time.

For the cinema investment and management business, we
will continue to improve the regionalized management with
focus on enhancing the operation and management of the
existing cinemas, particularly the newly-opened cinemas for
a shorter cultivation period and better profitability. Pursuant
to the preset benefit-oriented expansion strategies, we will
steadily work on new projects. In addition, we will further
enhance technical Research & Development and improve
Poly-Max (a giant-screen projection system) for better
brand building, so as to lay a sound foundation to deliver
a better market value in the future.

Actively promote new business development
for a substantive breakthrough.

By fully leveraging the advantages of our three main
businesses and overall brand value in 2014, we look to
explore the possibility of building comprehensive culture
and art park projects in domestic cities where there are
good environment and favorable conditions, so as to further
enhance the Company’s core competitiveness and explore
more opportunities for business innovation.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEWED

Continue to work on management
enhancement.

Giving priority to production safety, we will continue to
improve the management system and further enhance
safety inspections, form a long-term effective mechanism
for management of production safety and prevent
occurrence of no operation accidents.

We actively carry out post-project evaluation on key
investment projects in order to enhance better investment-
related decision-making capabilities.

We continue to enhance industry research, expand the
practice in combination with the Company’s business, and
enhance research and study of special topics in relation
to industrial convergence, merger and reorganization,
international development and operations of cultural
bonded zones.

Prospecting the future, we will continue to work on our
three main business segments while actively exploring new
business patterns. We aim for sustainable, fast and healthy
development through a cross-industry convergence of the
culture industry and enhanced post-IPO standardization of
operations, thereby upgrading our business model.

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2013
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Report from the Board of Directors

CORPORATE PROFILE AND GLOBAL
OFFERING

The Company was established as a joint stock limited company
on December 14, 2010. The Company’s Shares were listed and
traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on March 6, 2014.
The Prospectus has been published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange for information disclosure (www.hkexnews.hk) and the
Company (www.polyculture.com.cn).

MAIN BUSINESS

The Company is a leading culture and art enterprise in China with
diversified business operations, which maintains a well-balanced
business pattern of three pillar operations, namely art business and
auction, performance and theatre management and cinema investment
and management, through its eight first-level wholly-owned/holding
subsidiaries.

INFORMATION ABOUT THE ULTIMATE
HOLDING COMPANY

Our ultimate holding company is Poly Group, which was established
in 1992 as a large state-owned enterprise under the direct supervision
and administration of SASAC. Except for the culture and art business
conducted through our Group, Poly Group is primarily engaged in
military and civilian trade and business, real estate development,
investment and exploitation in mineral resource field and manufacture
of civilian explosive equipments and blasting service.

ANNUAL RESULTS

The annual results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2013
were published on the websites of the Stock Exchange for information
disclosure and the Company on March 28, 2014.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group for
the year ended December 31, 2013 are set out in Note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements of this report.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at the date of this report, the total share capital of the Company
is RMB246,316,000, divided into 246,316,000 Shares with a nominal
value of RMB1.00.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2013 are set out in the Consolidated Statement
of Changes in Equity and Note 22 to the Financial Statements of
this report, and details of reserves available for distribution to our
Shareholders are set out in Note 22(e) to the Financial Statements of
this report.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The H Shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange on March 6, 2014. The Prospectus has been
published on the websites of the Stock Exchange for information
disclosure and the Company. On March 14, 2014, the over-allotment
Option has been fully exercised and additional 10,606,000 H Shares
have been issued by the Company. Saved as disclosed above, there
is no other major subsequent event of our Company. The Company
undertakes that it has fulfilled the undertakings and conditions
imposed before listing as disclosed in the Prospectus.

PROFIT DISTRIBUTIONS

As shown in the Financial Statements of this report, our distributable
profit is RMB333.7 million as at the end of 2013. The Board of
Directors did not recommend the payment of final dividends for the
year ended December 31, 2013.

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2013
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Report from the Board of Directors

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company and its Subsidiaries have not purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the period
from the Listing Date to the Latest Practicable Date.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The proceeds from the Global Offering of our H Shares (including the
Shares issued under the full exercise of over-allotment option), after
deducting the underwriting fee is approximately HK$2.879 billion,
which is intended to be used as set forth in the Prospectus of the
Company. As at the Latest Practicable Date, the proceeds raised
have not been used.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended December 31, 2013, sales to the top five
customers of the Company and the purchases from the top five
suppliers of the Company accounted for less than 25% of the Group’s
total sales and total purchases, respectively.

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS’
INTERESTS IN MATERIAL CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which the Company or its holding
company, any of its fellow subsidiaries and subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director or Supervisor of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly and indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year ended December 31, 2013 or at any time during that year.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

Details of the bank borrowings and other borrowings of the Company
and its Subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2013 were set
forth in Note 19 to the Financial Statements of this report.

EEEHRE

BE BEEORHELHRS

2

ARBREMBARE ELHAHREREAITA
HHEHSERE  HEXBERANRFEA LHE

EREEHH

ARAEREE (BEERERTEERELEN
BITERD) IENERESENREAEERR
#R28.79BBTT - R FERIRBIAR LR A K AR
SRRMESTAER - BERRAUTHS  ZER
KETHARER -

FTEEFRHER

HZE2013F12A31A L FE  AEBRAAE
FARIGHEREE  UWEAEBRRAEESEAL
ZHEERE  DRIORAEEMEERBERY
25% °

EEREENREASHZER

REE2013F 128310 L FE A R FRNE
A ARRREERIZERAR - BEMBA
RSB ARWES2ET VA ARARESERE
ERETEESHEREEEAEEZEAEH -

RITERREMERK

R ARE MEFRBREZE2013F12H31H
IEFEZRITERREMMEROFBHRARS
B SRR M RE19 o

RAALERBBARBRA R
2013 FEHE



0|
Report from the Board of Directors

EEEHE

EMPLOYEE REMUNERATION AND
POLICIES

As at December 31, 2013, the Group had 4,151 employees. The
remuneration policy of the Group is determined by the Remuneration
and Assessment Committee under the Board of Directors as per the
performance, qualifications and competence of our employees. Details
of the employee remuneration of the Company were set forth in Note
7(b) to the Financial Statements of this report.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEES
BENEFIT SCHEME AND SHARE OPTION
INCENTIVE PLAN

The details of the retirement and employees benefit scheme of the
Company are set forth in Note 7(b) to the Financial Statement of this
report.

As at the date of this report, the Company did not have any share
option incentive plan.

PROFILES OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The profiles of our Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
were set forth on pages 64 to 67 of this report. Saved as disclosed
in this report, there have been no changes in the information about
the Directors, Supervisors and chief executive of the Company which
are required to be disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules
since the Listing Date till the date of this report.

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2013
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

None of the independent non-executive Directors has any business
or financial interests in the Group, nor do they hold any executive
positions in the Company, which effectively guaranteed their
independence.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of their independence as
per Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. As at the Latest Practicable Date,
the Company is of the opinion that all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent as per Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS
AND SUPERVISORS

The Company has entered into a service contract with each of the
Directors and Supervisors, which set forth: 1) each service contract
lasts for a term of three years commencing from the Listing Date; and
2) the service contract may be terminated as per its terms.

None of the Directors and Supervisors has entered into a service
contract with the Company which cannot be terminated by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESSES

For the year ended December 31, 2013 and up to the Listing Date,
none of the Directors or their respective associates had interests in
a business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at December 31, 2013, Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”) and Section 352 of the SFO
do not apply to the Directors, Supervisors and chief executives of the
Company, as the Company was not listed on the Stock Exchange on
December 31, 2013.

From the Listing Date to the date of this report, none of the Directors,
Supervisors or chief executives of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which was required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
any such Directors, Supervisors, chief executives or their respective
associates is deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or which was required to be entered in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which
was otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”).

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2013
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

For the year ended December 31, 2013, Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO and Section 336 of the SFO should not apply to the
Company, as it was not listed on the Stock Exchange on December
31, 2013.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, to the knowledge of the Directors,
the interests or short positions of the following persons (which are
not Directors, Supervisors or chief executives of the Company) in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company, which were required to
be notified to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO and recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, were as follows:
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Poly Group (Note 2) Domestic Beneficial owner and 156,868,400 100.00 63.69
RAEE (F:22) Shares interest of controlled (long position)
NER corporation 156,868,400 (11&)

ERBAARRZEEE
2R

Poly Southern Domestic Beneficial owner 50,197,900 32.00 20.38
[z Shares BEHBEA (long position)
NER 50,197,900 (17 R&)

China Credit Trust Co., Ltd. (Note 3) H Shares Interest of controlled 5,447,400 6.09 2.21
China Credit Trust Co., Ltd. (Ffz£3) HR corporation (long position)
REEZE 2R 5,447,400 (f7&)

Harvest Fund Management Co., Ltd. (Note 3) H Shares Investment manager 5,447 400 6.09 2.21
Harvest Fund Management Co., Ltd. (Fii5£3) Hi& RELE (long position)
5,447,400 (178)

Cheah Capital Management Limited (Note 4)  H Shares Interest of controlled 5,095,900 5.70 2.07
Cheah Capital Management Limited (Ffzt4) Hi% corporation (long position)
NEEEE R 5,095,900 (&)
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Number of
Shares/underlying Percentage

Shares held  of the relevant Percentage

(long position/  class of share of the total

short position/ capital (%) share capital

lending pool) (Note 1) (%)

BERR HERRE (Note 1)

HBERAHE hlz T A2

Shareholder Type of Shares  Capacity (& / %8/ B2 (%) B2 (%)

RRAR R4 85 &1 THREHHRE) GESY GESY

Cheah Cheng Hye (Note 4) H Shares Person who set up the 5,095,900 5.70 2.07
#HEg (M) Hi& discretionary trust (long position)
R BEEEHA 5,095,900 (4 #)

Cheah Company Limited (Note 4) H Shares Interest of controlled 5,095,900 5.70 2.07
Cheah Company Limited (¥{z4) HE corporation (long position)
REEER 2 R 5,095,900 ({7 &)

Hang Seng Bank Trustee H Shares Trustee (other than 5,095,900 5.70 2.07
International Limited (Note 4) HR passive trustee) (long position)
Hang Seng Bank Trustee ZEEA (58 5,095,900 (478)

International Limited (Hi5F4) ZEEABRIN)

To Hau Yin (Note 4) H Shares Interest of spouse 5,095,900 5.70 2.07
HIE (M) HE& BB ER (long position)
5,095,900 (§7&)

Value Partners Group Limited (Note 4) H Shares Interest of controlled 5,095,900 5.70 2.07
Value Partners Group Limited (Fizt4) Hix corporation (long position)
REEER 2 R 5,095,900 ({7 &)

The National Council for Social Security Fund ~ H Shares Beneficial owner 4,870,400 5.44 1.98
r2EeREESESE H& ERBBA (long position)
4,870,400 (£18)

ICBC Credit Suisse Asset Management H Shares Investment manager 4,703,100 5.26 1.91
(International) Company Limited HER and beneficial owner (long position)
ICBC Credit Suisse Asset Management RELEREREBA 4,703,100 (1¥8)

(International) Company Limited

Note:

1. The percentage is calculated with the number of the relevant class of
Shares of the Company issued as at the Latest Practicable Date divided

by the total number of shares.

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
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Poly Group directly holds 106,670,500 Shares of the Company, and
holds 100% of the equity interest of Poly Southern, which in turn holds
50,197,900 Shares of the Company, accordingly Poly Group is deemed
to be interested in the 50,197,900 Shares held by Poly Southern under
the SFO.

Harvest Fund Management Co., Ltd. directly holds 2,133,600 H Shares
of the Company. Harvest Fund Management Co., Ltd. holds all the
equity interests of Harvest Global Investments Limited, and Harvest
Global Investments Limited holds 3,313,800 H Shares of the Company.
Accordingly Harvest Fund Management Co., Ltd. is deemed to be
interested in the 3,313,800 H Shares held by Harvest Global Investments
Limited under the SFO. China Credit Trust Co., Ltd. holds 40% equity
interests of Harvest Fund Management Co., Ltd.. Accordingly China Credit
Trust Co., Ltd. is deemed to be interested in 5,447,400 H Shares held by
Harvest Fund Management Co., Ltd. under the SFO.

These 5,095,000 H Shares are held by Value Partners Limited, which
is wholly owned by Value Partners Hong Kong Limited. Value Partners
Group Limited holds all the equity interests of Value Partners Hong Kong
Limited, Cheah Capital Management Limited holds 28.47% equity interests
of Value Partners Group Limited, and Cheah Company Limited holds all
the equity interests of Cheah Capital Management Limited. All the issued
shares of Cheah Company Limited is owned by Hang Seng Bank Trustee
International Limited (as trustee), which is controlled and wholly owned by
Cheah Cheng Hye and his founded The C H Cheah Family Trust. At the
same time, To Hau Yin is the spouse of Cheah Cheng Hye. Accordingly,
Value Partners Group Limited, Cheah Capital Management Limited,
Cheah Company Limited, Hang Seng Bank Trustee International Limited,
Cheah Cheng Hye and To Hau Yin are deemed to be interested in these
5,095,000 H Shares under the SFO.
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Saved as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, to the
knowledge of the Directors, there were no other persons who had
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of
the Company, which were required to be notified to the Company
pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

The Company did not enter into any contract in respect of the
management and administration of the entire or any significant part
of the business nor did any such contract subsist at any time during
the year ended December 31, 2013.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended December 31, 2013, the provisions relating to
disclosure of connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules are not applicable to the Company, as the Company had not
been listed on the Stock Exchange as at December 31, 2013. As at
the date of this report, the Company has entered into the following
continuing connected transactions.

The Company entered into a general services framework agreement
with Poly Group on February 14, 2014, pursuant to which the
Company will from time to time provide Poly Group and/or its
associates with certain types of services, mainly including exhibition
service, theatre management service, art appreciation activity service
and general service.

The Company entered into a commodities sale and purchase
framework agreement with Poly Group on February 14, 2014, pursuant
to which the Company may from time to time sell commodities, mainly
including art products and theatre tickets to Poly Group and/or its
associates.

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
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The Company entered into a property lease framework agreement with
Poly Group on February 14, 2014, pursuant to which the Company
may lease properties from Poly Group and/or its associates for the
purpose of office premises, cinema operation, theatre operation,
auction business operation and ancillary service.

The Company entered into a cinema box office income sharing
framework agreement with Poly Group on February 14, 2014, pursuant
to which Poly Group and/or its associates will provide new film prints
to our Group and our Group will then arrange movie screening in our
cinemas. Both parties agree to split the net cinema box office income
generated from the movie screening based on the pre-agreed sharing
percentage. In turn, Poly Group and/or its associates may then further
share the revenue generated from such split with movie distributors
and producers pursuant to separate agreements among themselves.

For details about the above-mentioned connected transactions, please
see the Company’s Prospectus.

Details relating to the Company’s connected transactions as of
December 31, 2014 will be disclosed in the Company’s next annual
report.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

For the year ended December 31, 2013, the disclosure requirements
relating to business competing with the Controlling Shareholder under
Rule 8.10(2) of the Listing Rules were not applicable to the Company,
as the Company had not been listed on the Stock Exchange as of
December 31, 2013.
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EEEHE

Poly Group, the Controlling Shareholder of the Company, signed a non-
competition undertaking on February 14, 2014 (the “Non-competition
Undertaking”). Pursuant to the Non-competition Undertaking, Poly
Group irrevocably undertaken that it would not and will procure
that its associates (except any members of our Group) would not,
directly or indirectly, whether as principal or agent, either on their
own account or in conjunction with or on behalf of any person, firm
or company, whether inside or outside the PRC, among other things,
carry on, engage, participate or hold any right or interest in or render
any services to or otherwise be involved in any business which is in
competition with the business of any member of our Group from time
to time. Poly Group has also undertaken to our Company that, if there
is any new business opportunity in the Restricted Business, it shall
within a reasonable period of time refer such new business opportunity
to our Company. Such business opportunity shall first be offered and
made available to us. Poly Group shall not invest, participate, be
engaged in and/or operate in such business opportunity unless the
Company has declined in writing or failed to respond within thirty (30)
days after being notified of such opportunity.

For details about the above-mentioned Non-competition Undertaking,
please see the Company’s Prospectus.

Details relating to the compliance of the Company’s Controlling
Shareholder with the Non-competition Undertaking as of December
31, 2014 will be disclosed in the Company’s next annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHT, SHARE OPTION
ARRANGEMENTS

During the year ended December 31, 2013, Shareholders of the
Company have no pre-emptive right or any share option arrangements
in accordance with applicable PRC laws and the Articles.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

During the year ended December 31, 2013, no contracts of
significance in respect of provision of services or otherwise were
entered into between the Company or its Subsidiaries and the
Controlling Shareholder or its Subsidiaries.

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
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Report from the Board of Directors

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and so far as
the Directors are aware, not less than 25% of the issued share capital
of the Company was held by the public as at the Latest Practicable
Date, which was in compliance with the requirements under the Listing
Rules.

MATERIAL LITIGATION

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus, the Company was not involved
in any material litigation or arbitration during the year ended December
31, 2013. So far as the Directors are aware, there is no litigation or
claims which are pending or threatened against the Company as at
the Latest Practicable Date.

AUDIT OF ANNUAL RESULTS

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended December 31, 2013, including the accounting principles and
practices adopted, have been reviewed by the Audit Committee under
the Board of Directors of the Company together with the external
auditors.

By Order of the Board of Directors
Chen Hongsheng
Chairman of the Board of Directors
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Report from the Board of Supervisors
EEERE

The Board of Supervisors was re-elected upon approval by the Fifth
Extraordinary General Meeting 2013 of the Company convened on
December 27, 2013, and consists of three Supervisors.

In 2013, the Board of Supervisors of the Company, for the sake
of long-term interests of the Company and rights and interests of
Shareholders, dutifully supervised the performance of duties by
Directors and senior management personnel of the Company in strict
accordance with laws including PRC Company Law, regulations,
rules and normative documents, the Articles and Rules of Procedure
for Meetings of the Board of Supervisors of Poly Culture Group
Corporation Limited. Following is a report on the principal work during
the reporting period:

I. MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS

On March 25, 2018, the first Board of Supervisors convened its
sixth meeting and deliberated and approved Proposal on Work
Report 2012 of the Board of Supervisors, Proposal on Financial
Reports 2010-2012 and Proposal on Recommending Liu Jianming
as Supervisor Candidate of the First Board of Supervisors of Poly
Culture.

On September 27, 20183, the first Board of Supervisors convened
its seventh meeting and deliberated and approved Proposal on
Financial Reports for the Recent Three Years and the Latest
Financial Report of the Company.

On December 16, 2013, the first Board of Supervisors convened
its eighth meeting and deliberated and approved Proposal on Re-
election of the Board of Supervisors.

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
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Report from the Board of Supervisors

II. WORK OF THE BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS

Principal work of the Board of Supervisors is:

1.

Examine the lawful operation of the Company

During the reporting period, Supervisors attended all the
general meetings convened by the Company, were present
at all the meetings convened by the Board of Directors, and
reviewed the proposals submitted to the Board of Directors.
At the relevant meetings, Supervisors supervised the decision-
making process regarding major issues and the performance
of duties by Directors and senior management personnel, and
participated in and supervised various links of Listing of the
Company. The Board of Supervisors holds that the decisions
on major issues were made legally and that all Directors and
senior management personnel of the Company are dutiful
and diligent at work and strictly implement resolutions of
the general meeting in the principle of legal operation and
prudent decision-making, and neither violate laws, regulations
or Articles nor damage the interests of the Company and
Shareholders in performing duties.

Examine the financial information of the
Company

During the reporting period, the Board of Supervisors reviewed
relevant financial data of the Company and affiliates and
financial reports with regard to the Company and affiliates.
The Board of Supervisors holds that accounts and financial
accounting of the Group comply with applicable accounting
standard, and does not find any problems regarding the
aforesaid issues.
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Report from the Board of Supervisors

EEgRE
3. Strengthen building of internal control of the 3. IEARIAIPEFERER
Company

During the reporting period, the Board of Supervisors
participated in the building of the internal control system
of the Company. As required by Poly Group, the Company
conducted an independent evaluation on the internal control,
and formed Self-evaluation Reports of Internal Control, and
as required by regulatory requirements of the Company’s
Listing venue, upgraded and improved the internal control
and management system of the Company. The Board of

BERAN  EES2ET QA A EES
BRERTIE - QAR ESIEIREE
117 BIRIRY - oA CARERE S B BATHE
HE) ARERAR LEHHEEENR -
HARA AT ERGIEHETT EMET
E-EFEeRALAAFENRRE
BRIERARERELEET T RIEME
B R T RENEIRKF - HBREE

Supervisors holds that the building of the aforesaid internal MR ks S o
control system has laid a benign foundation for the Company’s
overall operation, improved the corporate management level

and enhanced the corporate risk resistance capability.

Liu Juncai EE2TE
Chairman of the Board of Supervisors 2B

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company’s Shares have been listed on the Stock Exchange since
March 6, 2014. As the Company was not listed as of December 31,
2013, Corporate Governance Code does not apply to the Company
during the reporting period, but has applied to the Company since
the Listing Date.

The Company and its Subsidiaries are committed to maintaining high-
level corporate governance to protect the interests of Shareholders
and improve the corporate value and accountability. From the Listing
Date to the date of this report, the Company has complied with all
the code provisions in Corporate Governance Code in Appendix 14
of the Listing Rules and adopted most of the recommended best
practices therein.

Corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are
summarized below:

1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
1.1 Composition of the Board of Directors
During the reporting period, the Board of Directors
comprised nine Directors, including four executive Directors,
two non-executive Directors and three independent non-

executive Directors. Listed below are incumbent Directors
of the Company:

Name Position

Chen Hongsheng Chairman and executive Director
Li Nan

Zhang Zhengao

Vice chairman and executive Director
Executive Director
Jiang Yingchun Chief Executive Officer and

executive Director

Wang Lin Non-executive Director
Zhao Zigao Non-executive Director
Li Bogian Independent non-executive Director
Li Xiaohui Independent non-executive Director
Yip Wai Ming Independent non-executive Director
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From the Listing Date of the Company to the date of
this report, the Board of Directors has complied with
the requirement of the Listing Rules on appointment of
at least three independent non-executive Directors, who
shall jointly account for at least one third of members of
the Board of Directors and at least one of whom shall
have relevant professional qualifications, or accounting or
relevant financial management expertise. The qualifications
of the three independent non-executive Directors of the
Company fully comply with Rules 3.10 (1) and (2) of the
Listing Rules.

None of the independent non-executive Directors of the
Company has any business or financial interests in the
Company and its subsidiaries, nor do they hold any
executive positions in the Company, which effectively
guaranteed their independence. The Company has received
from each of the independent non-executive Directors an
annual confirmation of their independence as per Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. As at the Latest Practicable Date, the
Company is of the opinion that all the independent non-
executive Directors are independent as per Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.

The term of office of the independent non-executive
Directors Mr. Li Bogian, Ms. Li Xiaohui and Mr. Yip Wai
Ming shall be three years as from December 27, 2013.

The term of office of the non-executive Directors Mr.
Wang Lin and Mr. Zhao Zigao shall be three years as
from December 27, 2013. The details of the Directors’
resumes are set out in pages 64 to 66 of this report.
Members of the Board of Directors do not have any
relations between each other (including financial, business,
family or other material or related relations). The Board
of Directors is well-balanced in structure and each of
its members is knowledgeable, richly experienced and
talented in the business operation and development of
the Company. All the Directors understand their joint and
several responsibilities for Shareholders of the Company.

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2013
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1.2 Board Meetings 1.2

The Board of Directors plans to hold Board meetings
regularly: at least four meetings per year and roughly on a
quarterly basis. A notice of a regular Board meeting shall
be delivered to all the Directors at least 14 days in advance
for them to arrange the attendance for the meeting, with
the matters to be discussed specified in agenda of the
meeting.

A Board meeting shall be attended by more than half of the
Directors. Directors shall personally attend the meeting. In
the event that any Director is unable to attend a meeting for
any reason, he may appoint another Director by a written
power of attorney.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Board
of Directors held six meetings in total, with details of the
attendance of Directors specified as follows:
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Meetings

attended/meetings

to be attended

Name Position CHEXRE, Attendance rate
HE Bif AHERE HE=R
Chen Hongsheng  Chairman and Executive Director 6/6 100%
R A4 EERFWITES

Li Nan Vice Chairman and Executive Director 6/6 100%
] BEERFAVNITES

Zhang Zhengao Executive Director 6/6 100%
&A= WITESE

Jiang Yingchun Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director 6/6 100%
EESUESS BRATERWITES

Wang Lin™ Non-executive Director 5/5 100%
FHRO FHITES

Zhao Zigao Non-executive Director 6/6 100%
HFm HEHITES

Li Bogian @ Independent non-executive Director N/A N/A
FEHO BIERITES AN B ANiE
Li Xiaohui Independent non-executive Director 6/6 100%
FREE BYIEHITES

Yip Wai Ming @ Independent non-executive Director N/A N/A
EigHpe BIERITES N3 B e A
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1.3

Note:

1. Mr. Wang Lin was appointed on March 25, 2013.
Subsequent to his appointment, only five Board meetings
were convened for the year ended December 31, 2013.

2. Mr. Li Bogian and Mr. Yip Wai Ming were appointed on
December 27, 2013. Subsequent to their appointment, no
Board meeting was convened for the year ended December
31, 2018.

Functions and powers exercised by the
Board of Directors and the management

The rights and duties of the Board of Directors and
the management are specified in the Articles, so as to
guarantee an adequate balance and restriction mechanism
for the excellent governance and internal control of the
Company.

The Board of Directors shall be responsible for determining
the Company’s operation plans and investment programs
and the setting of its internal management organizations,
formulating basic management system of the Company and
hearing Chief Executive Officer’s work report and examining
the work thereof.

The Board of Directors admits that it is the common
responsibility of all Directors to perform the duty of
corporate governance, including:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(¢) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to the
Company’s Directors, Supervisors and employees;
and

(d) to review the Company’s compliance with Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in the corporate
governance report.

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2013
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Positions of the chairman and the chief executive officer
(chief executive officer under relevant rules of the Listing
Rules) of the Company are served by different persons to
secure independence of their duties and accountabilities
and balanced distribution of rights and authorizations.
Mr. Chen Hongsheng serves as chairman of the Board of
Directors and Mr. Jiang Yingchun serves as chief executive
officer. The Articles defines duties of the chairman and the
chief executive officer.

Directors’ Appointment and Re-election

According to the Articles, Directors shall be elected at the
general meetings. A Director shall serve a term of office no
longer than three years and is eligible for re-election. The
Company has implemented a set of effective procedures
for appointment of new Directors. The nomination of new
Directors shall be first deliberated by the Nomination
Committee and then submitted to the Board of Directors,
subject to the approval by the general meeting.

Board Diversity Policy

In accordance with the latest amendment and requirements
of Corporate Governance Code in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules by the Stock Exchange, the Company
prepared Board Diversity Policy of Poly Culture Group
Corporation Limited, which has been submitted to the
Board of Directors for examination and approval, as
summarized below:

1.4

1.5

1.6
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1.7

The Board Diversity Policy (the “Policy”) of the Company
specifies that in designing the composition the Board
of Directors, Board diversity shall be considered from a
number of aspects, including but not limited to age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience,
skills and knowledge. All Board members’ appointment
will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity of the Board of Directors. Selection
of Director candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
culture, race and educational background, professional

experience, knowledge and skills.

The Nomination Committee will disclose the composition
of the Board of Directors in Corporate Governance Report
every year and supervise the implementation of this Policy.
The Nomination Committee will review this Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of this Policy. The
Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions that may
be required, and recommend any such revisions to the
Board of Directors for examination and approval.

Emoluments of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management and Five Highest Paid
Individuals

Emoluments of Directors, Supervisors and senior
management shall be proposed by the Remuneration and
Assessment Committee based on educational background
and work experience, and upon approval by the general
meeting, be determined by the Board of Directors with
reference to Director’s experience, work performance and
position as well as the market.

Details of emoluments of Directors, Supervisors and five
highest paid individuals of the Company are set out in
Notes 9 and 10 to the financial statements of this report.

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
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For the year ended December 31, 2013, the emoluments
of the senior management of the Group (excluding the
Directors of the Company) fell within the following bands:

Emolument bands: Number of individuals
HK$0 — HK$1,000,000 5
1.8 Training for Directors

All Directors participated in the training in relation to the
Listing of the Company in 2013. The Company plans to
continue to provide relevant trainings to all the Directors
in 2014 to ensure that they obtain the comprehensive
information they need to make the contribution to the
Board of Directors.

1.9 Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management’s
Liability Insurance

The Company has bought Directors, Supervisors and senior
management’s liability insurance for any legal action that
Directors, Supervisors and senior management may face.

BOARD COMMITTEES

There are five committees under the Board of Directors, namely,
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, Remuneration and
Assessment Committee, Art Committee and Strategy Committee.

2.1 Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three Directors: Ms. Li
Xiaohui (independent non-executive Director), Mr. Yip Wai
Ming (independent non-executive Director) and Mr. Zhao
Zigao (non-executive Director). Ms. Li Xiaohui currently
serves as the chairlady of the Audit Committee.
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TR \Aﬁﬂ:

The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee B ZEENIZRERATHRER
are reviewing and supervising our financial reporting BMNTBRREF  EPEIE: R
procedures, including making proposals on appointing B FSEMINEREE ETAD - BEE R T
or changing the external auditors; supervising the WAHETHEREERE : BEAN
Company’s internal audit system and its implementation; ERTREINBEFT M 2 ERER B
communication between the internal auditors and ZUBEEREEE  EE QRN
external auditors; auditing the financial information and THIRG HEABERZHETE
its disclosure; reviewing the Company’s internal control i IRBNEEHFINEEA E
system and auditing the significant connected transactions; EERENAEMER -

nominating the heads of the internal audit department; and
other matters that the Board of Directors has authorized

it to deal with.
During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Audit REZE2013F12A31 B LFE » F|at
Committee held one meeting, the details of which are as ZEgHEAR—Rg®E  ABOT:
follows:
The first meeting of the Audit Committee of the first session 201835 2H4H - RAXLE—JEE
of the Board of Directors of Poly Culture for 2013 was FeHTLECEM013FE—ANE
convened on February 4, 2013. Attendance: & gRmb BB AL
Meetings
attended/Meetings
eligible to attend
Name Position BHEXRE ~ Attendance Rate
] B A R E HER
Li Xiaohui Independent non-executive Director 1/1 100%
TBRE B IERITES
Yip Wai Ming Note Independent non-executive Director N/A N/A
EiZaEH B IERITES TEA T EA
Zhao Zigao Non-executive Director 11 100%
iRt FHITES
Note: Mr. Yip Wai Ming was appointed on December 27, 2013. o HEAESEMEAREA2013F12
Subsequent to his appointment, no meeting of the Audit A27H - REEREZ % REZE
Committee was convened for the year ended December 31, 2013F12A31H L FEWNEBHAE
2013. BELEEE

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2013
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The Audit Committee of the Company directed and
supervised the Company’s internal audit department,
considered and approved the appointment of the domestic
and international auditors and the Financial Reports of the
Company from 2010 to 2012, recognised the connected
transactions of the Company from 2010 to 2012, and
submitted the above proposals to the Board of Directors
for their consideration.

The Audit Committee of the Company has reviewed the
Company’s annual results for 2013, and the financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2013 in
accordance with the International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”).

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Company consists of
three Directors: Mr. Li Bogian (independent non-executive
Director), Mr. Zhang Zhengao (executive Director) and Ms.
Li Xiaohui (independent non-executive Director). Mr. Li
Bogian currently serves as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The primary responsibilities of the Company’s Nomination
Committee are preparing the procedures and criteria for
determining the candidates for the Directors and senior
management of the Company and conducting preliminary
review on their qualifications and credentials, including
proposing to the Board on its size and composition in
accordance with the Company’s operating results, assets
and shareholding structure; reviewing the procedures and
criteria for determining the candidates for the Directors
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company and make
proposals to the Board of Directors; and looking widely for
the qualified candidates for the Directors.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Nomination
Committee held one meeting, the details of which are as
follows:

2.2

SRERRE

ARAMBEALZEGHRENEERA
NEEAIFIIE BSFRBTHR
A K Bl B 2R 5T AD 6Y BE 4F f120105F =
20126 AR BmE - R T R A
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2.3

The first meeting of the Nomination Committee of the first
session of the Board of Directors of Poly Culture for 2013
was convened on February 4, 2013. Attendance:

2013%F2R4H  RFAIXILE—REE
EERBEEE0I13EFE—Ne%]

B - B HERRAE

Meetings
attended/Meetings
eligible to attend

Name Position EHEXE ~ Attendance Rate
HE Bif AHERE HE=R
Mr. Li Bogian Nt Independent non-executive Director N/A N/A
AR ES BUFERITEE T3 A i A
Mr. Zhang Zhengao Executive Director

Rk L WITES 1/1 100%
Ms. Li Xiaohui Independent non-executive Director

THRELT BIIERITES 1/1 100%

Note: Mr. Li Bogian was appointed on December 27, 2013.
Subsequent to his appointment, no meeting of the
Nomination Committee was convened for the year ended
December 31, 2013.

Remuneration and Assessment Committee

The Remuneration and Assessment Committee consists
of three Directors: Mr. Yip Wai Ming (independent non-
executive Director), Ms. Li Xiaohui (independent non-
executive Director) and Mr. Jiang Yingchun (executive
Director). Mr. Yip Wai Ming currently serves as the chairman
of the Remuneration and Assessment Committee.

The Company has adopted the model recommended by
the Remuneration and Assessment Committee to the Board
of Directors to recommend the remuneration packages of
executive Directors, Supervisors and senior management.

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2013
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The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration and
Assessment Committee are formulating the criteria for
and conducting assessment on the Directors and senior
management as well as determining and reviewing the
remuneration policies and plans for the Directors and senior
management, including formulating remuneration plans and
proposals in accordance with the terms of reference of the
Directors and senior management and the importance of
their positions as well as the remuneration benchmarks for
the relevant positions in other comparable companies; the
remuneration plans and proposals include, but not limited
to criteria, procedures and main assessment system for
performance assessment, main proposals and regulations
on award and punishment; reviewing the performance of
the Directors and senior management and conducting
annual assessment on their performance and results;
supervising the implementation of the remuneration policies
of the Company; and other matters that the Board of
Directors has authorized it to deal with.

No meeting of the Remuneration and Assessment
Committee was convened for the year ended December
31, 2013.

Art Committee
The Art Committee of the Company consists of three

Jiang
Bogian

Directors: Mr. Li Nan (executive Director), Mr.
and Mr. Li

(independent non-executive Director). Mr. Li Nan currently

Yingchun (executive Director)

serves as the chairman of the Art Committee.

2.4
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2.5

The primary responsibilities of the Art Committee are:
conducting research and making proposals on the plans
for investments and operation of the Company in culture
and arts; conducting research and making proposals on
important projects which involve culture and arts and need
to be approved by the Board of Directors pursuant to the
Articles; conducting research and making proposals on
important projects of significant international influence;
conducting research and making proposals on the projects
for which the management consider necessary to obtain
the opinions of the Art Committee; presenting suggestions
and proposals directly to the Board of Directors if the Art
Committee consider it necessary; and other matters that
the Board of Directors has authorized it to deal with.

No meeting of the Art Committee was convened for the
year ended December 31, 2013.

Strategy Committee

The Strategy Committee of the Company consists of five
Directors: Mr. Chen Hongsheng (executive Director), Mr.
Li Nan (executive Director), Mr. Zhang Zhengao (executive
Director), Mr. Wang Lin (non-executive Director) and Mr.
Jiang Yingchun (executive Director). Mr. Chen Hongsheng
currently serves as the chairman of the Strategy Committee.

The primary duties of the Strategy Committee are: to
consider and make recommendations on the strategic plan
for the Company’s long-term development; to consider and
make recommendations on the material investments and
financing plans, subject to the Board of Directors’ approval,
in accordance with the Articles of Association; to consider
and make recommendations on material capital operation
and asset operating project, which are subject to the Board
of Directors’ approval, in accordance with the Articles of
Association; to consider and make recommendations on
other material matters that will affect the development
of the Company; to review the implementation of above
matters; and other matters that the Board of Directors has
authorized it to deal with.

No meeting of the Strategy Committee was convened for
the year ended December 31, 2013.

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Directors has confirmed its responsibility for
preparing annual financial statements of the Company as of
December 31, 2013.

The Board of Directors is responsible for submitting a well-
defined assessment on the interim and annual reports, stock
price sensitive information, and other matters that need
to be disclosed according to the Listing Rules and other
regulatory provisions. The management has provided relevant
and necessary explanation and information to the Board of
Directors so that the Board of Directors could make informed
assessment on the financial data and position of the Company
for examination and approval.

The Company does not face any significant uncertainty likely to
give rise to the significant doubt of the Company’s capability of
sustained operations.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE
FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as the code for all Directors and
Supervisors to conduct transactions of the Company’s securities.
The Company has also set guidelines, at least as strict as the
Model Code, on transactions of the Company’s securities for
relevant employees (as defined in the Listing Rules). As the
Company was not listed on the Stock Exchange as of December
31, 2013, related rules under the Listing Rules concerning the
Model Code that Directors shall observe do not apply to the
Company for the year ended December 31, 2013.

The Company has made specific inquiries to all Directors and
Supervisors about their compliance with the Model Code,
and they all confirmed that they complied with the standards
specified in the Model Code from the Listing Date to the date
of this report.

3.
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The Company has made specific inquiries of relevant employees
about their compliance with the guidelines on transactions of
the Company’s securities, without noticing any violation of the
guidelines.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

To maintain sound corporate governance practices and
guarantee the compliance with the Listing Rules and applicable
laws, the Company appointed Mr. Chen Peng and Ms. Yung
Mei Yee as the joint company secretaries. Ms. Yung Mei Yee
will assist Mr. Chen Peng in performing his duties as company
secretary of the Company. Mr. Chen Peng is the main contact
person of the Company.

The joint company secretaries, Mr. Chen Peng and Ms. Yung Mei
Yee participated in the listing training of the Company in 2013.
The Company plans to continue to provide relevant training to
the joint company secretaries in 2014 in order to make sure that
they can meet the requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Directors of the Company understand that the Board of
Directors shall be responsible for maintaining adequate internal
control system to safeguard the investment of Shareholders and
assets of the Company and reviewing the effectiveness of the
system.

The Board of Directors has examined the effectiveness of internal
control system of the Company, believing that the internal control
system is effective and adequate.

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2013
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION 7.

For the year ended December 31, 2013, the remuneration
to external auditor in respect of its annual audit services
and reporting accountant service fees to the Listing were
approximately RMB5.29 million. There was no non-audit service
provided by the external auditor for the year ended December

31, 2013.
GENERAL MEETINGS 8.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company

N 'M\Aiﬁﬂ:

BB ET B &

HZE2013F12A81H I FE » SiFEET
AR 765 K b T AR B FR SRR AT R AR 7S B A SIS R
STRREN & 40 B AR BEBE208 T - # 220134
12A31B IEFE - HNEFEFHRI I R IBHEIE
B R -

BRERRE

RNEZE2013F12A31B IEFE - ARAFAH

convened six general meetings, as detailed below: BRETHANRBRRERE  BERAT
Time &M Venue it % Meetings &3

March 25, 2013 Meeting room on Floor 28 of the New Poly Plaza in Beiing  General meeting 2012

2013F3A25H ERTHRAIAELBEGHEE 012FEREAE

May 11, 2013 Meeting room on Floor 25 of the New Poly Plaza in Beiing  The first extraordinary general meeting 2013
2013%5A11H ERTHRAIAE2LEGRE 2013 F—RERREAS

June 24, 2013 Meeting room on Floor 28 of the New Poly Plaza in Beiing ~ The second extraordinary general meeting 2013
201346 A24H ERTHRMNAE28EGHAE 013 FRBRREAE

July 10, 2013 Meeting room on Floor 25 of the New Poly Plaza in Beiing  The third extraordinary general meeting 2013
2013%7A10H ERTHMRMNAEBEGAE 013FF=-RERRRAE

September 27, 2013 Meeting room on Floor 25 of the New Poly Plaza in Beiing  The fourth extraordinary general meeting 2013
2013%9A27H ERTHMRMNAEBEGAE 2013 EMRGRREAE

December 27, 2013 Meeting room on Floor 25 of the New Poly Plaza in Beiing  The fifth extraordinary general meeting 2013
2013F12427H ERTMRMNAE2BEGAE 013FERRGERRRAE

RFZACEBRDERAE
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Attendance by Directors:

SR LEB R

Meetings

attended/meetings

eligible to attend
EHEXRE - Attendance rate

Name # & Position Bifx Al R E HE=R
Chen Hongsheng Chairman and Executive Director

PRt EERFRUNTES 6/6 100%
Li Nan Vice Chairman and Executive Director

ZFE BEERFARNTES 6/6 100%
Zhang Zhengao Executive Director

SRR WITES 6/6 100%
Jiang Yingchun Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

EESUESS BRAITERNITES 6/6 100%
Wang Lin Non-executive Director

EH FRITES 6/6 100%
Zhao Zigao Non-executive Director

izt FEHITES 6/6 100%
Li Bogian Mot Independent non-executive Director

FasH BIERITES 1/1 100%
Li Xiaohui Independent non-executive Director

FER BIIERITES 6/6 100%
Yip Wai Ming Mot Independent non-executive Director

TR BIIERITES 1/1 100%

Note: Mr. Li Bogian and Mr. Yip Wai Ming were elected as Directors of the
Company at the fifth Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company
for 2013 held on December 27, 2013.

9. COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company continuously attaches great importance to
maintaining and developing investor relations for a long time,
enhances transparency of the corporate information by promptly
and effectively releasing the corporate information to the public,
and has established effective channels for the Company to
communicate with the investor.

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
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9.1 Shareholders’ Rights

Where the Company convenes a general meeting, a notice
of the meeting in written form or in electronic form (by
posting on, including but not limited to, the website of
the Stock Exchange and the website of the Company,
same below) shall be given not less than 45 days before
the date of the meeting to notify all of the Shareholders in
the Shareholders’ register of the matters to be considered
and the date and venue of the meeting to be held. Any
Shareholder intending to attend the meeting shall deliver
to the Company a written reply showing his/her intention
to attend at least 20 days before the meeting.

Shareholder(s) holding more than 10% of the Company’s
Shares, individually or jointly, shall have the right to request
the Board of Directors in writing to convene an extraordinary
general meeting or a class general meeting. The Board of
Directors shall provide its written feedback on agreeing or
disagreeing to convene an extraordinary general meeting
or a class general meeting within 10 days after receiving
the proposal in accordance with the provisions of laws,
administrative regulations and the Articles.

If the Board of Directors agrees to convene an extraordinary
general meeting or a class general meeting, a notice of
general meeting shall be issued within five days after the
resolution of the Board of Directors meeting is made. The
changes to the original proposal in the notice shall be
subject to consent of the Shareholders who make the said
proposal.

If the Board of Directors disagrees to convene an
extraordinary general meeting or a class general meeting
or fails to make any feedback within 10 days after receiving
the proposal, Shareholder(s) holding more than 10% of
the Company’s shares, individually or jointly, shall have
the right to request the Board of Supervisors in writing
to convene an extraordinary general meeting or a class
general meeting.

N 'M\Aiﬁﬂ:
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9.2 Inquiry and Communication of Shareholders

The Company releases its announcements,
financial data and other relevant data on its website
www.polyculture.com.cn, which serves as a channel
facilitating effective communication. The Shareholders
may send any inquiry in writing to the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong. The Company will properly
handle all inquiries in time.

The Board of Directors welcomes suggestions from
Shareholders, and encourages Shareholders to attend
general meetings to directly express misgivings that they
may have to the Board of Directors and the management.
Usually, the chairman of the Board of Directors and the
chairmen of respective committees would attend annual
general meetings and other general meetings to answer
questions put forward by Shareholders.

Detailed voting procedure and resolutions voted on are set
out in the Shareholders’ circulars.

10.INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers it crucial to provide investors
with accurate information in a timely manner and maintain
communication with investors through effective communication
channels, with an aim to enhance mutual understanding between
investors and the Company and improve the transparency of the
Company’s information disclosure.

In accordance with the Listing Rules, the Company shall duly
disseminate its corporate information via various channels.
Such channels include annual reports, announcements and
company website. After formal announcement of its results in
accordance with the Listing Rules, the Company will arrange for
meetings during which the management will answer questions
from investors. The Company will meet overseas investors and
facilitate communication with them through analysts’ conference
and roadshows. The Company has communicated with domestic
and overseas investors through roadshows and analysts’
conferences prior to the Listing.

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
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11. ARTICLES AND AMENDMENTS

The Articles of the Company took effect on the Listing Date.
From the Listing Date to the date of this report, there were
no significant changes in the Articles of the Company except
for the necessary amendments to the Articles by the Board of
Directors with the authorization from the Second Extraordinary
General Meeting for 2013 held on June 24, 2013 (including the
amendments to the clauses concerning the Company’s share
capital according to the exercise of over-allotment option and
the clauses concerning the quarterly financial statements). Details
are set out in the announcement published by the Company on
March 28, 2014.

The Articles of the Company are available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange for information disclosure and the Company.

11.
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Profile of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

ES ESERSREEAEHN

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Hongsheng, aged 64, joined the Company in December
2010 and has been the chairman of the Board of Directors since then.
Mr. Chen also serves as a director of Poly (Hong Kong) Holdings
Limited, the executive director of Poly Property Group Co., Ltd., and
a director of Poly Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. Mr. Chen holds a bachelor
degree in Remote Radio Control & Telemetry and qualification as a
senior economist.

Mr. Li Nan, aged 58, joined the Company in January 2000 and
served as a Director and general manager of our Company from
January 2000 to November 2010. Mr. Li has been the vice chairman
of our Company since December 2010. Mr. Li is also a director of
Poly Theatre Management and Poly Film, the head of the China
Philharmonic Orchestra, the vice president of Beijing Association for
Performances and a director of Chinese Musicians Association. Mr.
Li holds a postgraduate equivalent degree in Business Management
and used to study violin performance and composition in the People’s
Liberation Army Institute of Arts. He also holds the qualification of level
Il stage designer.

Mr. Zhang Zhengao, aged 51, joined the Company in April 2003 as
a Director. Mr. Zhang is currently a director and general manager of
Poly Group, chairman of Poly Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. and a director
of Poly Real Estate. Mr. Zhang holds a doctor degree in Economics as
well as qualification as a senior economist and a senior accountant.

Mr. Jiang Yingchun, aged 45, joined the Company in December
2001, and is an executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. Mr. Jiang served as Assistant to General Manager from
December 2001 to February 2007, and vice general manager from
February 2007 to November 2010. Mr. Jiang has been the Chief
Executive Officer and an executive Director since December 2010. Mr.
Jiang is currently the chairman of Poly Auction Beijing, chairman of
Poly Auction Hong Kong, chairman and general manager of Poly Art
Centre, a director and general manager of Poly Art Investment and the
chairman of Poly Film. Mr. Jiang holds a bachelor degree in History
majoring in Archaeology and qualification as an editor.
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Lin, aged 50, joined the Company in March 2013 and has
been a non-executive Director since then. Mr. Wang also serves as
the vice general manager of Poly Group, a director of Poly Energy
Holdings Limited, the chairman of Poly Mining Investment Co., Ltd.,
and the chairman of Sino Africa Investment and Development Co., Ltd.
(FhIEIR & 2R AR A 7). Mr. Wang holds a master degree in Literature.

Mr. Zhao Zigao, aged 51, joined the Company in November 2007 and
has been a non-executive Director since then. Mr. Zhao is also head
of the corporate development department of Poly Group, a director
of Poly Property Group Co., Ltd., and a director of Poly Investment
Holding Co., Ltd.. Mr. Zhao holds a master degree in Economics.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Boqian, aged 77, joined the Company in December 2013 and
has been an independent non-executive Director since then. Mr. Li
has been a teacher in Archaeology Department of Peking University
since 1961 and has been a professor and doctoral tutor of School
of Archaeology and Museology of Peking University since 1990 and
1996, respectively. Mr. Li holds a bachelor degree in Archaeology.

Ms. Li Xiaohui, aged 46, joined the Company in December 2010
and has been an independent non-executive Director since then.
Ms. Li has served as a professor and doctoral tutor of the School of
Accountancy of the Central University of Finance and Economics and
a member of the Professional Technology Consultancy Committee of
the Association of Registered Accountants of the PRC (&5
B & BRI HZE 8 €) since January 2007. Ms. Li is currently an
independent non-executive director of Jiangsu Welle Environmental
Co., Ltd., Kailuan Energy Chemical Co., Ltd., Beijing Orient National
Communication Science & Technology Co., Ltd., Bank of Beijing Co.,
Ltd. and China U-Ton Holdings Limited. Ms. Li holds a doctor degree
in Economics.
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Mr. Yip Wai Ming, aged 48, joined the Company in December 2013
and has been an independent non-executive Director since then.
Mr. Yip is currently an independent non-executive director of BBMG
Corporation, Ju Teng International Holdings Limited, Pax Global
Technology Limited and Far East Horizon Limited. Mr. Yip is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, an
associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Yip holds a bachelor degree in social sciences and a bachelor
degree in law.

SUPERVISORS

Mr. Liu Juncai, aged 48, joined the Company in December 2010
and has been the chairman of the Board of Supervisors since then.
Mr. Liu is also the head of the office of Poly Group, a supervisor of
Poly Real Estate, and curator of Poly Art Museum. Mr. Liu holds a
master’s equivalent degree in Business Management and qualification
as an economist.

Mr. Liu Jianmin, aged 51, joined the Company in April 2005
and has been a Supervisor since March 2013. Mr. Liu is also a
supervisor of Poly Energy Holdings Limited, a director and general
manager of Poly Mining Co., Ltd., a director of Poly Mining
International Investment Corporation Limited and a director of Poly
Mining (Asian-Pacific) Investments Co., Ltd. ((RFITEZ (T-K) BREH
FR A R]). Mr. Liu holds a bachelor degree in Artillery and qualification
as a senior economist.
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Mr. Guo Jianwei, aged 36, joined the Company in March 2011 and
has been an employee Supervisor since March 2013. Mr. Guo is also
the head of the finance department of the Company, a supervisor
of Poly Auction Beijing and a supervisor of Poly Film. Mr. Guo holds
a master degree in business administration and qualification as an
accountant.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Ren Wei, aged 54, joined the Company in August 2000 and has
been the standing Vice President of the Company since April 2013.
Mr. Ren also serves as the general counsel of the Company, chairman
of Poly Theatre Management, chairman of Poly Performing, chairman
of Forbidden City Theatre, a director of Shanghai Oriental Art Centre,
a director of Poly Auction Hong Kong and a director of Poly Auction
Beijing. Mr. Ren holds a master’s equivalent degree in Enterprise
Management.

Mr. Zhou You, aged 53, joined the Company in 2003 and has been
the Vice President of the Company since January 2003. Mr. Zhou also
serves as a director of Poly Theatre Management. Mr. Zhou holds a
bachelor degree in Literary Editing and qualification as an editor.

Mr. Liu Debin, aged 41, joined the Company in March 2011 and has
been the Vice President since March 2013. Mr. Liu also serves as a
director and general manager of Poly Film. Mr. Liu holds a bachelor
degree in Industrial Accounting and qualification as a senior economist.

Ms. Wang Wei, aged 46, joined the Company in June 2010 and
has been the Chief Financial Officer since April 2013. Ms. Wang also
serves as a director of Poly Theatre Management, a director of Poly
Auction Beijing, a director of Poly Auction Guangdong and a director
of Poly Auction Hong Kong. Ms. Wang holds her bachelor degree in
Technology of Foreign Trade and qualification as a senior accountant.

Mr. Chen Peng, aged 34, joined the Company in September 2002
and has been the secretary to the Board of Directors since December
2010. Mr. Chen is also a director of Poly Art Centre and Poly Film.
Mr. Chen holds a bachelor degree in Chrematistics and qualification
as an accountant.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B2 BEN RS

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
POLY CULTURE GROUP CORPORATION LIMITED
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Poly Culture
Group Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 70 to 180, which comprise
the consolidated and company balance sheets as at December 31,
2013, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
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Independent Auditor’s Report

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
December 31, 2013 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

March 28, 2014
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Consolidated Income Statement

BotlER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 (EXPRESSED IN RENMINBI (‘RMB”)) & 2201312 31 HIEF/E (UAREZITR)

2013 2012
20134 20124
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T ARET R AREET T
Revenue WA 4 2,002,984 1,649,915
Cost of sales $H& M2 (1,013,275) (838,105)
Gross profit E# 989,709 811,810
Other revenue E fh g A 6 23,561 43,184
Other net gain/(loss) Efthlkzs /(E518) /F58 6 4,190 (1,059
Selling and distribution expenses $5€& & 7 5 52 (213,073) (156,577)
Administrative expenses & 12 & (219,632) (180,295)
Profit from operations #&# Fi# 584,755 517,063
Finance income 817 A 28,212 24,793
Finance costs B #&A 2 7(a) (20,824) (26,779)
Profit before taxation BRF: A F| 58 7 592,143 515,077
Income tax FT{S8: 8 (142,572) (128,741)
Profit for the year & R F/;E 449,571 386,336
Profit attributable to: LA N A T FE/ERIE :
Equity shareholders of the Company 782 &) 4 2 I 58 275,209 242,170
Non-controlling interests JE#2 i %5 174,362 144,166
Profit for the year R F;H 449,571 386,336
Earnings per share SR Z |
Basic and diluted earnings per share (RMB)
BREARBERT (AREK) 11 1.67 1.47

The notes on pages 78 to 180 form part of these financial statements. 5878 = 180 B WM i iBAK 2 T MK A — &5 o
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

B RS RER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 (EXPRESSED IN RMB) &, 220134 12431 HIFFE (UA REZT)

2013 2012
20135 20124
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
iz ARBT T AR¥ETTT
Profit for the year £ R F/H 449,571 386,336
Other comprehensive income Efti4R4& W
Exchange difference on translation of financial
statements of operations outside the PRC
BERBEIEIN RV SRR E N ZE (3,329) 376
Total comprehensive income for the year
FRGERRBE 446,242 386,712
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
UTATEEGEERSEE :
Equity shareholders of the Company Zx A 7 # 25 i& 3 273,342 242,463
Non-controlling interests JE{Z I 25 172,900 144,249
Total comprehensive income for the year
FRGFEWEERE 446,242 386,712

The notes on pages 78 to 180 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

EHEERER

AT DECEMBER 31, 2013 (EXPRESSED IN RMB) iR2013F 12H31H (UAREZITR)

2013 2012
20134 20124
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T ARET R ARBFIT
Non-current assets FHREEE
Property, plant and equipment ¥1% « &= & & # 12 408,318 315,911
Long-term prepayments & 2iT8 1 FUB 4,206 4,569
Other financial assets E & @& & 100 100
Deferred tax assets BT B E &= 21(b) 4,924 2,149
Total non-current assets 3 REEELALE 417,548 322,729
Current assets "B EE
Inventories ¥ & 14 805,327 646,956
Trade and bills receivables & 5 fE W A K fE W Z 15 15 139,927 76,176
Consignor advances M {RE & 16 240,940 398,792
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables
Be - BN A EWFRIE 17 493,901 542,366
Income tax recoverable 7] 4 [El Ffr 15 %% 21(a) 636 412
Banks deposits with original maturities over three months
REE B 7E =18 A A ERYRI TR 23,900 56,015
Cash and cash equivalents 3¢ MIREEEY 18 1,004,723 903,958
Total current assets F &&= # % 2,709,354 2,624,675
Current liabilities KB & &
Loans and borrowings B} f& 5k 19 208,000 298,000
Trade and other payables & 5 K& E th & (< Z 18 20 1,314,975 1,209,882
Income tax payable FEfFT1SH: 21(a) 68,930 40,674
Total current liabilities & & B4 %8 1,591,905 1,548,556
Net current assets FREN & EF5 1,117,449 1,076,119
Total assets less current liabilities 2 & ERAEBERE 1,534,997 1,398,848
Non-current liabilities IR E &
Deferred revenue #EIEU 25 567 314
Total non-current liabilities JER B & &85 567 314
NET ASSETS EEF5 1,534,430 1,398,534

The notes on pages 78 to 180 form part of these financial statements. S 78E 180 & FIM sE B ;2 EHIERMER N — 25 -
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

EHEEREER

AT DECEMBER 31, 2013 (EXPRESSED IN RMB) iR20134F 12A31H (AAREZITR)

2013 2012
20134 20124
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B &E AR®T R ARBTT
CAPITAL AND RESERVES &K f##&

Share capital &7 22(c) 165,000 165,000
Reserves f& & 991,827 880,335

Total equity attributable to the equity

shareholders of the Company

AATEERREGEREHE 1,156,827 1,045,335
Non-controlling interests JE#E & 377,603 353,199
TOTAL EQUITY R4 %E 1,534,430 1,398,534

Approved and authorized for issue by the board of directors on March &S E =2 201443 A28 A #HLf R I% 4 1) %% -
28, 2014.

Jiang Yingchun Wang Wei
BOE S
Director Authorised Non-director
BE REFEE

The notes on pages 78 to 180 form part of these financial statements. 5578180 A MM FE B S M B MM —& 5 o
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Balance Sheet of the Company

EERER

AT DECEMBER 31, 2013 (EXPRESSED IN RMB) iR2013F 12H31H (UAREZITR)

2013 2012
20134 20124
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BT ARET ARBEFIT
Non-current assets FHREEE
Property, plant and equipment ¥ % - B&E & & & 12 3,682 4,486
Investments in subsidiaries M B A FHEE 13 308,856 259,561
Other financial assets Eth & gt & & 100 100
Total non-current assets E R EEELALE 312,638 264,147
Current assets "B EE
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables
B - TBITRIE R E M ERGRIE 17 423,841 269,300
Income tax recoverable 7] Y [@] AT 15 5% 21(a) 636 412
Cash and cash equivalents 33 & MR & EEY 18 13,504 49,358
Total current assets RENEEHFE 437,981 319,070
Current liabilities B & &
Loans and borrowings B & f& 5k 19 1,000 30,000
Trade and other payables & 5 K H {th & {~ 18 20 189,245 14,213
Total current liabilities R EI & E# %8 190,245 44,213
Net current assets FREN & EFH 247,736 274,857
Total assets less current liabilities A& ERRE & E 560,374 539,004
NET ASSETS & F5 560,374 539,004
CAPITAL AND RESERVES &4 K f# 1% 22
Share capital B 165,000 165,000
Reserves f#&f# 395,374 374,004
TOTAL EQUITY #4258 560,374 539,004

Approved and authorized for issue by the board of directors on March
28, 2014.

Jiang Yingchun
BOE
Director

EF

The notes on pages 78 to 180 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

EOERBER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 (EXPRESSED IN RMB) &, 220134 12431 HIFFE (UA REZT)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

RATERRRES
PRC Non-
Share Share Capital  statutory  Retained Exchange controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve profits reserve Total interests equity
H
Ba  RGEE EXEE  iERE  RENE ENRAE & FERER  ERAE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR
note note note note note
22(c) 22(d)(ii 22(d)() 22(d)fii) 22(d)(iv)
i3 liF3 i3 i3 i
22(c) 22(dl)(ii 22(d)() 22(d)ii) 22(d)(iv)
At January 1, 2012
1201251818 165,000 4,874 1,104 13,962 617,931 1 802,872 372,101 1,174,978
Changes in equity: E&%®:
Profit for the year A7 = = - - 242,170 - 242,170 144,166 386,336
Other comprehensive income
Eftiima s - - - - - 293 293 83 376
Total comprehensive income for the year
EREEANERT = = - - 242,170 203 242,463 144249 386,712
Capital contributions from
non-controlling equity owners
SFERERERALE - - - - - - - 21,266 21,266
Appropriation of reserve E &k = = = 26,051 (25,061) - - - -
Dividends paid by subsidiaries to
non-controlling equity owners
WELAREERERES AR ZRE - - - - - - - (184417)  (184,417)
At December 31, 2012
120125128318 165,000 4,874 1,104 39,013 835,050 294 1,045,335 353,199 1,398,534
At January 1, 2013 R2013%1A1H 165,000 4,874 1,104 39,013 835,050 294 1,045,335 353,199 1,398,534
Changes in equity: E&%®:
Profit for the year A7 - - - - 275,209 - 275209 174,362 449,571
Other comprehensive loss E A Eif - - - - - (1,867) (1,867) (1,462) (3,329)
Total comprehensive income for the year
ERfGElREE - - - - 275,209 (1,867) 273,342 172,900 446,242
Appropriation of reserve E&EE - - - 1812 (1781 - - - -
Disposal of a subsidiary &/ B2 - - (5,100) - - - (5,100) (9,095) (14,195)
Capital contributions from
non-controlling equity owners
FERERABATE - - - - - - - 2,940 2,940
Dividends proposed during the year
ERRRRE - - - - (156,750) - (156,750) - (156,750)
Dividends paid by subsidiaries to
non-controlling equity owners
WEBLRAREERERES AR ZRE - - - - - - - (142341)  (142,341)
At December 31, 2013
12013%12531H 165,000 4,874 (3,996) 56,825 935,697 (1,573) 1,156,827 377,603 1,534,430

The notes on pages 78 to 180 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BORESRER

for the year ended December 31, 2013 (Expressed in RMB) 22013412 31 H1FEE (A REZTR)

2013 2012
20135 20124
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Lz ARMEF T AR¥ETTT
Cash flows from operating activities Z& ZEFERERE
Profit before taxation B %% Afl 58 592,143 515,077
Adjustments for: FEIA NIEB fEH A%
Depreciation #T& 7(c) 39,609 24,328
Net (gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
EEME  BERRHZ (W) BiEFE 6 (2,230) 19
Impairment (recovery)/losses on trade and bills receivables
B oW IE R EWREZRE (HE), & 7(c) (90) 1,024
Impairment losses/(recovery) on deposits, prepayments and
other receivables
e -~ BT RIE RE M EWRIE 2 R EEE (e 7(c) 381 (3,129)
Interest earned from consignor advances M RE % F 28U A (21,258) (19,991)
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) [ X &8 (M) B8 8,598 (13)
Finance costs B 7% A4 7(a) 20,824 26,779
Amortization of deferred revenue i {E U &5 2 4 (317) (99)
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries &l B A 7]z Uz F58 6 (5,803) -
Changes in working capital: &E& £ &%) :
Increase in inventories 17 & & N (158,371) (108,092)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and bills receivables
H 5 BRI EE (38) R (118,572) 75,387
Decrease/(increase) in deposits, prepayments and other receivables
e - BT RIE RE M EWGRIER D (3G m) 44,249 (303,856)
Decrease in long-term prepayments = 83781+ 51 18 5 4> 363 368
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables
B 5 REMEMARIE CRd ), 1 (4,470) 207,981
Cash generated from operations & & ¥ FT3ESE 395,056 415,783
Income tax paid B P15 (117,068) (112,930)
Net cash generated from operating activities
SEEHHEREFE 277,988 302,853

The notes on pages 78 to 180 form part of these financial statements. 578180 E MM &Rk 2 EI ISIRER I — L5 ©
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BORTRER

for the year ended December 31, 2013 (Expressed in RMB) & 22013124313 1FEE (UAREZIT)

2013 2012
20135 20124
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
LiEsd ARBT T AR¥ETTT
Cash flows from investing activities REEFEHFIEREESHE
Payments for purchase of property, plant and equipment
BAME  BEREZBZTR (144,865) (157,994)
Repayment for consignor advances YWERHH @R & 157,852 209,645
Disposal of subsidiaries — net H & E AR — F58 27 872 -
Withdrawal of bank deposit with maturity over three months
FIHEA B E3ME A A £ 2 IRITFRIRER 32,115 —
Addition of bank deposit with maturity over three months
E|H3 B 7318 A LA £ 2 $RIT/F 5038 N - (47,008)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
HEME - BE RREBZASHE 11,428 434
Interest received from consignor advances B XM RE S Z 55 23,761 34,712
Net cash generated from investing activities
REFZHHMEBREFR 81,163 39,789
Cash flows from financing activities B & EEBFIERERE
Capital contributions from non-controlling equity
owners of subsidiaries i B A FIFEERE=EE AL E 2,940 21,266
Proceeds from bank loans and borrowings 81T {& & FT15 B 447,000 478,000
Repayment of borrowings €& EE (537,000) (798,000)
Dividends paid by subsidiaries to non-controlling equity owners
B A RIRFEER S R A D IRIR S (141,904) (184,123)
Payment of interest expense 3z fi & 851 5% (20,824) (27,129)
Net cash used in financing activities
mEE®mARe®®E (249,788) | (509,986)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
ReRBLEEWEM (RD) B8 109,363 (167,344)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
FNRERAECEZEY 903,958 1,070,915
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [ & & 85 £ (8,598) 387
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year F RIBELRBE L EEY 18 1,004,723 903,958

The notes on pages 78 to 180 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

RS ERAR AL

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (558550 » AN B SIT)

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND
ORGANISATION

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited (the “Company”) was
established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) on
December 14, 2010 as a joint stock company with limited
liability as part of the reorganization (the “Reorganization”) of
Poly Culture Group Co., Ltd. The Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) is mainly engaged in art business and
auction, performance and theatre management and cinema
investment and management.

On March 6, 2014, the Company became listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“HKSE”).

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual International Financial
Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards
(“IAS”) and interpretations promulgated by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on HKSE. A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 2(c) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2013
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE AR AL

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (fx5B #8550 » AN REESIT)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 BERXEHTHEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(b) FREEHRENEE

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2013 comprise the Group and the Group’s
interest in associates and a joint venture.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
IFRSs requires management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies
and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgments about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgments made by management in the application of
IFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements
and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed
in note 3.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

RS ERAR AL

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (558550 » AN B SIT)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued several amendments to IFRSs that are

first effective for the current accounting period of the Group

and the Company. Of these, the following developments

are relevant to the Group’s financial statements:

Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements -
comprehensive income

items of other

Presentation of

IFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

IFRS 11, Joint arrangements

IFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

IFRS 13, Fair value measurement

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle

Amendments to IFRS 7 — Disclosures — Offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities

The Group has not applied any new standard or

interpretation that is not yet effective for the current

accounting period. Impacts of the adoption of other new

or amended IFRSs are discussed below:

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited

Annual Report 2013

2 BEXRSHEEME (&)

(c)

B BRER

REMENESEERME THEE
RE B EEMER]  HERAK
BRAARNEMETHEERE
Mo Hep o UTEREERAREEN
BIFS ¥R ARRA -

o BIRESERFIRANIEE - B
Bz 25 — Etpar G AR
B 25

o BIRMBWEEAFI0M - 4
BMB®RE

o BIRMBmMEELFE115 - £F
ZHE

o BB MEENFI2%R N
HEMEE R E

s HBERMBBEEREIZR - 2
nEEFE

o 2009F E2011FREARN 2 B
W RE R 2 FEMHE

. IR B 5 o 2R FTH A 2
A-RE-2REENRERA
182 i

AEERERN S HRLERBEMA
R R R F RS2 1 - BRANE At
el SARIE AT B BIBR B 75 3 5 ZE A &Y
FERAWT



o faf

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE AR AL

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (fx5B #8550 » AN REESIT)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 BEARSTHEHME (8)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(c) BTBXREE (&)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial statements
— Presentation of items of other comprehensive income

The amendments require entities to present separately
the items of other comprehensive income that would be
reclassified to profit or loss in the future if certain conditions
are met from those that would never be reclassified to profit
or loss. The presentation of other comprehensive income
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in
these financial statements has been modified accordingly.

IFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

IFRS 10 replaces the requirements in IAS 27, Consolidated

and separate financial statements relating to the
preparation of consolidated financial statements and SIC
12 Consolidation — Special purpose entities. It introduces
a single control model to determine whether an investee
should be consolidated, by focusing on whether the entity
has power over the investee, exposure or rights to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and the ability

to use its power to affect the amount of those returns.

As a result of the adoption of IFRS 10, the Group has
changed its accounting policy with respect to determining
whether it has control over an investee. The adoption does
not change any of the control conclusions reached by the
Group in respect of its involvement with other entities as
at 1 January 2013.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

RS ERAR AL

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (558550 » AN B SIT)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2 BEXRSHEEME (&)

(c) EFHEREE (&)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

IFRS 11, Joint arrangements

IFRS 11, which replaces IAS 31, Interests in joint ventures,
divides joint arrangements into joint operations and joint
ventures. Entities are required to determine the type of
an arrangement by considering the structure, legal form,
contractual terms and other facts and circumstances
relevant to their rights and obligations under the
arrangement. Joint arrangements which are classified
as joint operations under IFRS 11 are recognized on a
line-by-line basis to the extent of the joint operator’s
interest in the joint operation. All other joint arrangements
are classified as joint ventures under IFRS 11 and are
required to be accounted for using the equity method in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements. Proportionate
consolidation is no longer allowed as an accounting policy
choice.

As a result of the adoption of IFRS 11, the Group has
changed its accounting policy with respect to its interests
in joint arrangements and re-evaluated its involvement
in its joint arrangements. The Group has reclassified the
investment from joint controlled entities to joint ventures.
The investment continues to be accounted for using the
equity method and therefore this reclassification does not
have any material impact on the financial position and the
financial result of the Group.

IFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

IFRS 12 brings together into a single standard all the
disclosure requirements relevant to an entity’s interests
in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and
unconsolidated structured entities. The disclosures required
by IFRS 12 are generally more extensive than those
previously required by the respective standards. To the
extent that the requirements are applicable to the Group,
the Group has provided those disclosures in notes 13.

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2013

BRI 5 R ERE 1155 - HRILHE

BBl E A FRRABER S
FPERIFESURE RN A E XN
HHERZHEE D BHERLERGED
X BREAMHEEXSTZHTHNED
MEE ZEALLHZEE  EE
B alGREEMERRBR
AEEHER - KR ZBFERERY
BHREEIENRBEERGERD
Aiza e BEMEREXHMER
RBRADRBETEER - RMAE R
[ %2 Bk B AR ¥ B i B 75 ¥R 5 22 I 5511
HEELSAERE  WARKERAN
AEENAHMBRRAAR - S5
BRI BA UG HHHREZE -

R BIBR T 5 dE £ R E 1157 - &
SECHEEREMEAR R ER
M EETHR - WEHFF GRS ELF
ZHHER - AEECHKERKRER
ARZEHERER DB REEDLE -
MEREREAERAARR - #ULE
o3 2830 R 39 AN 5% [ & B #5 K00 B B
BEEERENERTE -

ISR R & BRI FE 125 - R B fe
Ba 2 KE

BRI IS RS R B2k IS EaE W T
NEEE - GETH - BMERRKT
WEHNEREERE ENREEE
KEEK—BE %R - BRME®R
HAERIE125R A R 2K AEE ERUA
AEEAEARZ2E - BRARAEEDN
B ENE13F FIAHE -



ofafo

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE AR AL

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (fx5B #8550 » AN REESIT)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 BERXEHTHEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
BN BEEE (&)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(c)

IFRS 13, Fair value measurement

IFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual IFRSs with
a single source of fair value measurement guidance. IFRS
13 also contains extensive disclosure requirements about
fair value measurements for both financial instruments
and non-financial instruments. To the extent that the
requirements are applicable to the Group, the Group has
provided those disclosures in note 23(e). The adoption of
IFRS 13 does not have any material impact on the fair value
measurements of the Group’s assets and liabilities.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle

This cycle of annual improvements contains amendments
to five standards with consequential amendments to other
standards and interpretations. Among them, IAS 1 has been
amended to clarify that an opening statement of financial
position is required only when a retrospective application
of an accounting policy, a retrospective restatement or
a reclassification has a material effect on the information
presented in the opening statement of financial position.
The amendments also remove the requirement to present
related notes to the opening statement of financial position
when such statement is presented.

Amendments to IFRS 7 — Disclosures — Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities

The amendments introduce new disclosures in respect of
offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities. Those
new disclosures are required for all recognised financial
instruments that are set off in accordance with IAS 32,
Financial instruments: Presentation and those that are
subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or
similar agreement that covers similar financial instruments
and transactions, irrespective of whether the financial
instruments are set off in accordance with IAS 32.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

RS ERAR AL

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (558550 » AN B SIT)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 7 — Disclosures — Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities (Continued)

The adoption of the amendments does not have an impact
on these financial statements because the group has not
offset financial instruments, nor has it entered into master
netting arrangement or similar agreement which is subject
to the disclosures of IFRS 7 during the periods presented.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements is presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), rounded to the nearest thousand,
which is the functional currency of the Company and its
subsidiaries established in the PRC (“PRC subsidiaries”)
carrying on the principal activities of the Group. The
functional currency of the Company’s subsidiaries in Hong
Kong and in British Virgin Islands is Hong Kong dollar
(“HKD”).

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealized
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealized losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealized gains but
only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE AR AL

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (fx5B #8550 » AN REESIT)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 BERXEHTHEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(e) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests MEBARIRIEZERER (&)

(e)

(Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

the
consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately

Non-controlling interests are presented in
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
income statement and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit
or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the equity owners/
shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders of
non-controlling interests and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities
in the consolidated balance sheet in accordance with notes
2(0) or (p) depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognized.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

RS ERAR AL

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (558550 » AN B SIT)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(f)

(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognized in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is recognized at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset or, when appropriate, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate
or joint venture (see note 2(f)).

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2(k)), unless the investment is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale).

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the financial
and operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
Company and other parties contractually agree to share
control of the arrangement, and have rights to the net
assets of the arrangement.

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5B #5855

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements under the equity
method, unless it is classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale). Under
the equity method, the investment is initially recorded at
cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share of the
acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter,
the investment is adjusted for the post-acquisition change
in the Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and
any impairment loss relating to the investment (see notes
2(g) and (k)). Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of
the investees and any impairment losses for the year are
recognized in the consolidated income statement, whereas
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of
the investees’ other comprehensive income is recognized
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the associate or the joint venture, the Group’s interest
is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the Group’s
interest is the carrying amount of the investment under
the equity method together with the Group’s long-term
interests that in substance form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate or the joint venture.

Unrealized profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint venture
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee, except where unrealized losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognized immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

RS ERAR AL

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (558550 » AN B SIT)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

(9)

Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate or joint control over
a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss
being recognized in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former investee at the date when significant influence
or joint control is lost is recognized at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
of a financial asset (see note 2(h)).

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in associates
and joint venture are stated at cost less impairment losses
(see note 2(k)), unless classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognized
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE AR AL

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (fx5B #8550 » AN REESIT)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

(h)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 2(k)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in
the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Other investments
securities

in unquoted equity

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments
in unquoted equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities, are
as follows:

Investments in unquoted equity securities are initially stated
at fair value, which is their transaction price unless fair value
can be more reliably estimated using valuation techniques
whose variables include only data from observable markets.
Cost includes attributable transaction costs, except where
indicated otherwise below. Investments in equity securities
that do not have a quoted market price in an active market
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are
subsequently accounted for in the balance sheet at cost
less impairment losses (see note 2(k)).

Investments are recognized/derecognized on the date the
Group commits to purchase/sell the investments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

RS ERAR AL

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (558550 » AN B SIT)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 2(k)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located, and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads and borrowing costs (see note 2(w)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognized in profit
or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

- Leasehold improvements is depreciated over the
shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their
estimated useful lives

- Land, buildings and structures 30 years
- Equipment 3-8 years
- Motor vehicles 3-10 years
- Furniture, fixtures and others 3-10 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and
its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE AR AL

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (fx5B #8550 » AN REESIT)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for
a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination
is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement
takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases except
for land held for own use under an operating lease,
the fair value of which cannot be measured separately
from the fair value of a building situated thereon at
the inception of the lease, is accounted for as being
held under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that
the lease was first entered into by the Group, or taken
over from the previous lessee.

(i) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal installments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased asset. Lease incentives received are
recognized in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent
rentals are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortized on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

RS ERAR AL

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (558550 » AN B SIT)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other current
and non-current receivables that are stated at cost
or amortized cost are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that comes to
the attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization;

significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in an equity instrument
below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss
is determined and recognized as follows:
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt S R 2R Y

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (fx5B #8550 » AN REESIT)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 BEARSTHEHME (8)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(k) EERE (&)

(k) Impairment of assets (Continued)

() BRAEZEZFKE R M ERFEAL

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and

other receivables (Continued) JR1E (&)
For investments in subsidiaries, associates — BB AR - BERQ A

and jointly controlled entities (including those
recognized using the equity method (see
note 2(f)), the impairment loss is measured
by comparing the recoverable amount of
the investment with its carrying amount in
accordance with note 2(k)(i). The impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favorable
change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount in accordance with note
2(K)(ii).

For unquoted equity securities carried at
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset where the
effect of discounting is material. Impairment
losses for equity securities carried at cost are
not reversed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

RS ERAR AL

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (558550 » AN B SIT)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables (Continued)

For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortized
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made collectively
where these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status,
and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively
are based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics similar to
the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognized, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognized in prior years.

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited

Annual Report 2013

2 BEXRSHEEME (&)

(k) EERE (&)

()  RAEZKEREMENHIRA
e (&)

- HRREEAARIERNE
2 & UG BR 7R B B A7 B
WA R EM R EE -
EERIEZAEERE
BEERZRABATZREENR
EEBRNE (AR w§
RZFEEMEHHNER
M=) EITIHER (HITRY
EBEAX) WHFTRKR
ERENRECZHNEZRE
AE-MERMEEAGR
LE L B R 48 - £ A AR AL
BE R B R AR E
BB AREE BIAE
AEERFEET 2RE
ENARRRERESRE
HZARNEEERRR
PUE & [l 5 08 B 10 A
EBRBER—RBE -

B EBEBELEE RS
ER A - BaZom 2 2 Ei
HERERBEBBREELN
SFERR - AEBeRaE
BEURERRE - BEEE
BEAEEEEREER
BEE A FE I EER
EARERBENER T M
EEMDE °



o fofo

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE AR AL

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (fx5B #8550 » AN REESIT)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables (Continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognized in respect of trade and bills
receivables and other receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded
using an allowance account. When the Group
is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against the
respective receivables directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating to that debt
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly
are recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognized no longer
exists or may have decreased:

property, plant and equipment;

- prepayments; and

- other financial assets
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Notes to the Financial Statements

RS ERAR AL

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (558550 » AN B SIT)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently (i.e.
a cash-generating unit).
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B RE AR AL

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (fx5B #8550 » AN REESIT)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 BERXEHTHEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(k) EERE (&)

(k) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued) (i)  EMEEHE (&)
Recognition of impairment losses — BREEEE
An impairment loss is recognized in profit or MEESXNAEMBHRESEAS

loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognized in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets
in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value
in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognized in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognized.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

RS ERAR AL

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (558550 » AN B SIT)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U

(m)

Inventories

Inventories mainly consist of work of art owned by the Art
business. Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
management’s estimate of net realizable value.

Cost is valued on a specific identification basis for work
of art.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognized as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognized. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realizable value and
all losses of inventories are recognized as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognized
as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognized as
an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
Inventories are available for immediate sale. Ultimate timing
of the sale is hard to predict given the unique nature of
each art piece and the cyclicality of the global art market.

Trade, bills and other receivables

Trade, bills and other receivables are initially recognized at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 2(k)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would
be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated
at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.
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B RE AR AL

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (fx5B #8550 » AN REESIT)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Consignor advances

Consignor advances are initially recognized at fair value
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see note
2(k)). It represents financing provided to art collectors prior
to their work of art being auctioned off, secured by work
of art.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are initially recognized at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortized cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognized and redemption value being recognized
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective
interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognized at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 2(t)(i), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortized cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.

(n)

(o)

(p)

(a)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

RS ERAR AL

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (558550 » AN B SIT)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r) Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

(s)

Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and the
effect would be material, these amounts are stated
at their present values.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognized at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognizes restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and

movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current

tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are

recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that they

relate to business combinations, or items recognized in

other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which

case the relevant amounts of tax are recognized in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE AR AL

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (fx5B #8550 » AN REESIT)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognized.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused
tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken
into account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can
be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

RS ERAR AL

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (558550 » AN B SIT)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognized is measured based
on the expected manner of realization or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognized when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognized.

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE AR AL

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (fx5B #8550 » AN REESIT)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

= in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realize the current tax assets and settle
the current tax liabilities on a net basis or realize and
settle simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

RS ERAR AL

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (558550 » AN B SIT)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities

(1)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee (being the transaction
price, unless the fair value can otherwise be reliably
estimated) is initially recognized as deferred income
within trade and other payables. Where consideration
is received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognized in
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognized in profit or loss on initial recognition of

any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognized
as deferred income is amortized in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognized in accordance with note 2(t)(ii) if
and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder
of the guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in trade and other payables in respect of that
guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognized, less
accumulated amortization.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE AR AL

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (fx5B #8550 » AN REESIT)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Continued)

(i)

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot
be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed
as a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

(u) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the

economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue

and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue

is recognized in profit or loss as follows:
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (558550 » AN B SIT)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Art Business and Auction
(i) Revenue from auction service

Auction service revenue is recognized upon settlement
of consideration with purchasers and/or sellers and
when the related services are provided. Auction
service revenue includes buyer side commission
and seller side commission which are based on a
percentage of auction sales.

Interest income earned from consignor advances is
recognized as it accrues using the effective interest
method.

(i) Revenue from art business

Revenue from art business is recognized in the
period in which the sale is completed, title to the
property passes to the purchaser and services have
been rendered. The carrying value of art business’
inventory sold during the period is recorded as cost
of inventories.

(i)  Revenue from investment consultation

Revenue from consultation service is recognized
when services have been rendered.

Performance and Theatre Management
(i) Revenue from show performance

Income from show performance is recognized when
the services have been rendered to the viewers.

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (fx5B #8550 » AN REESIT)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Performance and Theatre Management (Continued)

(i

(i)

(iv)

Rendering of theatre management service

Revenue from theatre management is recognized
upon the fulflment of service based on the service
contract terms over a period of time. Contracts are
generally signed with government agencies relating to
theatre management services provided by the Group.

Rendering of design and consultation services

Revenue from design and consultation services
rendered is recognized using the percentage of
completion method, measured by reference to the
percentage of contract costs incurred to date to
estimated total contract costs for the contract. When
the outcome of a contract cannot be estimated
reliably, revenue is recognized only to the extent of
contract costs incurred that it is probable will be
recoverable.

Revenue from other services rendered is recognized
upon the delivery or performance of the services.

Rental income — theatre rental

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognized in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the use
of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognized in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent
rentals are recognized as income in the accounting
period in which they are earned.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Cinema Investment and Management

(i)

Movie box office takings

Income from box office takings is recognized when
the services have been rendered to the viewers.

Income from gift voucher purchase is recognized
when customers exchange for goods or services or
upon expiry.

Others

(i)

(i

(i)

Government grants

Government grants are recognized initially when
there is reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply with the
conditions attached to them. Grants that compensate
the Group for expenses incurred are recognized as
revenue in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the
same periods in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of
an asset are initially recognized as deferred income
and consequently are recognized in profit or loss
over the useful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.

Dividends

- Dividend income from unlisted investments is

recognized when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment is established.

Interest income

Interest income is recognized as it accrues using the
effective interest method.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (fx5B #8550 » AN REESIT)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 BERXEHTHEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(v) SMEEHBE

(v) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates.

The results of operations which have a functional currency
other than RMB are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Balance sheet items
are translated into RMB at the closing foreign exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting exchange differences are recognized in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that foreign
operation is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when
the profit or loss on disposal is recognized.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Borrowing costs

(x)

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (5B #5855

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(x) Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(i

(ii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity
is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be

influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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RS ERAR AL

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (558550 » AN B SIT)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(y) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified from
the financial statements provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of,
the Group’s various lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect
of the nature of products and services, the nature of
production processes, the type or class of customers, the
methods used to distribute the products or provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES
IN APPLYING THE GROUP’S
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Group’s financial condition and results of operations are
sensitive to accounting methods, assumptions and estimates
that underlie the preparation of the financial statements. The
Group bases the assumptions and estimates on historical
experience and on various other assumptions that the Group
believes to be reasonable and which form the basis for making
judgments about matters that are not readily apparent from
other sources. On an on-going basis, management evaluates
its estimates. Actual results may differ from those estimates as
facts, circumstances and conditions change.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgments
and other uncertainties affecting application of those polices
and the sensitivity of reported results to changes in conditions
and assumptions are factors to be considered when reviewing
the financial statements. The principal accounting policies are
set forth in note 2. The Group believes the following critical
accounting policies involve the most significant judgments and
estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE AR AL

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (fx5B #8550 » AN REESIT)

3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES
IN APPLYING THE GROUP’S
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Valuation of art work inventory

Valuation of art work inventory is subjective and the net
realizable value fluctuates over time. Management relies
on the valuation opinion of specialists who consider a
number of factors including 1) recent transactions for
comparable work of art and 2) supply and demand and
current economic environment. Due to the subjectivity
involved in estimating the realizable value, if the art work
market deteriorates and the overall economic condition
were to deteriorate, actual write-offs would be higher than
estimated.

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful
debts

The Group estimates impairment losses for bad and
doubtful debts resulting from the inability of the customers
and other debtors to make the required payments. The
Group bases the estimates on the aging of the receivable
balance, debtors’ credit-worthiness, and historical write-
off experience. If the financial condition of the customers
and debtors were to deteriorate, actual impairment losses
would be higher than estimated.

Impairment losses of non-current assets

In considering the impairment losses that may be required
for certain of the Group’s assets which include property,
plant and equipment, long-term prepayments, investments
in an associate and unquoted equity investment,
recoverable amount of the asset needs to be determined.
The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value less
costs to sell and the value in use. It is difficult to precisely
estimate selling price because quoted market prices for
these assets may not be readily available. In determining
the value in use, expected cash flows generated by
the asset are discounted to their present value, which
requires significant judgment relating to items such as
level of sales volume, selling price and amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available information in
determining an amount that is a reasonable approximation
of recoverable amount, including estimates based on
reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections
of items such as sales volume, selling price and amount
of operating costs.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (55 #5855

C UABRHSTR)

3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES
IN APPLYING THE GROUP’S
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Recognition of deferred tax assets

(e)

(f)

Deferred tax assets in respect of unused tax losses and tax
credit carried forward and deductible temporary differences
are recognized and measured based on the expected
manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. In determining
the carrying amounts of deferred assets, expected
taxable profits are estimated which involves a number of
assumptions relating to the operating environment of the
Group and requires a significant level of judgment exercised
by the directors. Any changes in such assumptions and
judgments would affect the carrying amounts of deferred
tax assets to be recognized and hence the net profit in
future years.

Income tax

The Group is subject to PRC Corporate Income Tax
and Hong Kong Profits Tax. Judgement is required in
determining the provision for income tax. There are
transactions during the ordinary course of business, for
which calculation of the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain. Where the final tax outcome is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made. Recognition
of deferred tax depends on the management’s expectation
of future taxable profit that will be available. The outcome
of their actual utilisation may be different.

Contingent liabilities

Management judgment is required in the area of contingent
liabilities particularly in assessing the outcome of possible
obligations arising from the transactions as detailed in note
25. Management reassesses the likelihood of the outcome
of these possible obligations at each end of the reporting
period. Where a change in the probability that an outflow of
economic resources will be required to settle the obligation,
a provision will be recognized in the period in which such
determination is made.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE AR AL

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (fx5B #8550 » AN REESIT)

REVENUE

The Group is principally engaged in art business and auction,
performance and theatre management and cinema investment
and management.

Revenue mainly represents the sales value of artworks and
cultural relic collections, art investment consultation and other
services and commission from auction services, income from
cinema investment and management and box office, box
office income from performances and income from theatre
management. The amount of each significant category of revenue
recognized during the year is as follows:

WA

AEEEREFEMmELEATRT &
HEBIF B RB AN IR E TR ER -

WAEEZEEMB XYW mHERE - &
M R 4 B W A I B At AR 5 WA R IR B AR 75 48
SWA - EREREEBBAREFEA &
HERE WA HEBIFEERKA - RERNERD
SEEZHMNWATENT

2013 2012

20135 20124

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBTT

Revenue from art business and auction Z4f7 53 4% & B 375 W A 972,704 792,691
Revenue from performance and theatre management ;& H B2 B & IR U A 740,542 607,582
Revenue from cinema investment and management gt % & & U A 289,738 249,618
Revenue from other services E b ARFE UL A - 24
2,002,984 1,649,915

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by subsidiaries, which
are organized by business lines. In a manner consistent with
the way in which information is reported internally to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment, the Group
has presented the following three reportable segments for the
years ended December 31, 2013:

- Art business and auction: including auction, buy and sale
of Chinese antiques, Chinese modern and contemporary
calligraphy and painting, Chinese ancient calligraphy and
painting, Chinese oil painting and sculpture and other
Chinese cultural relics and artwork. It also provides artwork
investment consultation and other services and earns
interest revenue from consignor advances.

7B

AEEBBIECEHEABOMNBERRERE
275 o B E2013F12A31HILEE - A&
Bz AT &R 2 B A &G R A
E&mRITHREREMERII RS SR —
BAREHUT=ET2RDE

- EmKERREXY: BREAE-
BEETEGE PEARKES -
BEREE  FEHERMEEARE
i B A E AT an ~ DA R BR R Bl
mREBEEMEAMER - &AM
REE T A SHA -
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (55 #5855

C UABRHSTR)

5 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(a)

Performance and theatre management: including daily
management of theatre, arrangement of performances,
leases of theatres and theatre design consultation services.
Cinema investment and management: including cinema

construction and cinema operation.
Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purpose of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Segment assets include all assets with the exception of
interest in an associate, other financial assets, deferred
tax assets and other corporate assets. Segment liabilities
include all liabilities with the exception of tax payables and
other corporate liabilities.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to revenue generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is “segment
profit”. Segment profit represents revenue less cost of
sales, and includes selling and distribution expenses
and administrative expenses directly attributable to the
segment. Items that are not specifically attributable to
individual segments, such as unallocated head office
and corporate other revenue and other net gain, share
of losses of an associate, depreciation, finance income,
finance costs and unallocated head office and corporate
expenses are not included in segment profit. In addition to
receiving segment information concerning segment profit,
management is also provided with segment information

concerning depreciation, finance income and finance costs.

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
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Bt S R 2R Y

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (fx5B #8550 » AN REESIT)

5 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 5 %% %& (&)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (a) PEHEE - EEREE ()

(Continued)

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as

provided to the Group’s most senior executive management

for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of

segment performance for the years ended December 31,

2013 is set out below:

RETERSERFE D BEEEE
2013F12 A1 B IEFERM D EEEM
MASEESRITHREEABRMEN
BRASER A 2/ D HHER T

o -

Year ended December 31, 2013
HZE20135F12A31BLLEE

Cinema
Performance investment
Art business and theatre and
and auction management management Total
1T m E B ¥R
REHEPE Bl & REERE e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AR®T AR®TR AR®T R
Revenue from external customers
SNERE P IR 972,704 740,542 289,738 2,002,984
Reportable segment revenue
2| EUA 972,704 740,542 289,738 2,002,984
Reportable segment profit
2o MBRE 556,618 38,265 48,878 643,761
Depreciation #T& (5,200) (3,338) (30,202) (38,740)
Finance income BA 75 A 25,309 4,742 411 30,462
Finance costs B A 2 (32,248) - (5,755) (38,003)
Reportable segment assets
EHH)BEE 2,431,383 341,208 415,909 3,188,500
Reportable segment liabilities
R/ PERB 1,360,699 182,162 292,622 1,835,483

RFZACEERDERAF
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (558550 » AN B SIT)

5 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(a) Segment
(Continued)

results,

assets and

liabilities

(@) 7%

5 o8EHmE (&)

BRE - EERAE (A)

Year ended December 31, 2012

HZE2012F12A31HIEFE

Cinema
Performance investment
Art business and theatre and
and auction management management Total
i fh B B A
REBRIAE BB B 1R KEERE Rk
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T AREFTT AREET T AREET T
Revenue from external customers
INERE P LA 792,691 607,582 249,618 1,649,891
Reportable segment revenue
SHD WA 792,691 607,582 249,618 1,649,891
Reportable segment profit
2, BRE 468,967 35,318 34,895 539,180
Depreciation #7& (4,002) (3,215) (16,496) (23,713)
Finance income B 75U A 21,180 3,214 2,070 26,464
Finance costs B A AN (34,651) - (2,800) (37,451)
Reportable segment assets
EHyMBEE 2,259,897 287,587 392,306 2,939,790
Reportable segment liabilities
EHHBEE 1,352,561 160,142 257,224 1,769,927

Note: There was no individual customer that represents more
than 10 percent of the Group’s revenue during the years
ended December 31, 2013 and 2012. Further details
of concentration of credit risk arising from the Group’s
customers are set out in note 23(a).
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Bt S R 2R Y

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (fx5B #8550 » AN REESIT)

5 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment
revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

5

2 EHRE (F)

(b) IE2HTHBYRA - BiF - BE
REEZHIR

2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARET T
Revenue WA
Reportable segment revenue 2 k5 U A 2,002,984 1,649,891
Revenue from other services Hith U A - 24
Consolidated revenue & Uk A 2,002,984 1,649,915
Profit F/5&
Reportable segment profit 2 ;% 28 FE 643,761 539,180
Revenue from other services E i ¥ /WA - 24
Unallocated head office and corporate other revenue and other net gain
A9 Fie 42 AR AN 1b 3% EL A WA K L % I 25 3,560 17,047
Depreciation #T& (39,609) (24,328)
Finance income B1 748 A 28,212 24,793
Finance costs B/ %4 (20,824) (26,779)
Unallocated head office and corporate expenses 7 7 Bt 4850 &2 (> 25 52 (22,957) (14,860)
Consolidated profit before taxation & 5 & 51758 592,143 515,077
2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREET T
Assets EE
Reportable segment assets 25 #F & &= 3,188,500 2,939,790
Elimination of receivables between segments, and segments and head office
53 5B £ 53 B K 48 BT Pl e U K IE B K 8 (492,891) (305,944)
Other financial assets E & gt & &= 100 100
Income tax recoverable AU Bl F 5% 636 412
Deferred tax assets 1EER 1B & & 4,924 2,149
Unallocated head office and corporate assets 77 it 4838 &2 A 7l & &= 425,633 310,897
Consolidated total assets & #f & E 4258 3,126,902 2,947,404
Liabilities & 1&
Reportable segment liabilities 237D P& & 1,835,483 1,769,927
Elimination of payables between segments, and segments and head office
53 BB B 53 &I N 48 50 FE A FRIA Y K 81 (492,891) (305,944)
Income tax payable FEfHFT5HL 68,930 40,674
Unallocated head office and corporate liabilities KD B2 KA R B & 180,950 44,213
Consolidated total liabilities & Hf & E4 %8 1,592,472 1,548,870

RAALRBBAR B R AR
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (558550 » AN B SIT)

5 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
(c) Geographic information

The Group’s operations are mainly located in the Mainland
China and Hong Kong.

Information about the Group’s revenue from its operations
from external customers is presented based on the
customers’ location of incorporation/establishment.
Information about the Group’s non-current assets other

5

DEPERE (&)
(c) WEEHR

AEENEBETERPEAEREBEH
)E o

BERAAKBEIINBEEZHBRANER
TREFEEMMAL IR 2
5l - BRAARNEBEIELEIRE E AN
FRBDEENER NIREENMIEL

than deferred tax assets is presented based on the B2
geographical location of the assets.
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets
HEEF KA ERBEE
2013 2012 2013 2012
20134 20124 20135 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARBT T AR®EF T ARBTT
Mainland China = B4 A 1,802,045 1,632,846 407,760 320,460
Hong Kong &% 200,939 17,069 4,864 120
2,002,984 1,649,915 412,624 320,580
6 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET 6 HWARHEMKzE (&
GAIN/(LOSS) B) #5
2013 2012
20135 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
Other revenue E AU A
Government grants B4 B) 19,397 34,327
Others EA 4,164 8,857
23,561 43,184
Other net gain/(loss) Eftli i (E5iE) F5E
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment
HEME - BEREBENZ (B18) 58 2,230 (19)
Net foreign exchange loss [ X &8 %58 (3,843) (1,040)
Net gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 27)
HEME A RFRE (FiEE27) 5,803 -
4,190 (1,059)

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (fx5B #8550 » AN REESIT)

7 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

(a)

(b)

Finance costs

BR 5% A1 ) 7
BEEFIEEMG (GIA) :

(a) HBHRAE

2013 2012

20135 20124

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBFT

Interest expenses FEF 22,187 28,293
Less: interest expenses capitalised into property, plant and equipment

o E - BB RREHERMENERX (1,363) (1,5614)

20,824 26,779

The borrowing costs have been capitalised at rates of
6.01% for the years ended December 31, 2013 (2012:
6.19%).

HZE2013F12A31BILFE » B35
K2 3R F E6.01% (20124 : 6.19%)
FAE R ©

Staff costs (b) BT
2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMETF T AREFTT
Salaries, wages and other benefits # % « T& R H a7 261,986 199,890
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans (note)
ERBEFCRIRET SR (KsE) 26,137 18,204
288,123 218,094
Note: BiiaE -

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC,
the Company and its PRC subsidiaries participated in defined
contribution retirement schemes (the “PRC Schemes”) organized
by the relevant local government authorities for its employees. The
Group is required to make contributions to the PRC Schemes at
11% to 22% of average basic salaries of the employees in the
cities where the Group operates. The local government authorities
are responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to retired
employees.

REF BRSSPI RER - ARE R
HA B8 A 728 i E = BT RS
AERESEBNERRZFRKETE (THE
3] - ARBARN FAKELERE
W R 8 EARF £ H11%E22% I
MR A B o BB A T MR
KEBXXN2EEARSE o B Ll FEHK
S ARG 3 4 ) B A ARG B
AR AGERENRAREFTENKNE
R -

RAALRBBAR B R AR
2013 FEHE
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7 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
(Continued)

(b) Staff costs (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

In addition, the Company and its PRC subsidiaries have
implemented a supplementary defined contribution retirement
scheme. The Group is required to make contributions to the PRC
Schemes at 5% of average basic salaries of the employees in the
cities where the Group operates.

The Group has no other material obligation to make payments in
respect of pension benefits associated with these schemes other
than the annual contributions and supplementary retirement plan
described above.

7 BRBAIAE (&)

(b) BTARAE (&)

ffeE - ()

BESh - ARBREPEMBARE R —
B ERHETORNKGE - REBEARE
EBMENTRE FHEARTEMNSR AT

BIGHEIMEH SR o

BT Bt FEEREAETRAR RIS R
SEBEAMBEZETEBRHNERRSTRE

MEBRNREAE -

(c) Other items (c) HMIEE

2013 2012

20135 20124

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBTT

Cost of inventories 7 & AN 47,382 49,668

Depreciation #T& 39,609 24,328
Impairment (recovery)/losses JEifE (@), &8

— trade and bills receivables — & 5 & W FIE I JE Wy = 4% (90) 1,024

— deposits, prepayments and other receivables

—i&e ~ BRAFKRIERE A EWFIE 381 (3,129)

Auditors’ remuneration 28 Fl B 4 5,290 508

Operating lease charges #&& & & & 112,899 71,609

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (fx5B #8550 » AN REESIT)

8 INCOME TAX 8 FiE®H

(a)

(b)

Income tax in the consolidated income (a) &Pt EZERAMBRHIE -
statements represents:

2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETTT
Corporate Income Tax (Note 21(a)) 2158 (H:E21(a)) 145,878 132,571
Deferred taxation (Note 21 (b)) ¥EIEFIE (FizE21(b)) (3,306) (3,830)
142,572 128,741
Reconciliations between income tax (b) REAHETTENH B X HE
expense and before taxation profit at SHFAEZENEER
applicable tax rates:
2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETTT
Profit before taxation B %5 Al 1)) 592,143 515,077
Expected tax on profit before taxation, calculated at the
rates applicable to profits in the jurisdictions concerned (Note)
B AIAENTERTIE (REaARE @R EERMN BN RGE) (M) 138,100 128,927
Effect of non-deductible expenses 7~ A] F18 F Sz 79 7 H 57 2 3,015 2,607
Effect of non-taxable income JEaRF: U zs MR B &/ & (708) (2,576)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognized
AERARBAORBERNT AL E 1,742 543
Tax effect of temporary differences not recognized
AERERMEEBORIEDE (172) 156
Effect of use of tax losses in prior years { FiBEFEH B BN ZE (497) (916)
Others Efih 1,092 =
Actual tax expense B TS X 142,572 128,741
Notes: Btk -
A subsidiary incorporated in the British Virgin Islands is not subject RIEFMAERRARBIFERS - REE
to any income tax pursuant to the rules and regulations of their BB S MR E A BB AR AT
respective countries of incorporation. A subsidiary of the Group is FEHR - ARE—RMBLARRE ST
incorporated and carried out business in Hong Kong and is subject MR MEEER  RRREBFNEHRE
to Hong Kong Profits Tax at 16.5%. 16.5% 8% -

RAALRBBAR B R AR
2013 FEHE
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B S R 2R Y

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (558550 » AN B SIT)

9 DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ 9 EEREEME
EMOLUMENTS

Details of directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments disclosed RIBEBBRaHEAIE161EIFEREcEERE
pursuant to Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance EMSFBERT -
are as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2013
HZE2013F12A31HILEE

Directors’ Salaries,
and allowances Retirement
supervisors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses plans Total
BEER F& - BEER BIK
EEHs BYER B TEAL &R B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T AR®FR AR®T AR®F AR®TR

Executive director H1{T&%
Mr. Jiang Yingchun 3 #1554 - 279 462 122 863
Mr. Li Nan /% 4E - 255 416 115 786

Independent non-executive

directors
BYFHTES
Mr. Rao Geping X4 60 - - - 60
Mr. He Dexu fal#2 /B %t 4 60 - - - 60
Ms. Li Xiaohui Z=BEE 4+ 60 - - - 60

Supervisors EE
Mr. Guo Jianwei SPE 5L 4 - 152 296 73 521

180 686 1,174 310 2,350

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2013
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B RE AR AL

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (fx5B #8550 » AN REESIT)

9 DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

9 EEREEME (&)

Year ended December 31, 2012
HE2012F12A31HILFE

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e o RAR RIK
E=HE BWER BIBTEAL sTEIHR kL]
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TTT ARBTTT AR¥TTT ARBTTT AR¥BTTT
Executive director #1{TE=E
Mr. Jiang Yingchun ¥ 4 - 359 571 33 963
Mr. Li Nan ZFE5E4E - 306 514 33 853
Independent non-executive
directors
BYFHITES
Mr. Rao Geping X £ 4 60 - - - 60
Mr. He Dexu falfZ B 554 60 - - - 60
Ms. Li Xiaohui ZEEZ 2+ 60 - - - 60
180 665 1,085 66 1,996

During the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as an

inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation

for loss of office. No director has waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments during the years ended December 31, 2013 and

2012.

REZE2013F %2012F12A31B L FE -
REBENCRME(AESZ NS IERSEIM
PIINAARSE B INAARE BB EERE) - stk
AEERE o NEZE20134F 20129128
BIBLEFE  MESENENRBMERN

2 EAME -

RFZACEERDERAF
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RS ERAR AL

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (558550 » AN B SIT)

10 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

The number of directors and non-directors included in the five
highest paid individuals for the years ended December 31, 2013
are set forth below:

10 ZSFMA L

HE2013F12A31HILEE - AUz ¥
MATHEENIEES AKEHINWOT ¢

2013 2012

20134 20124

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AE A

Directors &= i -
Non-directors FFE = 5 )
5 5

The emoluments of the directors are disclosed in note 9. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the remaining highest
paid individuals are as follows:

EEHMRMEIPRE - BB TRSH

AL FMESBEHIIWT :

2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMEF T AR¥EFTT
Salaries and other emoluments &4 & £ Bl & 1,245 1,298
Discretionary bonuses EJIEFEAL 4,360 3,736
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
TE R HEBURIRET Bl K 173 110
5,778 5,144
The emoluments of the above individuals with the highest FisEaEFHMATOHMEERAT
emoluments are within the following bands:
2013 2012
20135 20124
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A AH
Nil to HKD1,000,000 077t %1,000,000/% 7T - -
HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 1,000,001/t 1,500,000/ 7T 4 5
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 1, 500,001 L% 2,000,000/ 7T 1 -

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2013
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt S R 2R Y

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (fx5B #8550 » AN REESIT)

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office.

(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based
on profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of
the Company of RMB275,209,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2013 (2012: RMB242,170,000) and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue as at
the end of the year, calculated as follows:

10 ZEHFMA L (&)

B ZE2013F R2012F12A31 A ILFE » K
B M R A B e A S A (AT A
& EBSBMMMARER R IMALEE
gy S2E - SkBEmRAE o

EARNINGS PER SHARE 11 BREF

(a)

BREXRRER

BZE2013F12A31BILFE - FRE
N 28 FI) 2 452 BB N 1) A4 5 AR BR PR 5 R
B A R #275,209,0007T (20124 :
AR #242,170,0007T) © AR & &
[ERBEITH L WA INE T HREGT
EOF

Weighted average number of ordinary shares B R 1 IR 15 2
2013 2012
20134 20124
No. of shares No. of shares
g < 4=| a2 d=
Ordinary shares issued at beginning of the year #2317 & @A 165,000,000 165,000,000
Effect of issuance of shares ZE1TRR D A& - -

Weighted average number of ordinary shares at the end of year
RER T EBREE 165,000,000 165,000,000
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) EREERR

The Company did not have any potential dilutive shares
throughout the years of 2013 and 2012. Accordingly,
diluted earnings per share are the same as the basic
earnings per share.

PR20134F M20124F » 2N A AT AT A{A]
EBEREERG - At BREER
FEFREARBFER -

RAALRBBAR B R AR
2013 FEHE
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RS ERAR AL

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (558550 » AN B SIT)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND

12 )% ~ BER&E

EQUIPMENT
The Group AEH
Land, Furniture,
Leasehold buildings and Motor fixtures Construction
improvements structures Equipment vehicles and others in progress Total
T EF HE B
HAMEHE REEY B3] "E et EEIR st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT AREBTT AREBTRT ARETRT ARETT AR%TR
Cost: 7S :
At January 1, 2012
R2012%1 A1H 41,720 44,016 38,030 22,589 17,567 70,892 234,814
Additions R E 14,905 - 4,971 6,438 2,490 128,218 157,022
Transfer from construction
in progress
ERETRETIR 29,762 = 16,177 = 2,191 (48,130) =
Disposals & - - (682) (239) (114) - (1,035)
At December 31, 2012
R2012%12A31H 86,387 44,016 58,496 28,788 22,134 150,980 390,801
Additions RN E 29,765 - 10,792 5,352 4,867 94,089 144,865
Transfer from construction
in progress
EERATEETR 114,612 - 46,634 254 15,000 (176,500) -
Reclassification 2277 %8 = - 7,828 - (7,828) - =
Disposal of a subsidiary
HERBRE - - (4,675) (651) (586) = (5,912)
Disposals & (2,963) - (7,588) (343) (724) = (11,618)
At December 31, 2013
201312 431H 227,801 44,016 111,487 33,400 32,863 68,569 518,136

Construction in progress represents cinemas under construction
which are not ready for its intended use at the relevant balance
sheet dates.

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2013
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE AR AL

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (fx5B #8550 » AN REESIT)

EQUIPMENT (Continued)

12 Y% - BEKRHE (&)

Land, Furniture,
Leasehold buildings and Motor fixtures Construction
improvements structures  Equipment vehicles  and others in progress Total
T BF RE - #E
HOMEEE REEY R RE REf HEIR @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARBTT ARBTRT ARETT ARETR ARBTT ARETT
Accumulated depreciation:
RiHE
At January 1, 2012
R2012%1H18 (13,645) (6,599) (12,655) (7,524) (10,723) - (51,146)
Depreciation charge
for the year
FAME (8,286) (1,432) (8,151) (2,805) (3,654) = (24,328)
Written back on disposal
HERMD - - 279 228 77 - 584
At December 31, 2012
M2012412A31R (21,931) (8,031) (20,527) (10,101) (14,300) = (74,890)
Depreciation charge
for the year
ERTE (16,966) (1,432) (13,547) (3,045) (4,619) = (39,609)
Reclassification E#7 48 - - (524) = 524 = =
Disposal of a subsidiary
HERBAF - - 1,651 176 434 2,261
Written back on disposal
HERD 9 - 1,892 134 385 - 2,420
At December 31, 2013
R2018%12A818  (38888) (9463) (31,055  (12836) a7576) - (109,818)
Net book value: B FE :
At December 31, 2012
M2012412A31H 64,456 35,985 37,969 18,687 7,834 150,980 315,911
At December 31, 2013
M2013%612H31H 188,913 34,553 80,432 20,564 15,287 68,569 408,318

RFZACEERDERAF
2013 FEME
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (558550 » AN B SIT)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (Continued)

12 Y% - BERZE (&)

The Company AT
Furniture,
Leasehold Motor fixtures
improvements vehicles and others Total
FizE ) HE-#8
VI HE RE REM st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFTT ARBT T ARBT T ARBTTT
Cost: (A :
At January 1, 2012 1201241 A1 H 1,241 2,941 3,128 7,310
Additions RNE 2,764 - 123 2,887
Disposals % - = (6) (5)
At December 31, 2012 ;020124124310 4005 et 8,246 10,192
Additions /RN & - - 70 70
At December 31, 2013 ;12013123310 40050 =l 3,316 10,262
Accumulated depreciation: 25137 E :
At January 1, 2012 7201241 H1H (1,235) (886) (2,608) (4,729)
Depreciation charge for the year & R & (413) (281) (287) (981)
Written back on disposal & # @l - - 4 4
At December 31, 2012 ;820124124310 (1.648) (1167 (289 (6,706)
Depreciation charge for the year R E (554) (244) (76) (874)
At December 31, 20183 K2013%12A4318 (2,202) 141 (2,967) (6,580)
Net book value: BRE FH :
At December 31, 2012 72012412 A31H 2,357 1,774 855 4,486
At December 31, 2013 7A2013F12H31H 1,803 1,530 349 3,682

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2013
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B RE AR AL

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (fx5B #8550 » AN REESIT)

13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

13 RIB R RRIRE

The Company Vi /N ]|
2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMET T AREET T
Unlisted shares, at cost 3£ ET & + LK AME 308,856 259,561
Less: impairment loss & : Ji{EE 12 - =
308,856 259,561

As at December 31, 2013, the subsidiaries of the Company are

listed as follows:

R2013%F12A31H » AN A & &I B 5l /= 40

T

Proportion of
ownership interest

P % Rzt f)
Place and date Group’s Held Held
of incorporation  Issued and fully effective by the by a
Name of the company and operation paid-up capital  interest Company subsidiary Principal activities
AR BETR AKEH BEAR M
ARER EENHR AN BRREA BRER BB QRRE IEXEK
Beijing Poly Theatre Management The PRC  RMB 50,000,000 100% 100% - Theatre operation
Corporation Limited October 10, 2003 ARE management
(“Beiling Poly Theatre”) H 50,000,0007T BlERER
ETRENERERRRAR 2003F10A10A
Beijing Poly Performing Arts The PRC  RMB 25,000,000 100% = 100%  Theatre performance
Corporation Limited April 24, 2008 AR and agent services
FRRAMELBRAR H 25,000,0007T Bl & H R RS
2008F4 A24H
Beijing Poly Forbidden City Theatre The PRC RMB 2,000,000 51% - 51%  Theatre operation
Management Corporation Limited May 10, 2004 ARE management
FEREMNERHEIG EBERAR HE 2,000,0007T BlltEeER
2004%5H108
Shanghai Oriental Art Center The PRC  RMB 15,000,000 51% = 51%  Art center operation
Management Corporation Limited March 31, 2004 ARE management
LERAEMPLERERAR i 15,000,0007C g DEEER
2004F3H31H

RFZACEERDERAF
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13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 13 RBARINKRE (&)

(Continued)

Proportion of
ownership interest

iEeEy: 3320
Place and date Group’s Held Held
of incorporation  Issued and fully effective by the by a
Name of the company and operation paid-up capital  interest Company subsidiary Principal activities
LR BETR AKEH HEXAF M
ARER EENHRAH BRRE BRER BB DQRRE IEXE
Dongguan Poly Yulan Grand Theatre The PRC RMB 2,000,000 100% = 100%  Theatre operation
Management Corporation Limited November 24, 2005 ARE management
RETRANERABIREEERAF i 2,000,0007T ElirggEn
200511 A24H
Wuhan Qintai Grand Theatre The PRC RMB 3,000,000 51% - 51%  Theatre operation
Management Corporation Limited June 22, 2007 ARE management
REZRABIRERARD i 3,000,0007C Blirigegn
2007466 H22H
Shenzhen Poly Theatre Performance The PRC RMB 2,000,000 49% = 49%  Theatre operation
Corporation Limited (Note) August 15, 2007 AR management
AYTRABIR R EERAR A 2,000,0007T BlrEe g
20078 A 15H
Henan Poly Art Center Management The PRC RMB 3,000,000 100% = 100%  Art center operation
Corporation Limited September 12, 2008 AR management
AERNEMHLERERAT] e 3,000,0007C 2 LEEER
2008F9A12H
Yantai Poly Grand Theatre The PRC RMB 3,000,000 100% - 100%  Theatre operation
Management Corporation Limited May 19, 2009 AR management
AmENMABIRERERAA i 3,000,0007C BllnEeER
2009F5A19H
Huizhou Poly Culture and Arts Center The PRC RMB 2,000,000 100% - 100%  Art center operation
Management Corporation Limited May 20, 2009 ARE management
BMmRMCEMHOERBRAF hE 2,000,0007C i L0EEER
2009%5H20R
Changzhou Poly Grand Theatre The PRC RMB 2,000,000 51% = 51%  Theatre operation
Management Corporation Limited May 26, 2009 AR management
BMHRMABRERERAR i 2,000,0007C BllrEege
2009F5H26H

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
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13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 13 RBARINKRE (&)

(Continued)

Proportion of
ownership interest

FEEERLA
Place and date Group’s Held Held
of incorporation  Issued and fully effective by the by a
Name of the company and operation paid-up capital  interest Company subsidiary Principal activities
TR BETR AKEHN HBEAR M
ARER EENHRAH BRREA BRER BB QRRE IEXE
Chongging Poly Theatre The PRC RMB 6,000,000  66.67% - 66.67% Theatre operation
Management Corporation Limited July 20, 2009 ARE management
BEEMRNBIRERARAR i 6,000,0007C BllrEeER
2009%7 A20H
Taizhou Poly Grand Theatre The PRC RMB 2,000,000 51% = 51%  Theatre operation
Management Corporation Limited July 31, 2009 AR management
FMNHRMABIRERERAT # 2,000,0007C BllrEeER
2009F7A31H
Wenzhou Poly Grand Theatre The PRC RMB 2,000,000 100% = 100%  Theatre operation
Management Corporation Limited September 9, 2009 AR management
RMNRAMARIRERERAR HE 2,000,0007T BlrEe g
200959 H9H
Hefei Poly Grand Theatre The PRC RMB 2,000,000 100% - 100%  Theatre operation
Management Corporation Limited September 28, 2009 AR management
ARERMAEIRERERAR HE 2,000,0007T BlrEe g
2009F9A28H
Poly (Beijing) Theatre Construction The PRC RMB 3,000,000 100% - 100%  Engineering and
Engineering Consulting October 28, 2002 ARE technology management
Corporation Limited H 3,000,0007T consulting
RA (ER) BRI EAABRAR 2002F10A28H IRRRITERHH
Ma’anshan Poly Grand Theatre The PRC RMB 2,000,000 100% - 100%  Theatre operation
Management Corporation Limited July 22, 2010 ARE management
SEILTRMNABRERERAF i 2,000,0007C BhEeER
20107 A22H
Lishui Poly Grand Theatre The PRC RMB 2,000,000 100% - 100%  Theatre operation
Management Corporation Limited December 29, 2010 ARE management
BRRAMABIRERARAR H 2,000,0007C BllgeER
201012290

RFZACEERDERAF
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RS ERAR AL

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (558550 » AN B SIT)

13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

13 R B R RRIRE (&)

Proportion of
ownership interest

kL 4]
Place and date Group’s Held Held
of incorporation  Issued and fully effective by the by a
Name of the company and operation paid-up capital  interest Company subsidiary Principal activities
LR BETR AKEH HEXAF M
ARER EENHRAH BRRE BRER BB DQRRE IEXE
Qingdao Poly Grand Theatre The PRC RMB 3,000,000 100% - 100%  Theatre operation
Management Corporation Limited August 27, 2010 ARE management
EERIABRERERAA i 3,000,0007C BllEsE R
2010F8A27H
Hohhot Poly Theatre Management The PRC RMB 3,000,000 100% = 100%  Theatre operation
Corporation Limited March 14, 2011 ARE management
WAERREREBER AT # 3,000,000 B ELER
2011E3 /140
Poly Advertisement Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB 1,000,000 100% = 100%  Advertisement agency
RAESERAT May 16, 2001 ARE BERE
i 1,000,0007
2001F5A16H
Zhangjiagang Poly Grand Theatre The PRC RMB 3,000,000 51% = 51%  Theatre operation
Management Corporation Limited October 8, 2011 AR management
KR BmRNAR R EEERA A HE 3,000,0007T BlligeER
2011410AH8H
Yichun Poly Grand Theatre The PRC RMB 3,000,000 100% - 100%  Theatre operation
Management Corporation Limited December 22, 2011 ARE management
HETRHABIRERERAR i 3,000,0007T BlliEeER
201112228
Wuxi Grand Theatre Poly Management The PRC RMB 5,000,000 60% = 60%  Theatre operation
Corporation Limited January 17, 2012 ARE management
EHABRRNEEERAR H 5,000,000 Blfrige g
20121R17R
Yingkou Bayuquan Poly Grand Theatre The PRC RMB 3,000,000 100% - 100%  Theatre operation
Management Corporation Limited May 16, 2012 AR management
EOmHABRRNABIRERERAR # 3,000,0007T BllngeER
201245R16H

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
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13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Proportion of
ownership interest

13 RIB R RRIRE (&)

i % Rzt )
Place and date Group’s Held Held
of incorporation  Issued and fully effective by the by a
Name of the company and operation paid-up capital  interest Company subsidiary Principal activities
TR BETR AKEHN HBEAR M
ARER EENHRAH BRREA BRER BB QRRE IEXE
Dongguan Poly Culture Performing The PRC RMB 2,000,000 100% = 100%  Performance and
Group Corporation Limited April 20, 2012 AR brokerage
SRAEEEERAA HE 2,000,000 R R
201254 A20R
Kunshan Poly Grand Theatre The PRC RMB 3,000,000 51% = 51%  Theatre operation
Management Corporation Limited July 19, 2012 AR management
BITRA AR ERERAR H 3,000,0007T BlltEeER
201257 A19R
Ji'an Poly Grand Theatre Management The PRC RMB 2,000,000 100% = 100%  Theatre operation
Corporation Limited August 3, 2012 ARE management
ERMRNABRERERAR HE 2,000,0007T BlrE= g
201268 H3H
Changshu Poly Grand Theatre The PRC RMB 2,000,000 100% - 100%  Theatre operation
Management Corporation Limited November 19, 2012 ARE management
BEATRNABG ERERAR HE 2,000,0007T BlirE= g
20124115 19H
Ningbo Culture Square Poly Grand The PRC RMB 3,000,000 51% - 51%  Theatre operation
Theatre Management Co., Ltd January 14, 2013 ARE management
BRI ESRAABRERERAT HE 3,000,0007T BllnEeER
2013F1 A 140
Handan Poly Grand Theatre The PRC RMB 3,000,000 51% - 51%  Theatre operation
Management Co., Ltd January 14, 2013 AR management
BBETRFIAEIRERER AR HE 3,000,000 BlliEeER
2013F1 A 140
Dalian Poly Theatre Management The PRC RMB 3,000,000 100% = 100%  Theatre operation
Co., Ltd February 16, 2013 AR management
AERMNBIRERERRA A 3,000,0007C BllcEe g
2013%F2H16H

RFZACEERDERAF
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13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 13 RBARINKRE (&)

(Continued)

Proportion of
ownership interest

iEeEy: 3320
Place and date Group’s Held Held
of incorporation  Issued and fully effective by the by a
Name of the company and operation paid-up capital  interest Company subsidiary Principal activities
LR BETR AKEH HEXAF M
ARER EENHRAH BRRE BRER BB DQRRE IEXE
Shanxi Poly Grand Theatre The PRC RMB 3,000,000 100% - 100%  Theatre operation
Management Co., Ltd May 31, 2013 ARE management
IR AR ERERAR i 3,000,0007C BllcEeER
2013E5A31H
Shanghai Poly Grand Theatre The PRC RMB 3,000,000 100% - 100%  Theatre operation
Management Co., Ltd August 8, 2013 ARE management
HERNARRIRERERAR HE 3,000,0007T BllrEeER
201358 H8H
Weifang Poly Grand Theatre The PRC RMB 3,000,000 100% = 100%  Theatre operation
Management Co., Ltd August 30, 2013 ARE management
EFTHRNABIRERERAT HE 8,000,0007T BlirE= g
2013F8A30H
Zhoushan Putuo Poly Grand Theatre The PRC RMB 3,000,000 100% - 100%  Theatre operation
Management Co., Ltd November 21, 2013 ARE management
AT ERRANARRERERAT HE 3,000,0007T BlirE= g
2013411 A21H
Weihai Poly Grand Theatre The PRC RMB 3,000,000 100% - 100%  Theatre operation
Management Co., Ltd December 2, 2013 AR management
BLETRFIABIREEER A HE 3,000,0007T BllrgeER
2013F12H2H
Beijing Poly International Auction The PRC  RMB 10,000,000 55% 55% - Auction Business
Corporation Limited July 14, 2005 AR HEXH
ERENERHERRRA H 10,000,0007C
2005F7A14H
Kangoo overseas Ltd. British Virgin Islands US$50,000/ 55% - 100%  Auction agency of
FeBREAAR February 22, 2002 US$1 overseas art collection
KERAES 50,000%7T / BINETERRRERE
20022 A 22H e
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13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Proportion of

ownership interest

13 RIB R RRIRE (&)

i % Rzt )
Place and date Group’s Held Held
of incorporation  Issued and fully effective by the by a
Name of the company and operation paid-up capital  interest Company subsidiary Principal activities
TR BETR AKEHN HBEAR M
ARER EENHRAH BRREA BRER BB QRRE IEXE
Poly Auction Guangdong Corporation The PRC  RMB 16,600,000  62.05%  62.05% - Auction of moveable
Limited November 20, 2003 ARE property, real estate
BRRHHEBB LA H 16,600,0007% and intangible assets;
2003F11A20H auction of second and
third species antiquity
¥z TYEREVEE
HE —BR=E4AE
HE
Guangdong Poly Assets Management The PRC RMB 10,000,000  62.05% - 100%  Asset management,
Corporation Limited December 24, 2010 ARE acquisition, disposition,
BRRMNEEEEERAF H 10,000,0007¢ restructuring and related
2010512 24H consulting business
services (except
for financial trust and
management)
BEEE WE RE-
ERNABEARS
% (2 RERR
ERRN)
Beijing Poly Art Center Corporation The PRC  RMB 130,000,000 100% 100% - Heritage sales
Limited March 16, 2007 ARE (except for auction)
ERRMEMRHOERAF t 130,000,0007C e CRERIN)
20074%3A16H
Beijing Poly Art Investment The PRC  RMB 10,000,000 80% 80% - Artinvestment
Management Corporation Limited July 29, 2010 ARE management and
IRRNEMEEERERAR H 10,000,000 consulting
201047 A29H AREEE R
Poly Auction (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong  HK$100,000,000/ 55%  38.50% 30%  Auction business
RANBEHEBERAR October 30, 2012 HK$70,000,000 HEXH
%% 100,000,000/
2012%10A30H 70,000,000/ 7T

RFZACEERDERAF
2013 FEME
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13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Place and date
of incorporation

Issued and fully

13 R B R RRIRE (&)

Proportion of

ownership interest

iEeEy: 3320
Group’s Held
effective by the

Held
by a

Name of the company and operation paid-up capital  interest Company subsidiary Principal activities
LR BETR AKEH HEXAF M
ARER EENHRAH BRRE BRER BB DQRRE IEXE
Poly Film Investment Corporation The PRC ~ RMB100,000,000 100% 100% - Radio and television
Limited (“Poly Film”) August 19, 2002 ARE program production;
RUFEREBBR AR ([RIFE]) H 100,000,0007T film screening, snacks
2002F8A19H retailing(limited to
branches of business)
BEEREREOARE:
BRMM TR
(RAEBAX)
Beijing Poly Wanyuan Cinema The PRC RMB 1,500,000  86.67% - 86.67% Cinema operation
Corporation Limited November 11, 2008 AR management
ERRMNERZBERAT HE 1,500,0007T FhigeER
200811 A11H
Poly Photography Art (Beijing) The PRC RMB 960,000  59.17% - 59.17%  Photography related
Corporation Limited December 15, 1984  AE#960,0007T services
RABEEGEN (LR) BRAT HE B RERS
1984F12 4150
Guangzhou Poly International Cinema The PRC RMB 2,000,000 100% - 100%  Cinema operation
Corporation Limited December 9, 2011 AEH management
BMNRAERZHERAR i 2,000,000 MR E R
2011612A9H
Shanghai Poly Cinema Corporation The PRC RMB 2,000,000 100% = 100%  Cinema operation
Limited August 24, 2012 ARE management
LEBRNFZBERAR i 2,000,0007C FhigeER
201248H24R
Wuxi Poly Cinema Corporation Limited The PRC RMB 500,000 100% - 100%  Organization, planning
EHRNERERAT August 1,2012  AR®500,0007C and organizing cultural
H and art exchange
2012%8A1H activities; cinema

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2013
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13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Proportion of
ownership interest

13 RIB R RRIRE (&)

MEEERLA
Place and date Group’s Held Held
of incorporation  Issued and fully effective by the by a
Name of the company and operation paid-up capital  interest Company subsidiary Principal activities
IR BRTR AKEH BEAR :13). ]
NGRS EENHR AN BRRA BRER BB QRBE IEER
Rizhao Poly Cinema Corporation Limited The PRC RMB 500,000 100% - 100%  Cinema operation
BRMRHZHERAR November 16, 2012 AR¥500,0007T management
HE ThiseER
201211 R 168
Shenzhen Poly International Cinema The PRC RMB 500,000 100% - 100%  Cinema operation
Corporation Limited May 17,2013  AR#500,0007C management
AT RN AR AR R A HE ThigeER
2013%5R17R
Shanghai Pudong Poly Cinema The PRC RMB 1,000,000 100% - 100%  Cinema operation
Corporation Limited December 6, 2013 AR management
LEBRRENMZRERLA e 1,000,0007¢ FhisEER
2013F12A6H
Guilin Poly Culture Investment The PRC RMB 1,000,000 100% = 100%  Culture investment and
Development Corporation Limited November 6, 2013 ARE consulting services
BRI RERRBR A A HE 1,000,0007 XU E KA AR
2013%11 A6H

The English translation of the company names for entities

established in the PRC is for reference only. The official names

of the companies established in the PRC are in Chinese.

Note: The Company has the ability to control Shenzhen Poly Theatre
Performance Corporation Limited pursuant to a supplemental
agreement between the Company and minority shareholders.

RAEBERZNERARERENEZRERS
Z o RPRBIKRIZHAREXNRERPI o

M AARBRENREARREDBBERET L
B 8 7 155 2 458 ) R DI 7 R R B e DR L R

BRAT -

RFZACEERDERAF
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13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

The following table lists out the information relating to Beijing
Poly International Auction Corporation Limited, the subsidiary of
the group which has material non-controlling interest (NCI). The
summarised financial information presented below represents the
amounts before any inter-company elimination.

13 RE LA FANKRE (&)

TRETIBRAEEERIFERER (FFER
) WAKEN B AR RRNBERBE
BERABNER - AT 25NHBERRE
R AR 2 AR S o

2013 2012

20134 20124

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T AREET T

NCI percentage FFiER#Ez= B 7t 45% 45%
Current assets R E & 1,184,933 1,322,377
Non-current assets FERBI & &= 60,769 62,680
Current liabilities R 8) & & (673,803) (776,058)
Net assets & &=/ F 58 571,899 608,999
Carrying amount of NCI 3% it #E 25 AR B 257,355 274,050
Revenue Yz 619,139 600,293
Profit for the year A F;H 262,901 271,567
Total comprehensive income #r& U5 4 %8 262,901 271,567
Profit allocated to NCI 7 Bt & FE 1% B #E 2 A 1)) 118,305 122,205
Dividend paid to NCI 2 15 JE#2 J i 25 1 IR 2 135,000 180,000
Cash flows from operating activities & & /EFBEEMNIIRERE 397,061 162,988
Cash flows from investing activities & & EBHELENIRE R E 200,571 216,166
Cash flows from financing activities B & EEEAL MRS R E (406,563) (664,830)

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2013



14 INVENTORIES

Inventories in the consolidated balance sheet comprises:
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14 &

FABERBRANTFENT

15

2013 2012

20134 20124

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥F T ARETTT

Antiques and artwork G E¥Z It 625,342 484,960
Chinese calligraphy and painting A £ = 141,773 125,266
Oil painting and sculptures i = E2 8 29,161 29,161
Small value items for resale FAREE Z/NMMEY) & 6,095 5,131
Low value materials {&{& 5 #E 5 1,501 1,496
Drama rights & H &l B 1,455 942
805,327 646,956

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

15 ESZRKREREWRE

The Group rEE
2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBTIT
Trade receivables for sale of goods and rendering B4 & M2 IR Z 5
of services due from: JEHFIE :
— related parties — B8Et T 705 644
— third parties — =7 139,830 78,698
140,535 79,342
Bills receivable for sale of goods and rendering of services due from:
BEYHE RIBEHREERER
— third parties — =7 1,000 =
oo 141,838 79,342
Less: allowance for doubtful debts j& : REEEE (1,608) (3,166)
139,927 76,176

All trade and bills receivables (net of allowance for doubtful
debts) of the Group are expected to be recovered within one
year.

AEBENMA RS REFIAREERERE (1
BRRREE) BEER —F Rl -

RFZACEERDERAF
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15 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 15 ESRKRFTERERERE

(Continued)
(a) Aging analysis

The aging analysis of trade and bills receivables (net of
allowance for doubtful debts) of the Group, based on

(&)
(a) BRERZD T

pi

AEEE S RYFARBKRER (0
RRERE) REZBPRNEBRE

invoice date and net of allowance for doubtful debts, is BENREDITOT
as follows:
rEE
The Group
2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMETF T ARETTT
Within 1 month —1{iE A A 112,033 51,767
1 to 3 months 1231 A 16,217 5,550
3 to 6 months 3Z61# A 2,480 9,610
6 to 12 months 62 121E A 7,619 7,664
Over 1 year —F A E 1,578 1,585
Trade and bills receivables, net of allowance for doubtful debts
2 Z WA N R EE (RREREE) 139,927 76,176

Trade receivables are generally due immediately without
credit or within a credit period of two months. Further
details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in note
23(a).

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2013
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15 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 15 ESRKRFTERERER

(Continued) (&)

(b) Impairment of trade and bills receivables (b) EZEUREREVREERE
Impairment losses in respect of trade and bills receivables H 5 WA K EWE R AR EEE
are recorded using an allowance account unless the Group AR EIRD S - BRIERNSEBER AU
is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which EEBARBEMNKSEN  EHER
case the impairment loss is written off against trade and T BREEESEEMEE S EWRK
bills receivables directly (see note 2(K)(i)). H R EWER (RHEE2(K)) °
The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts is as REEBENEHOT -
follows:

The Group
2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT
At January 1 781 A1H 3,166 2,142
Impairment losses recognized B R KB EEIE 521 1,840
Reversal of impairment losses JE {E & 18 #[al (611) (816)
Disposal of a subsidiary & & /& RQ & (1,468) =
At the end of the year R R 1,608 3,166

RAALRBBAR B R AR
2013 FEHE
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15 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

(c) Trade and bills receivables that are not
impaired

The aging analysis of trade and bills receivables of
the Group that are neither individually nor collectively
considered to be impaired are as follows:

5 EZRUREREREE

( n
(c)

pi

)

ABENEZEYWREARER
e

I AR Bl sk R R A E R ERN A E
EESEWFENEREE ZERD
M

The Group AEE
2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREET T
Neither past due nor impaired K@ #mApmeE 27451  : 20,337
Less than 1 month past due #HI—1{& A K 96,751 2,945
1 to 3 months past due A& —Z =& A 9,783 22,627
3 to 12 months past due #BHI ==+ —1{& A 5,247 22,492
More than 12 months past due #Hi+ —1& 5 A L 695 7,775
Amounts pastdue @fi® 112476 55,839
139,927 76,176

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to
a wide range of customers for whom there were no recent
history of default and have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2013
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CONSIGNOR ADVANCES

Consignor advances are provided by the Group to certain
collectors and art dealers for financing with interest, which
represented advances provided based on a percentage of
auction reserve price.

As at December 31, 2013, 20.8% of the consignor advances was

due from the group’s largest customer (2012: 22.6%).

Interest income from consignor advances is included in “Finance
income”.

16

HmEREE

AR RS 2 AN 5% 1B ) W el 2R ANl A 88
BRHMNES  WRPEMEE —ELHIR
HX*'J/%\ ©

#H E2013%12A31H M R R FE L W
20.8%K B & E & K M X F (20124 :
22.6%) °

HmARES NS WACFTA THEUA L

h =+
DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND 17 ##e > ANREREMER
==
OTHER RECEIVABLES FIE
The Group AEE
2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARETTT
Prepayments for auctioned artwork 815 & 304,976 407,706
Prepayments for purchase of inventories & A 17 & K78 {3 E 62,911 17,191
Prepayments for performance & it T8 15 718 18,936 27,877
Rental deposits HH &% & 13,528 11,821
Cinema set-up deposits R ILE 33,701 27,998
Interest receivables from consignor advances on auction artwork
HRIRE S EUF B 9,479 11,984
Advances to staff for business related activities & T 2R 4 14,919 20,685
Others EAh 37,000 18,926
495,450 544,188
Less: allowance for doubtful debts J& : RERE (1,549) (1,822)
493,901 542,366

RAALRBBAR B R AR
2013 FEHE
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17 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

17 8% > ANAREREMWER

A (&)

The Company ¥ NN
2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARBFIT
Amounts due from subsidiaries F&U&Ff B A 7 FIE 422,984 270,942
Amounts due from related parties [ U B8 Es: 75 ZO8 2,114 2,217
Others Efh 4,047 1,445
429,145 274,604
Less: allowance for doubtful debts J& : RERE (5,304) (5,304)
423,841 269,300

Impairment of deposits, prepayments and other
receivables

Impairment losses in respect of deposits, prepayments and other
receivables are recorded using an allowance account unless
the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in
which case the impairment loss is written off against deposits,
prepayments and other receivables directly (note 2(k)(i)).

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2013
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17 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND 17 2%~ RARIEREMEK

OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Impairment of deposits, prepayments and other
receivables (Continued)

;E (&)

BE - ANREREMERFIEN

e (&)

The movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful accounts REBRBENEFHNOT -
is as follows:
The Group NEE
2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
At January 1 A1 A1H 1,822 4,951
Impairment losses recognized = R HFEE 18 502 345
Reversal of impairment losses & {8 &5 18 #[al (121) (3,474)
Disposal of a subsidiary &/ E A 7l (654) =
At the end of the year REF K 1,549 1,822
The Company Z N
2013 2012
20134 20124F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBFIT
At January 1 1 818 5,304 8,668
Reversal of impairment losses J& {E /& 18 # 3l - (3,364)
At the end of the year IR 5,304 5,304

RFZACEERDERAF

2013 FEME
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18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 18 RERREEZEY

The Group REE

2013 2012

20134 20124

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREEF T

Cash in hand FEHE & 1,829 1,591

Cash at Poly Finance Company Limited 7R FE AR A TR £ - 202,885

Cash at bank $E1T77F 1,002,894 699,482

Cash and cash equivalents I & M IR & EEY 1,004,723 903,958
The Company NN

2013 2012

20134 20124

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AREET T

Cash in hand F38I8 & 179 174

Cash at Poly Finance Company Limited AR N B IS ER A RIHIR & - 7,418

Cash at bank 177K 13,325 41,766

Cash and cash equivalents 38 & MRS EEY 13,504 49,358

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2013
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19 LOANS AND BORROWINGS

(a)

(b)

(c)

The analysis of the carrying amount of bank

19 BRRENK

(@) XEERARARTENRERE

loans of the Group and the Company is as EWNDHWT :
follows:
The Group AEE
2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARBFIT
Bank loans $R1TE
— Unsecured — #E K3 208,000 298,000
The Company ¥ NN |
2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARBFIT
Bank loans 175 &
— Unsecured — {3 1,000 30,000

The interest rates per annum on bank loans
are as follows:

(b) BEERWEMNEMT :

2013 2012
20134 20124
% %
% %

Bank loans $£17E &
Fixed rate loans [&E F| & & 5.40-6.00 6.00
Variable rate loans jZ & =R & 5.40-6.00 5.40-6.00

At each balance sheet date, bank loans of
the Group were repayable within one year.

() REMFER AEBWRTE
AR — FRKE -

RAALRBBAR B R AR
2013 FEHE
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20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

20 EZ N HEMEN A

The Group AEH
2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBTIT
Trade payables to Z 5 FE{T FUA
— related parties — BB 59,357 47,362
- third parties — &£=7 95,772 125,999
155,129 173,361
Interest payables FEf 72
- related parties — R 8,497 8,497
Payables for staff related costs 8 T #H B8 AK 2N FE 1t 7118 45,401 26,148
Payables for other taxes and surcharges J&{s = /b 5 18 K B hn & 43,288 36,169
Dividends payables &% S 157,946 761
Other accruals and payables E b & 512 F K J& < 5008
- related parties — @577 5,347 9,228
— third parties — £ =77 738,014 816,574
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost IMEHA AT RMSEAHE 1753622 1070, 7558
Receipts in advance T84t 18
— related parties — B8EE T 690 1,382
— third parties — % =7 160,663 137,762
... 16133 139,144
1,314,975 1,209,882

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2013
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& =
20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20 ESRHMEMNIE (&)
(Continued)
The Company |
2013 2012
20135 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Interest payables fEf 72
- related parties — 35t 8,497 8,497
Payables for staff related costs & T #H B8 K 2N FE 1t 7118 1,528 901
Payables for other taxes and surcharges J& {4 5 18 K fff in & 1,132 1,727
Dividends payables &% S 156,750 =
Other accruals and payables E b &5+ 2 F K & < 518
- related parties — B3 20,464 2,267
— third parties — £ =7 854 801
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost R K AT ERN S R B (& 189,225 14,193
Receipts in advance T84 FIA 20 20
189,245 14,213
As at December 31, 2013, all trade and other payables of the M2013F12A31H » AEBERARFFAE
Group and the Company are expected to be settled within one B 5 REAENFIBEBER —FAEE -
year or are repayable on demand. HIREREE

RAALRBBAR B R AR
2013 FEHE
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21 INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE
SHEET

21 EERBRMAIINFAEHR

(@) Current taxation in the balance sheet (a) EEE B R TS A EDH B 1E
represents: 5B

The Group AEE

2013 2012

20134 20124

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETIT

Tax payable at January 1 741 A1 B EMNFEIE 40,674 21,0388

Provision for the year (note 8(a)) A # (Ki7E8(a)) 145,878 182,571

Income tax paid 2 1FFTEH (116,844) (112,930

Disposal of a subsidiary &8 A & (778) -

Tax payable at end of the year 7 K FE Fi 18 68,930 40,674

Tax recoverable at January 1 71 818 A[ Yk @538 (412) (412)

Income tax paid B FT5% (224) -

Tax recoverable at end of the year F4F 7k A] Uk [l 4 18 (636) (412)
The Company Z/N|

2013 2012

20135 20124

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETIT

Tax recoverable at January 1 71 A1 B e @ 5418 (412) (412)

Income tax paid B FT5H (224) -

Tax recoverable at end of the year AR A] g [ 7 78 (636) (412)

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2013



21 INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE

SHEET (Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and

recognized:

liabilities

HEHEB
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21 EERBERAMINFER

(%)

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

recognized in the consolidated balance sheet as at

& :

(b) ERBNELEFREHEERE

ER2013F12A31HAHEEARBER
BRNELEEMEE,(AE) M4

December 31, 2013 and the movements are as follows: ES D REBINT
Provision
for
impairment Tax Accrued Interest
of assets losses expense Income Others Total
Deferred tax arising from BE
EEBIERE WERE HIAEE RREHR FIE A Hith “Et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETRT ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETET
(note)
(i)
At January 1, 2012
720121 H18 699 6 4,097 (6,675) 192 (1,681)
Credited/(charged) to
profit or loss
A (k) B 324 18 1 3,679 (192) 3,830
At December 31, 2012
2012612 A31H 1,023 24 4,098 (2,996) — 2,149
Disposal of a subsidiary
HEHE R A (531) - - - - (531)
Credited/(charged) to
profit or loss
BPVACICIE -F 79 1,957 (101) 626 745 3,306
At December 31, 2013
M2013F12H31H 571 1,981 3,997 (2,370) 745 4,924

RFZACEERDERAF

2013 FEME
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21 INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE
SHEET (Continued)

(b) Deferred

(c)

tax assets and liabilities

recognized: (Continued)

Note: Deferred tax assets in respect of unused tax losses are
related to subsidiaries that were established in recent
years. They are now progressing to their normal operating
stage and are deriving profits. Accordingly, it is considered
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available in the
future to utilise these unused tax losses before they expire.

Deferred tax assets not recognized
The Group

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
2(s), the Group has not recognized deferred tax assets
in respect of unused tax losses of RMB6,968,000 as at
December 31, 2013 (December 31, 2012: RMB2,172,000),
as it is not probable that future taxable profits against
which the losses or the temporary differences can be
utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdictions
and entities. As of December 31, 2013, the unused tax
losses of RMB188,000, RMB742,000 and RMB6,038,000
will expire at the end of the year 2015, 2017 and 2018,
respectively.

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
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21 EERERMINAER

(48

(b)

(c)

ERANELFEHEERSE
& (&)

M AR EBEAHNEERAEE
BT FRIMB AR BRE - ELE
FiEE AR B AT IEEALE Q2RI
BHRAET - At - ERERRZEN
B A1 SRAR AT BEERAS B S FE AR X
M - e Al AR R B m B AR B
FRHTHIARE A -

AERNELEREEE

B F2(s) T &I B & 5K - A
SEMR2013F12 31 B ERE A A
i 18 55 18 A R #6,968,0007T (2012
F12A318 : A R #2,172,0007T)
BRECEHEBEEE  RAZTEHEBER
BEERREBANRKRDAEEEEA
AST L SR B AR IEEE T R
ZEFRNERBEFE - #ZE2013F
12A31H - RBABEEEARK
188,0007T * A R #742,0007T & A
R #6,038,0007T # 5 5l 120154
20174 K2018EEKEm ©



22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS

(a) Movements in components of equity

The reconciliations between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated
equity are set out in the consolidated statements of
changes in equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s
individual components of equity between the beginning and
the end of the year are set out below:

1 Bl s
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22 EXR - REEKRE

(a) BERTSEH

AEBEAHERSARLYOITR
HIRGHRZAHHN A HFRESEH K
A ARARFENEFRAFNE R
BHKE DB BRI

Retained
PRC profits/
Share Capital Share statutory (accumulated
capital reserve  premium reserve losses) Total
B REFE/
BA&  EARE RPEE  EERE (REER) mEE
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETR ARBFTT ARETRT
At January 1, 2012
M2012F181A8 165,000 - 4,874 13,962 104,659 288,495
Changes in equity: &2 :
Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year
FRMERFE R EE = - - - 250,509 250,509
Appropriation of reserve B = = - 25,051 (25,051) -
At December 31, 2012
®2012512831H 165,000 - 4,874 39,013 330,117 539,004
At January 1, 2013
®2013F181H 165,000 - 4,874 39,013 330,117 539,004
Changes in equity: X #) :
Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year
FRMERFE R EE - - - - 178,120 178,120
Appropriation of reserve & & - - - 17,812 (17,812) -
Dividends proposed
during the year FR#HR % 8 - - - - (156,750)  (156,750)
At December 31, 2013
®20135%12831H 165,000 - 4,874 56,825 333,675 560,374

RFZACEERDERAF
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22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(b) Dividends
Dividends payable to equity shareholders

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
during the year:

22 B - REERRE (8)

(b) RE

JEN Bt RS

KRR BRF A FEA IR 0 iR B n
™

RMB’000
AR®TT

Dividend proposed during the year of RMB0.95 per ordinary share
RERRFREBIRARE0.95TTHIKAR 2 156,750

On July 10, 2013, the shareholders resolved to make a
dividend distribution of RMB156,750,000. The dividend
proposed during the year has been recognized as a liability.

201347 A108 » BEZ R IR
B AR #156,750,0007C ° A & A #
KRB EHRARE -

(c) Share capital (c) BA&
Authorized and issued share capital FREZFTRA
2013 2012
20134 20124
No, of shares No, of shares
R EE SrEd=
’000 RMB’000 000 RMB’000
Fr AR¥T T T A% ARETTT
Authorized: FFE :
Ordinary shares of RMB1 each
BREBREBAREIT 165,000 165,000 165,000 165,000
Ordinary shares, issued
and fully paid:
EERTRACRAZEER :
At January 1 and at December 31
M1A1BKX12831H 165,000 165,000 165,000 165,000

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
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22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Capital reserve

Capital reserve mainly represents capital premium,
contributions from equity shareholders, and the
difference between the considerations of acquisition
or disposal of equity interests from/to non-controlling
equity owners and the carrying amount of the
proportionate net assets.

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference between
the par value of the shares of the Company and
proceeds received from the issuance of the shares
of the Company.

PRC statutory reserve

The subsidiaries in the PRC are required to
appropriate 10% of its after-tax profit, as determined
in accordance with the PRC accounting rules and
regulations, to the general reserve fund until the
reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered capital.
The transfer to this reserve must be made before
distribution of a dividend to equity shareholders. This
reserve fund can be utilised in setting off accumulated

losses or increasing capital of the Company and is
non-distributable other than in liquidation.

Exchange reserve

Exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of operations that have functional
currency other than the RMB which are dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies as set out
in note 2(v).

22 B - REERRE (8)

(d) RBEHMERASE

()

(i)

(i)

(iv)

EAE

ERFBIERENGE  #x
BREHE - ki mIEER
A A SRR
BEIZLL UG E EFEMNRE
E2FMNEHE -

2\

BA G EHEARF R EEER
RARMDBITHAERAZENE
B

o BZE [ 1

REFEESARARER  PE
BB & R ZA S E10% K BR B & A
BEAREEERHE BEERED
BEDEMERNS0% AL ° [
ot A R 3 A B AT ST 0 B
BABEEZERE o MBS
TR HA R B RETE RN E AR
e BRIFEERERNA DR -

B S 17 1

IE 5 R B IR EREM E2(v)
PrEv &5t BRI E A ARK A
SMNVER B BEREB R
BMERELNPAINEER °

RFZACEERDERAF
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22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(e) Distributability of reserves

(f)

Under the Company Law of the PRC and the Company’s
Articles of Association, net profit after tax as reported in
the statutory financial statements prepared in accordance
with the accounting rules and regulations of the PRC can
only be distributed as dividends after allowances have been
made for the following:

(i) Making up prior years’ cumulative losses, if any;

(i) Allocations to the statutory reserve as set out in note
22(d)(iii) above; and

(i) Allocations to the discretionary common reserve if
approved by the shareholders.

After the listing of the Company’s shares on HKSE,
in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company, the net profit after tax of the Company for the
purpose of dividends payment will be the lesser of (i) the
net profit determined in accordance with the accounting
rules and regulations of the PRC; and (ii) the net profit
determined in accordance with IFRSs.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
equity shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products and services commensurately with
the level of risk and by securing access to financing at a
reasonable costs.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher equity shareholder returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2013

22 £ - #EERE (F)

(e) AHDIKMEE

(f)

RIEPEARKNMBERRDERALQE
MAEBEIZAR - RPEEEIR
SRR AR BLHE TE B I R P AT 2 A
B FNEREEL TIRERER
BB DI :

() BEEEAFENHRAEE M
B)

iy o B E S sE22(d)(ii) BT & 5Y
ATEREE &

(i) MR AE PEEEERE
@0

RARBHBEN R BEEB M LT
% REARFEGEIEZMAE - AR
A R 32 B B RO B 1203 1) A (i) IR
BB SRR FORREE R FF
R (ii) AR 458 BB 5 5 75 0 5 2 R 7B E M0 0%
M (ARDERE) °

EXER

AEEEREANTIZAR/RER
SENFELENE N BREE
3B {65 2E on S AR 75 19 7E (B B AL B 7k F —
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AEEEBEEERERNREELEARN
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22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(f)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
liability-to-asset ratio, which is calculated as total liabilities
divided by total assets. The liability-to-asset ratio of the
Group as at December 31, 2013 were 50.93% (2012:
52.55%). The liability-to-asset ratio of the Company as at
December 31, 2013 were 25.35% (2012: 7.58%).

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital
management during the years ended December 31, 2013
and 2012. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks

arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk

management policies and practices used by the Group to

manage these risks are described below:

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash at
bank and in hand, trade and bills receivables, consignor
advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables
and other non-current assets. Management has a credit
policy in place and the exposure to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

Substantially all of the Group’s cash at bank and in hand
are deposited in state-owned/controlled PRC banks or
finance company owned by the Poly Group which the
directors assessed the credit risk to be insignificant.

22 EX - RERKRE (&)

23

(H EBEXREE (&)

AEERBEEEABRE (REAER
NBEEFE) EBHEAREE - X
EER2013F 12831 HNEERER
£50.93% (20124F : 52.55%) ° &K
AIR2013F 12 A31HMEERARER A
25.35% (20124 : 7.58%) °

7N £ B B =20134F K%20124F12 A 31
BLEFEHHEREARNN A EY
&) o ARNE|HEERMERRBRZ
SNEBHE NN B B AR TE AR IR o

BEEREERQAAEE

AEERABRRGERETAZEE  RBE
& FEREERR -

AEBAEASNZERBEANEEANAEE
7 5 [ B B B 765 3 B B ISR I 1 91 st 4
T

(a) EERR

AEBZEERRTIZREFHES
RBITER - BHRKFAREBEE
B AmRES  EHE  BARER
HpEWRBAREMERDEE - &
BEAEEREK  YURKEEER
RZEEERR -

BIMEARERE RRTEREEF
R BEBE EHIRTT - RFIEE
BENPBLRE WEFERREER
RBTRK o

RFZACEERDERAF
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23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 28 MERABEERAAEE

AND FAIR VALUES (Continued) (&)

(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EERk (&)

In respect of trade and bills receivables, consignor
advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables
and other non-current assets, credit evaluations are
performed on major customers. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the customer
operates. For consignor advances, the evaluations also
focus on the overall trend of artwork market. The Group
generally requires customers to settle trade receivables
in accordance with contracted terms and other debts in
accordance with agreements. Credit terms may be granted
to customers, depending on the nature of business.

At the respective balance sheet dates, the Group has
certain concentration of credit risk. The receivables from
the five largest debtors at December 31, 2013 represented
34% of the total trade and bills receivables and other
receivables (December 31, 2012: 41%), while 11% of the
total trade and bills receivables and other receivables were
due from the largest single debtor (December 31, 2012:
15%).

Except for the financial guarantees given by the Group as
set out in note 25(a), the Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk.
The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of these
financial guarantees at the balance sheet date as disclosed
in note 25(a).

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and bills
receivables, consignor advances, deposits, prepayments
and other receivables are set out in notes 15, 16 and 17
respectively.
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23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 23 IXEREERAAEE
AND FAIR VALUES (Continued) (&)
FEE RS

(b) Liquidity risk (b)

The Group’s objective is to ensure continuity of sufficient
funding and flexibility by utilising a variety of bank and other
borrowings with debt maturities spreading over a range of
periods, thereby ensuring that the Group’s outstanding
borrowing obligation is not exposed to excessive repayment
risk in any one year.

The Company is responsible for the Group’s overall cash
management and the raising of borrowings to cover
expected cash demands. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor current and expected liquidity requirements to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s and
the Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which are
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the balance sheet date)
and the earliest date the Group and the Company can be
required to pay:

AEENBEREMNAEGIHAES
R E) & AEERIT A E M1 5K - FEAR AT
FEREGARABENRE @ Mg
RASE R AREENEERFEER
FETEAZBLHEERR

AREBEASRERENRSEEM
SREFAREEHNREHFR - A
SENBK R T REEE R MTAETH
MBETHR - UEFREF MR
TR ASESIESRMEAR
RETHNERES  UinEEHM
EHRBESHENK

TRANAKERARRFITES R
BERGEANRIGREHOHR - HJS
NEHARBRERERE (BREEZEEH
MERFAESHOM BN - AT
BHE AREEENERNNXGFE
BHOMENH) ARAEEEAR
AR AR R T HHIREE
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23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The Group

23 HEREERAAEE

= —

(#&)

(b) FEEER (&)

At December 31, 2013
M2013F12H31H

Contractual
undiscounted
cash outflow

within 1 year Carrying
or on demand amount

1FRRRER

EHESES: T
HE&m IREE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETF T AR®T T
Loans and borrowings (note 19) B K &7 (MfzE19) 212,066 208,000
Income tax payable (note 21(a)) FEF TS (FI5E21(a)) 68,930 68,930

Trade and other payables measured at amortized costs (note 20)

B 5 NEMENRIE - RBHK ARG E (Mi5E20) 1,153,622 1,153,622
1,434,618 1,430,552

At December 31, 2012
12012412 A31H

Contractual
undiscounted
cash outflow

within 1 year Carrying
or on demand amount

1FAFIREK

EETHIARRLIR
WemE BREE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT AREFTT
Loans and borrowings (note 19) Bk & f& 3k (KizE19) 303,410 298,000
Income tax payable (note 21(a)) FENFrE% (M:E21(a)) 40,674 40,674

Trade and other payables measured at amortized costs (note 20)

B 5 NEMENIR - RE#BHEK ARG E (Mi5E20) 1,070,738 1,070,738
1,414,822 1,409,412
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23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 2 BRRAREERAAEBE

AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The Company

(%)
(b) FBER (&)

AATF

At December 31, 2013
M20135F12A31H
Contractual
undiscounted
cash outflow

within 1 year Carrying
or on demand amount
1FRHRER
BRTAREER
Be&Rd REE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AR¥ET T
Loans and borrowings (note 19) B &k K &7 (FfzE19) 1,017 1,000
Trade and other payables measured at amortized costs (note 20)
B 5 REMBENFIA - REHKATE (H5£20) 189,225 189,225
190,242 190,225

At December 31, 2012
2012412 A31H
Contractual
undiscounted
cash outflow
within 1 year
or on demand Carrying amount

1ERTIRER

EETAARAAIR

IR & AREE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBTTT

Loans and borrowings (note 19) &3k K&k (MzE19) 30,876 30,000
Trade and other payables measured at amortized costs (note 20)

B 5 NEMBENRIE - B HEA ARG 2 (Mi5220) 14,193 14,193

45,069 44,193

RAALRBBAR B R AR
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23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

The Group regularly reviews and monitors the mix of fixed
and variable rate borrowings in order to manage its interest
rate risks. During the years ended December 31, 2013 and
2012, however, management of the Group did not consider
it is necessary to use interest rate swaps to hedge their
exposure to interest.

(i) Interest rate profile
The following table details the profile of the Group’s

net borrowings (interest-bearing financial liabilities
less interest-bearing financial assets) at balance

23

(c) FEE ks

AEEONXEREERBMER 1R
FEMERHNEESAKEATR
TREMERER -

AEBETHEHREERTE RZEF)
REFTNAEBRAEEF R
SR - R E 220134 K20124F12 A
1ALLFE  AEBENERERAE
EFE AR RS E AR R RE R -

0 FIEREHE
TRESIAEENEE B EHF

#BAGEERAERTESRE
BE) MR - XEEERNF

sheet date. The detailed interest rates of the Group’s KGR B ERNHTEE19
borrowings are disclosed in note 19.
The Group TEH
2013 2012
20135 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMEF T AR¥ETTT
Fixed rate borrowings: B EF|RMEK :
Loans and borrowings B3 K& {& 3k 80,000 40,000
Floating rate borrowings: 2B FRME K :
Loans and borrowings B K& {& 7k 128,000 258,000
Total borrowings f& 3K 4258 208,000 298,000
Fixed rate borrowings as a percentage of total borrowings
BEEMEEREEREREDL 38.46% 13.42%
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23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(1)

(i)

23 IBEREERAAEBE

==

=]

(c) M=EE (&)

Interest rate profile (Continued) () FIERZEE (&)
The Company b /N
2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARBTTT
Fixed rate borrowings: ElERMRER :
Loans and borrowings B X M &k 1,000 -
Floating rate borrowings: ¥ B 7R {& 5% :
Loans and borrowings B 7 K {& 7k - 30,000
Total borrowings & k4258 1,000 30,000
Fixed rate borrowings as a percentage of total borrowings
& E M R GG ERETEE DL 100.00% 0.00%
Sensitivity analysis (i) SERESHT

At December 31, 2013, it is estimated that a general
increase of 100 basis points in interest rates of net
floating borrowings, with all other variables held
constant, the Group’s profit after tax and retained
profits would have decreased by approximately
RMB891,065 (2012: RMB1,835,000). Other
components of consolidated equity would not be
affected by the general increase/decrease in interest
rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the balance sheet date and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for non-
derivative financial instruments in existence at the
balance sheet date. The impact on the Group’s profit
after tax (and retained profits) and other components
of consolidated equity is estimated as an annualised
impact on interest expense or income of such a
change in interest rates.

MR2013F12A831H * BR H b
BERETE  WEFZHE
TR = HN100ME £ 2 0 B A
EEFREFBERLOARE
891,0657T (20124 : A R ¥
1,835,0007T) ° & G E Ath 20
DHEFS BB REN, R

=
DR E -

BRGURES T RBRAN XD RN
FEBRZLRY  BEAARE
BERAFEMNFITESRT AR
RRBRRIFL - NEBEBRRFE
(RREBHE) KA DR
MAMTEIRBERZEMNERE
BAMELENNERAXRBANEF
BcEEMmART -

RFZACEERDERAF
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23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The estimated 100 basis points increase or
decrease represents management’s assessment of
a reasonable change in interest rates over the period
until the next balance sheet date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for the years of 2013
and 2012.

(d) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases which give rise to receivables, payables
and cash at bank and in hand that are denominated in a
foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which the transactions relate.
The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily Hong
Kong dollars.

(i)  Recognized assets and liabilities

In respect of cash at bank and in hand, receivables
and payables denominated in foreign currencies, the
Group considers that the net exposure to foreign
currency risk is insignificant. The Group did not hedge
its foreign currency exposure.

RMB is not a freely convertible currency and the PRC
government may at its discretion restrict access to
foreign currencies for current account transactions in
the future. Changes in the foreign exchange control
system may prevent the Group from satisfying
sufficient foreign currency demands and the Group
may not be able to pay dividends in foreign currencies
to its equity shareholders.

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
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23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(i)

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure
at the balance sheet date to currency risk arising
from recognized assets or liabilities denominated in
a currency other than the functional currency of the
entity to which they relate. For presentation purposes,
the amounts of the exposure are shown in RMB,
translated using the spot rate at the balance sheet
date. Differences resulting from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations into the
Group’s presentation currency are excluded. The
Company’s exposure of the balance sheet date is
immaterial.

The Group

23 MBEREERAAEBE

= —

(#&)

(d) E¥mEkE (&)

(i)

EEm G AE

TRAVRBEEAREE DT
REERBEWINERR - BRI
EESABMNEEEAEE
BRANERNINEEEAINNE
%o REHRBH - FIAZERK
SHRCRSEE B EIHIE R
HRARY - 88N BRI
BRAE/AKENEZREEH
EEMZBETNAEEAR - AAF
REZEENRARTERX -

REHE

Exposure to
foreign currencies
(expressed in RMB)
At December 31,
2013

Hong Kong
Dollars
B L B A A
(MAR®EE)
R2013F12A31H
BT

RMB’000
ARBT T

Cash and cash equivalents IR & M IR & EEY
Trade and bills receivables & 5) & U518 & U 22 &
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables & &
Consignor advances AR5 &

Income tax payable FEfFriSH:

Trade and other payables & 5 & £t &~ F 18

FEAS FRIA K H At FE MR IR

322,843
8,699
76,691
20,441
(19,957)
(108,054)

Net exposure J% @ &

300,663

RAALRBBAR B R AR
2013 FEHE
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23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(i) Exposure to currency risk (Continued)

23 HBERMEERAAEBE

= —

(&)
(d) E=EB (&)
(i)  EEEfRAE (&)

Exposure to
foreign currencies
(expressed in RMB)
At December 31,
2012

Hong Kong

Dollars

SN [ B 7 HE
(AAR¥GHE)
2012412 A31H
BT

RMB’000
ARBTT

Cash and cash equivalents IR & MR & EEY
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables &% -
Trade and other payables & 5 & £ th f& < F8

232,152

TEAS BRI K B At FE MR IR 5,803

(92,717)

Net exposure JFEf%

145,238

(i) Sensitivity analysis

The followings are the related foreign currency
exchange rates to RMB during the years ended

December 31, 2013 and 2012:

Average rate

(i) RS
R EL E20134F 2012612 31
BIEFEINE A R A E R 40
B

Reporting date spot rate

FHER e A ENAE R
2013 2012 2013 2012
20134 20124 2013%F 20124
HKD &7t 0.7986 0.8108 0.7862 0.8109

A 5% strengthening of RMB against the following
currency as at December 31, 2013 would have
increased/(decreased) the net profit after tax
and equity by the amounts shown below. Other
components of equity would not be affected by the
strengthening of RMB against foreign currency.

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2013
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23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)

23 MBEREERAAEBE

= —

(#&)

(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) E¥REMR (&)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (Continued) (i) BT (&)
The Group AEH
2013 2012
20135 20125
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBTT
HKD &7t (14,476) (6,810
A 5% weakening of RMB against the above currencies M2013F12A31H * AR X
as at December 31, 2013 would have had the equal N EE®EGEES% - 8 AL
but opposite effect on the above currencies to the BEEEARSFSERARNZE (10
amounts shown above, on the basis that all other LI HERTR) BERFMABH
variables remain constant. S (RIFTE o
The sensitivity analysis has been determined U E 71T T (B2 5% 5N B 2 () 8
assuming that the change in foreign exchange rates fbEEREEER - WEEAS
had occurred at the balance sheet date and had been AEBERZBAHEFENESHTI A
applied to the Group’s exposure to currency risk for Fra Ay SNE RS - RIS AT A A
financial instruments in existence at that date, and e - R EFRERFIE -
that all other variables, in particular interest rates,
remain constant.
The stated changes represent management’s TSR EREBEERLBEE
assessment of reasonably possible changes in foreign ET—[EA#E BEINERERE
exchange rates over the period until the next balance K A] B2 (b MO RT 1l o 3% o AT £
sheet date. The analysis is performed on the same 20134 &20124F 2 £ [F — E i
basis for the years of 2013 and 2012. EETH
(e) Fair values (e) 2AEE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments I (B 4 AR AN S SE K AR B BR ) b
carried at cost or amortized cost are not materially different TARMKRESRE - BHEMR2013F12H
from their fair values as at December 31, 2013. SIHMARBETEEREZE -
Estimation of fair values f) 2REEME

(f)

The fair values of interest-bearing borrowings and
receivables are estimated as the present value of future
cash flows, discounted at current market interest rates for
similar financial instruments.

FHEBRAMEYREN AR BETIZ
ARBREREZBEMT - MREZ
RARUSR T ANERHISN R
3 o

RFZACEERDERAF
2013 FEME
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24 COMMITMENTS

(@)

Commitments for the acquisition of property, plant
and equipment, purchase of performances, leasehold
improvements for cinema investment and management

24 7EiE

() RBEFR  ALRERHERAHRE
BORBYE  BELRE BEER
b FREEREMETENER

outstanding at each year end not provided for in the AEYENR -
financial statements were as follows:
The Group AEE
2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Contracted for 2 5] %) 41,596 69,070
Authorized but not contracted for B ZEE R4 559,969 574,991
601,565 644,061

At each year end, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as
follows:

b) RBEFR RETARELEHER
ARENHFEREMNKAEEMNT ¢

The Group rEE
2013 2012
20135 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTTT
Within 1 year 1 X 80,716 78,483
After 1 year but within 5 years 15 LA F{B5F R 237,684 266,393
After 5 years 5F A I 387,883 434,889
706,283 779,765

The Group leases certain buildings through non-cancellable
operating leases. Typically, leases are negotiated and
rentals are fixed for lease term. Certain leases include
contingent rentals calculated with reference to revenue of
the tenants.

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2013
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25 CONTINGENT ASSETS AND

25 FIREERERE

LIABILITIES
(a) Financial guarantees issued (a) EBEHNEHKEER
At each year end, the Company issued financial guarantees REER ' XARME T AR RKE
to banks in respect of the bank loans granted to the RNAEMIRITERMBITIELD THI 87
Company’s subsidiaries as follows: ER
The Company PN
2013 2012
20135 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Financial guarantees to banks for subsidiaries
FLHTEB A RIAERTT1EH B B TG &R 207,000 268,000
As at balance sheet date, the directors do not consider it REHEER  ESRABBBEEMPER
probable that a claim will be made against the Company MARERERENATREETK
under any of the guarantees.
(b) Contingent liabilities (b) HAAEE

As an investment consultant of artwork financing trust plan
for certain subsidiaries, the Group is obliged to fund the
difference if the expected proceeds from the sale of trust
properties were insufficient to cover the trust principal,
trust fee, beneficiary’s expected net gain and relevant tax
expenses at the expiring date of the trust plan.

At each year end, maximum exposure in respect of trust
plan assuming nil proceeds at expiring date as follows:

ERETHEBARNBELEMRE
RERNREER  METMERE
FERT B I B MBS E B AIA T
RUAXHEFRAE  EEE X5
Bt FE R AEMERX - AR
AERBHEMEER

REFR  BRVEIHBBBET
FmEpENRSRERNT

The Group rEE
2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREFIT
Trust related 55t & & 253,000 188,000

RAALRBBAR B R AR
2013 FEHE
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25 CONTINGENT ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Continued)

(c) Contingent liability in respect of legal claim

The subsidiaries of the Group appeared to be defendants
in certain lawsuits, also appearing named parties in other
proceedings generated from regular businesses. Though
the results of these lawsuits and other proceedings are
unable to be determined currently, having considered the
claims in conjunction with the Group’s legal counsel, the
board of directors believes that the liabilities arising from
these claims will not have a significant negative impact on
the Group’s financial position or results of operations.

26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTION

In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere
in this financial statements, the Group entered into the following
significant related party transaction during the years ended
December 31, 2013 and 2012.

(a) Name and relationship with related parties

During the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012,
transactions with the following parties are considered as

25 AREERER (F)

(c) BER:ERENIAEE

AEEMBARES TEARFRTR
WEA  FRIEREBHELNEAM
RARTIERWE - BEZXTEEFN
K EMEFAR AR B ATEARE - &
BAEENEZEZERARZRRER
Big EXERRAFTREELNE
BT EHAEENT MR KE L
EEERERTHNEE -

26 EXBEEBAIRS

Br T AT HRER B A W ERREE AR
AEBENEZE2013F K20129F 12318 1
FEIIN T TER@BH LS -

(a) BHEKEREARE T AYEAZ

R E £2013% K2012912A318 1t
FE HTANRHATHRIERE

related party transactions: BREB RS
Name of party B 5 £ 58 Relationship B§{%

China Poly Group Corporation (“Poly Group”) Parent and ultimate holding company
PERMEE AR (RFIEE D ISYNEIPSE 232t @NC]

Poly Group’s affiliates Under common control

RERFAISE R B E A A [R5

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2013
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26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTION (Continued)

(b) Significant transactions with related parties
The Group is part of a large group of companies under Poly
Group and has significant transactions and relationships

with Poly Group and its affiliates.

The principal transactions which were carried out in the

26 EXBBL RS (&)

(b) EERABESHIBEARR S
AEERRANEEBE T AR EERA
M—#5  WERRFIEERLLHEA
TRITEARZH RBHEEME

BEEEBETRENIEZERFN

ordinary course of business are as follows: ™
2013 2012
20135 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREET T
Sales to [FAIA#HE
Poly Group and its affiliates #& A1 5 [ [z BB A+ 1,676 455
Service provided to [A]E 1E (7R
Poly Group and its affiliates #& 71| 5 [ [z E B A+ 13,044 15,637
Receiving Service # = fR7%
Poly Group and its affiliates & 71| 5 [ [z E B A+ 41,959 352
Office rental from (note (i) FAA R A (HT a2 (i)
Poly Group and its affiliates 4R 71| 5 B fz E 1 BB A £ 32,555 28,846
Interest income FiE A
Poly Group and its affiliates 4R 71| 5 B fz E B BB A £ 5,328 5,022
Repayment of loans 1&#& &3t
Poly Group and its affiliates RF|%EE Rk Z BB - 1,500 =
Disposal of a subsidiary & & H1/& 2\ &l
Poly Group and its affiliates #& A1 5 [ [ BB A+ 10,168 -

RAALRBBAR B R AR
2013 FEHE
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26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTION (Continued)

(b) Significant transactions with related parties
(Continued)

26 EXEBARS (&)

(b) EBEBLINEARS (&)

2013 2012
20135 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R AR¥ETTT
Decrease of financial guarantee received from #5581 7 HE (Rt 4
Poly Group and its affiliates {752 B & H Bt E A+ - (150,000)
Property management services ¥)5 & R
Poly Group and its affiliates {752 & & H Bt E A+ 10,488 9,119
Working capital obtained from A B FA £E &%
Poly Group and its affiliates 4% %I 5 [ & E BB A L+ 1,000 -
Working capital repaid to /] B f7iE £ £ %
Poly Group and its affiliates 7|52 B & H Bt E A L+ 1,000 1,500

Notes:

(i) Poly Group’s affiliates refer to the entities which are under
common control by the same ultimate holding company
with the Group, and are not the parent or associates of the
Group.

(i) The Directors are of the opinion that these related party
transactions are arising in the Group’s normal course of
business.

(i) Beijing Poly Art Centre Corporation Limited paid nil rent
to Poly Group for its use of office space for the years ended
December 31, 2013.

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2013

(i)

(ii)

RAEENEBALIRAAEE
A — B3 4 1 R 2% ] 4 D o ) B
B TR R AR E 8 A A K

AR -

IR o MK

EERR UWEEBAIXFELE
BEEBBIEPESL

HZE2013F12A31BILFE - &t &=
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26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTION (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Outstanding balances, including
commitment, with related parties

Details of the outstanding balances with related parties
are as follows:

26 EXBBL RS (&)

(c) BRBAINREERSEE B
3]

BRAEE T R EEERNFIBFMT ¢

2013 2012
20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETF T AREFTT
Cash and cash equivalents % R 2 Z(EY)
Poly Group " s affiliates R |5 E &V & A+ - 202,885
Trade and bills receivables & 5 JEY 5118 J FEHL = 15
Poly Group and its affiliates #& A1 5 [ [z BB A+ 705 644
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables
- fE/VL/ME&;E:/ﬂ/Ej/f/M
Poly Group and its affiliates 7|52 & & H B E A+ 7,232 6,847
Trade and other payables &2 X Bt fE (1508
Poly Group and its affiliates 7|52 & & H B E A+ 73,891 66,469

Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

The Group participates in various defined contribution
retirement plans organized by relevant local government
authorities for its staff. As at December 31, 2013, there was
no material outstanding contribution to post-employment
benefit plans. Details of the defined contribution retirement
plans are set out in note 7(b).

(d) PREEMFEARGTBIERK

REB 2 HEIFEM T BTHEESE %
Iﬂﬂ%ﬁzﬁ’]ylﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁf SGRIKETE o
201312 A31H - 17MmflJ—+ilJﬂzﬁ
BARRZAEER - REHE TR
EIHFIBHIIRNHIZET (0) ©

RAALRBBAR B R AR
2013 FEHE
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26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTION (Continued)

(e) Key management personnel remuneration

(f)

Key management personnel are those persons holding
positions with authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Group, directly
or indirectly, including the Company’s directors.

Remuneration for key management personnel, including
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed
in note 9, and certain of the highest paid employees as
disclosed in note 10, is as follows:

26 EXBBL RS ()

(e) TEEEAENH M

TEEEABRAEFMEERLARE
HWRBEFEESFEEMRE  BEER
THIAKRBEETOAL  BREAKH
MES -

FTEERASNETMEEMFOMKE
B AR B E B HFRIBFR M 1073
BENETEaFMESNFKIE - &
FaR

2013 2012

20135 20124

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREET T

Short-term employee benefits 42 #i{&E 8 18 7 4,253 5,036
Post-employment benefits B %1% & 7 725 230
4,978 5,266

Total remuneration was included in “staff costs” (see note
7(b)).

Guarantee provided by Poly Group

As at December 31, 2012, the Group’s bank loan bore
interest of 6.56% per annum and was guaranteed by Poly
Group. The guarantee was released in the first half year of
2012 with the repayment of the bank loan. As at December
31, 2018, no bank loan was guaranteed by Poly Group.

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
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(f)

F@mt ATE IR (2B EE
7(b)) °

RIS ERHBER

M2012F12A31H » AEBEHRFIE
B EREE R FE R E RF6.56% © 7% &
RAR20124F L FRPITERE RN
fEBR - R2013F 128318 © (RFIEHE
W AREETRITEZIREER -
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27 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARY 27 REME A A

The Group disposed of and transferred 51% equity interest in
Chongging Poly Wanhe Cinema Circuit Co., Ltd. (“Poly Wanhe
Cinema Circuit”) in June 2013 to the controlling shareholder
on the basis of the net assets value of Poly Wanhe Cinema
Circuit as at June 30, 2013. The total proceed for the subsidiary
amounted to RMB10,168,000.

Effect of disposals of subsidiary on the assets and liabilities of
the Group:

(i) Net assets disposed

AEENEERFENEXREEREAR
A (MR EMEFL]) 20136 A30H
WEEFEAREE - N2013F6 A MIER&
R E R ES1 %R F & A E 50T AR A%
o HENEHBARMASRIBAREEA
R #10,168,0007T °

HEMBARHAREEENRABENTE

iy EBEFEE

RMB’000
ARETTT
Property, plant and equipment ¥1% - &&E & & & 3,651
Cash and cash equivalents I8¢ MIRE& EEY 9,296
Trade and bills receivables & 5 J& W 508 & fE IR 2= 1% 54,911
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables ¥z ~ 81 kT8 & E b fE U 118 1,333
Deferred tax assets IEIEF B E E 531
Trade and other payables & 5 K E f f& {28 (50,384)
Income tax payable FEfFT1SH: (778)
Non-controlling interests JF1% B 25 (9,095)
Net assets disposed B & F & E B 5 9,465
Carrying amount of capital reserve in the subsidiary disposed of
HEMNHEAREARFKERTE (5,100)
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries & M B A &) 8 /F Y25 5,803
10,168
Satisfied in cash MAIR & 2 fF 10,168

RFZACEERDERAF
2013 FEME
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27 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARY
(Continued)

(i) Analysis of net cash inflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the disposals of subsidiary:

27 REMfB AT (&)

(i) BEHEMNBARERNRSIESSE
EBYHRSRAFEDIN

RMB’000

ARBFIT

Cash consideration received 2 UIR& K18 10,168
Cash disposed of H&H ¢ (9,296)
Net cash inflow I8 &/ AJF 58 872

28 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE
HOLDING COMPANY

The directors of the Company consider its parent and ultimate
holding company to be Poly Group Corporation Limited, which
is a state-owned enterprise established in the PRC. The parent
company does not produce financial statements available for
public use.

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
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28 B RATAIRBRARERAT

all

RRABERZRR  ARFINERF RRZE
BARZRHEFRNEEAT  ZRAREET
BRZHMBEAERE - §ARLEFRAFHA
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29 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF
AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

Up to the date of issue of the financial statements, the IASB
has issued a number of amendments, new standards and
interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended
December 31, 2013 and which have not been adopted in the
financial statements. These include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

HEMM B REREM AL - EERER AR
BEeDBMHATR2013F12A318 LF
JEﬁéﬁfkiiﬁwx&Wﬁ%ﬁﬁki&%ﬁ%j’rﬂﬁéiﬁq
B —RINERT « FTERRRRE - HpHEARE
EEREMEET - %ﬁﬁE'J&ﬁEZIDT

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

EUTHHZH 2%

FmMEFHEEN

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27, Investment entities January 1, 2014
2 B?%W%i&iz@ﬁu%‘m% e Ef%ﬁ!ﬂ%i&%ﬁ,ﬁ\u%m%& 2014%1 A1H

B ERE27TRER]  REEE

Amendments to IAS 32, Financial instruments:

January 1, 2014

Presentation — Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities 201451 HA18
Re T ERIER BRI e@M T A : 23— HifeHEERSHERE
Amendments to IAS 36, Recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial assets January 1, 2014
BB =R ERIFE 365 2 185] © 2 FEE A BN % BB 77 75 2014%1 818

IFRIC 21, Levies

January 1, 2014

HRM s HREREEEGREF21% - AIUE 20141 /1H
IFRS 9, Financial instruments (2009), IFRS 9, Financial instruments (2010) January 1, 2015
BIBR B 5k S R ZE95% - @ T A (2009F ) - 20151 H1H

BB ISR S ERISF % - £/ T A (20104)

RFZACEERDERAF
2013 FEME
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29 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF
AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards and
new interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.

30 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On March 6, 2014, the H Shares of the Company became listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, pursuant to which
70,710,000 ordinary shares of RMB1.00 each were issued at a
price of HKD33.00 per share by the Company.

On March 14, 2014, in connection with the exercise of the Over-
allotment Option, 10,606,000 ordinary shares with nominal value
of RMB1.00 each were issued at a price of HKD33.00 per share
by the Company.

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
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30

B8 14 R 4 MV IEET -
RS %

il

REEEEF AR FER] - #a] ER L]
EERMBERNEXERPRANELNZE -
FB A AL - AKERE - KRR EHETE
B BREERTIAA LS HAEEHKE
RELMBNRELEATE -

HREE

M2014F3H6H « NAQFHKR E R & BB
RATERLET - Hit - AR FHZFAX33.00
75 T B 15 3 7770,710,0000 B R E B A
R#1.00chE @A -

R2014F3H14H » SLITEBEEEREM
= RRA AR ER%33.005 7T ) B 1R 21T
0,606, 000f% & & HE1E A R ¥1.007T /)X
@‘n ®
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“Articles”

KRRIER)]

“Board of Directors”

-

“Board of Supervisors”

(5= & ]

“Companies Ordinance”

INCIEESU

» o« »

“Company”, “we”, “us”,
“our” or “Poly Culture”

[ARA]] -~ T3] =X
[MRAAE ]

“Connected Transaction(s)”

(&R ]

“Controlling Shareholder”
[ 2 AR AR R

“Corporate Governance Code”

“Directors”

[E%]

“Domestic Shares”

[RE K]

B
Glossary

AR E

the Articles of Association of the Company

EN/N AN R 2

the board of directors of the Company

RABEES

the board of supervisors of the Company

ARANESFE

the old Companies Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and
new Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
EREDIE2EE RN R FEE22F 5 A &S (B TRHERT » #sk AR
i 73 2 1& k)

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited (& | X 1t & B % 15 & R A 7))
and except where the context indicates otherwise, all of its Subsidiaries
and with respect to the period before our Company became the holding
company of its present subsidiaries, the businesses operated by its present
subsidiaries or (as the case may be) their predecessors
RAALEBRDERRE - KEXEZEREI AR RKNRETRE
MEBARNERARRBENS BARRETREMNBAREZENRB A
Ak (RERTME) B 8RR S PTETHER

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
BB EMRRE TZANSE

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
BB EMRRE TZANSE

Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report on
Corporate Governance in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

(ERBMERIMARARZES EHARAD MeE+mE (R EERTFAD R (%

BIRWE)

the directors of the Company

ARREF

ordinary shares in our capital, with a nominal value of RMB1.00 each,
which are subscribed for and paid up in Renminbi

AR EBREEARE1.00TTHEBE - BHAARERE SR

RACEBRABRLD A
2013 FEHE
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Glossary

AR

“Global Offering”
[2FREE ]

“Group”
[REH ]

“Guilin Poly Culture Investment”

[EMRF AR E

“H Shares”

[HA |

“HK$” or “Hong Kong dollars”

or “HK dollars” or “HKD”
[7&7T]

“Latest Practicable Date”

[RREFRAITTEE]

“Listing Date”
[ ETEEH]

“Listing Rules”

[ EmAAI

“Listing”
[ 7l

“Main Board”

EL

“MOF”

[ B BAE

“NSSF”
[(HRESEES]

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2013

the Hong Kong Public Offering and the International Offering
BB NFEERBREE

the Company and its Subsidiaries

RRRREM B E

Guilin Poly Culture Investment Development Co., Ltd.

EMERFSUCREERAR A A

overseas listed foreign shares in our ordinary share capital, with a nominal
value of RMB1.00 each
RAREBERAT FREEARE1.00TTHIRIN ETHINE AR

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BREEEEAET

April 18, 2014, being the latest practicable date for the inclusion of certain
information in this report prior to its publication

20144 5181 ~ AIAREEIRI AR E N E TERNREKERAITTE B

March 6, 2014
2014463 A6H

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

B2 g E AR B

listing of the H Shares on the Stock Exchange
HAX e Bk 22 P =7

The stock market operated by the Stock Exchange (excluding the option
market), which is independent of and operating in parallel with the GEM

B PrEENRETS (TBEEETIS) - B EAFT A R R I B AR
PHTEE

Ministry of Finance of the PRC
AR AN B B B ED

the National Council For Social Security Fund of PRC
FEARANEZBEHSREELSESES



“Poly Art Centre”
[RAZ AT 0 ]

“Poly Art Investment”

[RFIZAMIRE ]

“Poly Auction Beijing”
[HERRFHRE ]

“Poly Auction Guangdong”
[ERRAHE

“Poly Auction Hong Kong”
[RABEHE ]

“Poly Film”
[RFIF ]

“Poly Group”

[RFISEE ]

“Poly Southern”

[RAME T ]

“Poly Theatre Management”

[RFIB e & 22 |

“PRC” or “China” or

“People’s Republic of China’
[FHEY] gk [ ARERME ]

“Prospectus”

B E T2

B
Glossary

AR E

Beijing Poly Art Centre Co., Ltd.
I REMBM R OFR AR

Beijing Poly Art Investment Management Co., Ltd.
RN EERER AT

Beijing Poly International Auction Co., Ltd.
ERENEREAERR AR

Poly Auction Guangdong Co., Ltd.
BRAMHEEFR QA

Poly Auction (Hong Kong) Limited
RINEBEHEBRAA]

Poly Film Investment Co., Ltd.
RN EREBRAH

China Poly Group Corporation, a state-owned company incorporated in
the PRC and our Controlling Shareholder, and (when the context requires)
including its subsidiaries

FERMEB AT —KPEAPETMAZHEE R RAA A ZERRR -
(BXEME) TEEENB AR

Poly Southern Group Co., Ltd., a state-owned company incorporated
in the PRC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Poly Group and a Substantial
Shareholder of our Company

RINEHFEEERAE  —KPAFEGFMEAZHEERF - ARAIEENZ
BEWNBRARIRARGNEERR

Beijing Poly Theatre Management Co., Ltd.
ERFRABPEERBR AR

the People’s Republic of China which, for the purposes of this report,
excluding Hong Kong, Macau Special Administrative Region and Taiwan
hEARKNE  $AREMS - TEESE - PERPIFITHRE R A E

the prospectus published by the Company on February 24, 2014
ANABR2014F2 A24 B T BRERE

RACEBRABRLD A
2013 FEHE
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AR

“Province” or “province”

4]

“BMB” or “Renminbi”
[ AR

“SASAC”
[BEE %]

“SFO”

[ 785 R HEIE 561
“Share(s)”

[ |

“Shareholder(s)”
[ A% 3R

“State Council”
[ 7P ]

“Stock Exchange”
[ B 22 P |

“Subsidiary(ies)”
[Pt Es~ &) )

“Substantial Shareholder”
[EEZRRE

“Supervisor(s)”

M=

“U.S.” or “United States”
==

“US$” or “U.S. dollars”

or “USD”
=l

Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2013

each being a province or, where the context requires, a provincial level
autonomous region or municipality under the direct supervision of the
central government of the PRC

BN FERNEME  ARBARITETRBNEXREENEED

the lawful currency of the PRC
R ELEE B

State-Owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the
State Council of the PRC (BRI EEEEEEELZE )
HEREEEEEERRE®

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

BREPIFSTI ER 5 LR IRG] (BAEHER] ~ fst s AR A7 S &%)

share(s) in the share capital of the Company, with a nominal value of
RMB1.00 each, comprising our Domestic Shares and our H Shares

RRBRAHEREEARE1.00THD - BEAEKREHR

holder(s) of the Share(s)
SEST=PN

State Council of the PRC
rhEE AR R0 B 75 R

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERBMERZAAR AT

has the meaning as defined in Section 2 of the Companies Ordinance
VNG SUESPLCS e i AT FOPCE -

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
BERLTRAE FZANEE

supervisor(s) of the Company

AARZES

the United States of America, its territories, possessions and all areas
subject to its jurisdiction

EINREFRE - EEL - EBMEZEREEEENMEHE

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States

IBEEEERET



Address: 25A, New Poly Plaza, 1# North Street of
Chaoyangmen, Dongcheng District,

Beijing, China

Zip code: 100010

Tel: (010) 64082666

Fax: (010) 64082662

Website: www.polyculture.com.cn

ik bR ERIRERARE I KT 1 SRATRAIKE 25A
Hgw: 100010

EiE: (010) 64082666

fEH: (010) 64082662

#8ht:  www.polyculture.com.cn
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